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NOTICE is hereby given that the 62nd Annual General 
Meeting of the members of IMP Powers Limited will 
be held on Saturday, 28h September, 2024 at 11.00 
a.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following busi-
ness: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) of the 
Company for the Financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 together with the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2.    To appoint Statutory Auditors: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or with-
out modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any 
statutory modification(s) of re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), read with the Compa-
nies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 
from time to time, M/s. BJS and Associates, Char-
tered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 113268W), be 
and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Audi-
tors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years 
from the conclusion of this 62nd Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) upto the conclusion of 67th AGM 
of the Company at such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Liquidator of the 
Company and the aforesaid Statutory Auditors, 
from time to time  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Direc-
tors/ Liquidator be and is hereby authorized to do 
all acts and take such steps as may be deemed 
necessary and proper to give effect to the afore-
said Resolution.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

3    To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or with-
out modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:  
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Com-
panies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, [including any statutory modifi-
cation(s) or re-enactment thereof] for the time being 
in force, a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty 

Thousand only) as approved by the Resolution Pro-
fessional / Board of Directors of the Company, be 
paid to M/s. NNT & Co., Cost Accountant, for the con-
duct of the Audit of the cost accounting records of 
the Company, for the financial year ending 31st 
March, 2025, be and is hereby ratified and con-
firmed.” 
 
 
 

For IMP Powers Limited 

  
Sd/- 

Ravindra Kumar Goyal  

Liquidator 
IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 2020-
2021/13098  
 

Date: September 2, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

REGISTERED  OFFICE :  

Survey No.263/3/2/2,Umar Kuin Road, Village Sayli, 
Silvassa – 396 230, Dadra & Nagar Haveli (U.T.) 

CIN: L31300DN1961PLC000232 

 

NOTES: 

1. In accordance with the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs fol-
lowed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Cir-
cular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, Circu-
lar No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, Circular No. 
10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and General 
Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and Circu-
lars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 
13, 2022, January 05, 2023 and October 07, 2023 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(‘SEBI’) and in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act), Securities and Ex-
change Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclo-
sure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Reg-
ulations’), the Sixty-Second Annual General Meeting 
of the members of the Company (‘AGM’) is being 
held through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM),  without the physical presence 
of the members at a common venue. National Secu-
rities and Depository Limited (NSDL) shall be provid-

NOTICE OF THE 62ND ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING 
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ing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for partici-
pation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-
voting during the AGM. The procedure for participating 
in the meeting through VC/OAVM is annexed herewith 
and is also available at the Company’s website at 
www.imp-powers.com  

2. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on Gen-
eral Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secre-
taries of India (“ICSI”) alongwith the amendments in 
Secretarial Standard- 2 applicable from April 1, 2024 
read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of Sec-
retarial Standards 1 and 2 dated April 15, 2020 issued 
by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM shall be 
deemed to be conducted at the Registered office of the 
Company located at Survey No.263/3/2/2, Umar Kuin 
Road, Village Sayli, Silvassa – 396 230, Dadra & Nagar 
Haveli (U.T.).  

3. AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars 
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of members 
has been dispensed with attendance of the members 
through VC/OAVM facility only will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”). Accordingly, the 
facility for appointment of proxies by the members will 
not be available for this AGM and hence the proxy form, 
attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed 
to this notice.  

4. The Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals/HUF/NRI etc.) are required to send a 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of its Board or govern-
ing body resolution/authorization etc., with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized representa-
tive, authorizing its representative to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through e-
voting. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent 
to the Company by email through its registered email 
address to cs@imp-powers.com with a copy marked to e-
voting@nsdl.co.in at least 48 hours before the com-
mencement of AGM.  

5. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books 
of the Company will remain closed from 21st Septem-
ber, 2024 to 28th September, 2024 (both days inclu-
sive).  

6. In case of joint holders, the member whose name ap-
pears as the first holder in the order of names as per 
the Register of members of the Company will be entitled 
to vote.  

7. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 
15 minutes before the scheduled time of the com-
mencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice.  

8. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Item No. 3 
above is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.  

9. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents 
for its share registry work (Physical and Elec-
tronic) are Link Intime India Private Limited.  

10. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to inform the Company’s Registrars 
and Transfer Agents (RTA), M/s. Link Intime 
India Private Limited immediately of any 
change in their address and bank details. 
Members holding shares in dematerialized 
form are requested to intimate all changes 
with respect to their address, bank details etc. 
to their respective Depository Participants. 
These changes will then be automatically re-
flected in the Company’s records. This will 
help the Company to provide efficient and 
better service to the Members.  

11. Members holding shares in dematerialized 
form are requested to register their latest 
Bank Account details (Core Banking Solutions 
enabled account number, 9 digit MICR and 11 
digit IFSC code) and Permanent Account Num-
ber (PAN) with their Depository Participants 
with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN details to the Com-
pany’s RTA as the same is mandated by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India.  

12. The Members may further note that through 
SEBI Notification dated January 24, 2022, 
read with SEBI Circular dated January 25, 
2022, the listed companies are required to 
issue the securities in dematerialized form 
only while processing the requests for Issue of 
duplicate securities certificate, Claim from 
Unclaimed Suspense Account, Renewal / Ex-
change of securities certificate, Endorsement, 
Sub-division / Splitting of securities certifi-
cate, Consolidation of securities certificates/
folios, Transmission, Transposition. Also, in 
view of the Regulation 40 of the Listing Regu-
lations, as amended with effect from April 25, 
2022, securities of listed companies can now 
be transferred only in the demat mode. Mem-
bers holding shares in physical form are there-
fore requested to convert their holdings into 
the demat mode to avoid loss of shares or 
fraudulent transactions and avail better inves-
tor servicing.  

13. Queries on accounts may please be sent to 
the Company 10 (Ten) days in advance of the 
Annual General Meeting so that the answers 
may be made available at the meeting.  

14. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of 
votes, the Resolutions forming part of the 
AGM Notice shall be deemed to be passed on 
the date of the AGM i.e. Saturday, September 
28, 2024.   
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15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 
the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 
which the Directors are interested maintained under Sec-
tion 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspec-
tion by the members during the AGM. All other documents 
referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory 
Statements will be available for inspection through electron-
ic mode by the Members, in accordance with applicable 
statutory requirements. Members seeking to inspect such 
documents can send an e-mail to cs@imp-powers.com  

16. The Company is in process of transferring unclaimed 
amounts of Final Dividend for F.Y. 2016 –17 to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund, as required under Section 
124 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

17. The Members of the Company holding equity shares of the 
Company in physical form and who have not registered their 
email ID may get their email IDs registered with Company’s 
RTA by submitting Investor Service Request Form (Form 
ISR1) duly filled and signed as per the specimen signature 
registered with the Company. The Investor Service Request 
form can be downloaded from website of the RTA https://
www.linkintime.co.in > Resource > Download > KYC > For-
mats for KYC or from Companies Website > Shareholders 
Information > Advice - Shareholder’s holding shares in phys-
ical mode. Further the Company had periodically sent let-
ters to shareholders for furnishing the requisite details as 
per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/ 
CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023.  

18. The members holding shares in demat form may get their 
email address permanently registered with their respective 
Depository Participant(s).  For receiving soft copy of Annual 
Report of FY 2023-24 and Notice of 62nd AGM, such mem-
bers may send an email to cs@imp-powers.com alongwith 
their details such as Name of shareholder, DPID / Client ID, 
PAN and mobile number.  

19. In compliance with the applicable MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 
of FY 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to 
those members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company / Depositories. Members may note that the No-
tice and Annual Report of FY 2023-24 will also be available 
on the Company’s website www.imp-powers.com, websites 
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively and also on the website of 
National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

20. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read 
together with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended) and the MCA Circulars, the 
Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Mem-
bers in respect of the business to be transacted at the 
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a 
Member using remote e-voting system as well as e-voting 
during the AGM will be provided by NSDL.  

21. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has man-
dated the submission of the Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Mem-
bers holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, re-

quested to submit their PAN to their Depository Partici-
pant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are 
required to submit their PAN details to the Link Intime 
India Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, C-
101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 
400 083, Maharashtra.  

22. The Company has facilitated the members to participate 
in the AGM through VC facility provided by National Secu-
rities Depository Limited (NSDL). The instructions for 
participation by members are given in the subsequent 
paragraphs. Participation in AGM through VC shall be 
allowed on a first-come-first-served basis.  

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Admin-
istration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 
read with relevant rules of the Act and provisions of Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide facility to 
members to exercise their right to vote by electronic means.  

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS:  

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 
25, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Friday, September 27, 2024 
at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter.  

The Members, whose name appears in the Register of Mem-
bers/Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on 
the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Saturday, September 21, 2024 
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as 
well as e-voting during the AGM. The voting rights of Members 
shall be in proportion to their shares in the total paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Satur-
day, September 21, 2024. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists 
of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individ-
ual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Deposito-
ry Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to ac-
cess e-Voting facility. 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode is given below: 
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Type of share-
holders 

 Login Method 

Individual Share-
holders holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL.  

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provid-
er i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 
4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code men-
tioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securi-
ties in demat 
mode with 
CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Op-
tion will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi/Easiest 
are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
user your existing my easi username & password.  

2. After successful login the Easi/Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.  

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login; New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option   

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers .  

Individual Share-
holders (holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant regis-
tered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting.  
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 – 4886 7000  

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911  

  
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
  
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on 

a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder Mem-
ber’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing 
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below :  

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your 
user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 130866 then 
user ID is 130866001***  

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a. If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.  
b. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was com-

municated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system 
will force you to change your password. 

c. How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
d. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to 

you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attach-
ment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

e. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email 
ids are not registered. 
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.  

 

 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/
OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.  

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompt-
ed. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confir-
mation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

General Guidelines for shareholders 
1.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to  hkandassociatespcs@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2.It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3.In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 – 4886 7000  or 
send a request to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com  

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
 

a.  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b.  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evot-
ing@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your regis-
tered address etc. 

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL. 

 
7.After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box  
8.Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.  
9.After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.  
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to cs@imp-powers.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@imp-powers.com. If you are an Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for 
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-  
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligi-
ble to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 

Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful 
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to 
click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/
Member login where the EVEN of Company 130866 will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have 
the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

2.  Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 

the meeting. 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (cs@imp-powers.com.). The same will be 
replied by the company suitably. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKER REGISTRATION AND TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATION WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL RE-
PORT: 
 
1. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the 62nd AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending a request in the below given form from their Registered Email ID to cs@imp-powers.com between 
Wednesday, September 25, 2024 (9.00 a.m.) and Friday, September 27, 2024 (5.00 p.m.): SPEAKER REGISTRATION 
FORM* Name of Shareholder (including joint holder): DPID-CLID / Folio Number: Permanent Account Number (PAN): 
Mobile Number & Email ID: Profession: Query in brief: *All fields are mandatory  

2. The member whose details are incomplete or inaccurate will not be considered for Speaker.  
3. Only those Member who have registered themselves as a Speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions 

during the 62nd AGM.  
4. Further, the Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate for 

smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 
24. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as on Saturday, September 21, 
2024 are entitled to vote on the Resolutions, set forth in this Notice. 

25. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the ‘cut-off date’ of Saturday, September 21, 2024 . 

26. A member may participate in the meeting even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be 
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allowed to vote again at the meeting. 

27. CS Harsh Kothari, Proprietor of M/s. Harsh Kothari & Associates,, Practicing Company Secretaries has been appointed as 
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner . 

28. The Scrutinizer will submit her report to the Chairman of the Company or to any other person authorized by the Chairman 
after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-voting), not 
later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communi-
cated to the Stock Exchanges, NSDL and RTA and will also be displayed on the Company’s website www.imp- powers.com. 

 
 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (‘‘THE ACT”): 
 
The following Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), sets out 
all material facts relating to the business mentioned at Item No. 3, of the accompanying Notice.  
 
Item No. 3: 
 
Since the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended, the Liquidator has reappointed M/s NNT & Co 
(Firm Reg. No. R100911) as Cost Auditor on existing remuneration of Rs 50,000/- to conduct the audit of the 
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025. The remuneration payable to M/
s. NNT & Co. shall be Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) plus out of pocket expenses and applicable tax-
es for the aforesaid audit. A Certificate issued by the above firm regarding their independence and eligibility for 
appointment as Cost Auditors and other relevant documents are available for inspection by the members at Cor-
porate Office of the Company during business hours on any working day of the Company without payment of fee. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 and all other applicable rules, the remuneration paya-
ble to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified subsequently by the shareholders. Accordingly, consent of the 
Members is sought for passing the ordinary resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the notice for ratification of the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the notice. The Liquidator recommends the Ordi-
nary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the notice for approval by the Members. 
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LIQUIDATORS’ REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF IMP POWERS LIMITED 
 

LIQUIDATION AND CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESO-
LUTION PROCESS (CIRP) 
During the year under review, Mr. Mukesh Verma 
bearing IP Registration Number IBBI Reg. no. IBBI/IPA-
001/IP-P01665/2019-2020/12522 was the Resolu-
tion Professional of the Company upto December 18, 
2023.  
 
Further, pursuant to the Order dated December 19, 
2023, Liquidation of IMP Powers Limited (‘the Compa-
ny’) was ordered by the Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench and Mr. Ravindra 
Kumar Goyal bearing IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-
P-02019/ 2020-2021/13098 was appointed as the 
Liquidator of the Company. Accordingly, the day to day 
affairs of the Company w.e.f. December 19, 2023 are 
being managed by the Liquidator under overall super-
vision of stake holders committee. As on March 31, 
2024, the Company was under Liquidation.  
 
The current status of the Liquidation of the Company 
is given under the para “MATERIAL CHANGES AND 
COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY” forming part of this report.  
 
Pursuant to Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bank-

ruptcy Code, 2016, the powers of Board of Directors of 
the Company stand suspended effective from the CIRP 
commencement date i.e. March 29, 2022 and such 
powers along with the management of affairs of the 
company were vested with the Resolution Professional 
till December 18, 2023 and subsequently with the Liq-
uidator w.e.f. December 19, 2023.  
 
Accordingly, Company has prepared Liquidators’ Re-
port instead of Board report and said report has been 
signed by Liquidator only instead of Chairman or any 
director on behalf of Board of Directors (SUSPENDED) 
as required u/s 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The Liquidator has pleasure in presenting the 62nd 
Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company together with the Audited Financial 
Statements along with the report of the Auditors for 
the year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
Your Company’s Standalone and Consolidated Per-
formance during the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2023–24 
as compared with that of the previous Financial 
Year (F.Y.) 2022–23 is summarized below. 

The financial highlights of the Company are as fol-
lows: 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars Standalone Standalone Consolidated Consolidated 

.. 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

Turnover 154.82 2805.01 154.82 2805.01 

Other Income 74.49 34.60 74.49 34.60 

Total Revenue from Operations 229.31 2839.61 229.31 2839.61 

Profit/ (Loss) before Finance Cost, Depreciation & 
Taxes 

(1420.49) (4537.54) (1420.99) (4538.04) 

Less: Depreciation 607.82 627.89 609.81 629.27 

Less: Finance Cost 20.68 30.52 20.68 28.63 

Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Item & Tax (2048.99) (5195.95) (2051.48) (5195.94) 

Exceptional Item - - - - 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (2048.99) (5195.95) (2051.48)  (5195.94) 

Less: Current Tax - - - - 

Less: Deferred Tax - - - - 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (2048.99) (5195.95) (2051.48)   (5195.94) 

Earnings Per Share         

Basic (23.72) (60.16) (23.75) (60.17) 

Diluted (23.72) (60.16) (23.75) (60.17) 
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Regulations, 2016 on “As is where is, as is 
what is, whatever there is and without re-
course basis”. The Liquidator has issued a 
Sale Certificate in favour of Successful Pur-
chaser as per the order of Honourable NCLT, 
Ahmedabad.  
 

The Company has taken following Operation-
al Steps: 
 
· Change in Business Mix – Movement 

from Govt. business to Non Govt. Busi-
ness 

 
However, intermittent STOP-START-STOP flip-
ping of business operations lead to lot of 
uncertainty, impacting our liquidity. 
 

INTERNAL F INANCIAL CONTROLS & 
THEIR ADEQUACY 
 

Your Company’s internal controls systems 
commensurate with the nature and size of its 
business operations. Adequate internal con-
trols, systems and checks are in place and 
the management exercises financial controls 
on the operations through a well-defined 
budget monitoring process and other stand-
ard operating procedures. 
 

DIRECTORS’  RESPONSIBIL ITY 
STATEMENT 
 

As stipulated under section 134(3)(c) read 
with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Directors hereby state and con-
firm that: 
 

a) in the preparation of the Annual Ac-
counts for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024, the applicable account-
ing standards have been followed. 
There are no material departures from 
the applicable accounting standards; 

b) Accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of the affairs of 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company 
was under CIRP till December 18, 2023 and under 
Liquidation w.e.f. December 19, 2023.  
 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, 
your Company has reported standalone total reve-
nue of Rs. 229.31 Lakhs and incurred net loss of 
Rs. 2048.99 Lakhs as compared to previous year's 
total revenue of Rs. 2839.61 Lakhs and net loss of 
Rs. 5195.95 Lakhs.  
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 

The Share Capital of the Company, as on 31st 

March, 2024 was 8,63,87,630/- (Rupees Eight 
Crores Sixty Three Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousand 
Six Hundred and Thirty only). 
 

The Company has neither issued shares with dif-
ferential rights as to the dividend, voting or other-
wise nor issued sweat equity shares. There is no 
scheme for employee stock option or provision of 
money for shares of the Company to the employ-
ees or Directors of the Company during the afore-
said period. 
 
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVES AND DIVIDEND 
 

Owing to the losses and ongoing Liquidation, no 
Dividend is possible for the year ended March 31, 
2024 and it is not recommended to transfer any 
amount to General Reserve for the year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,  GUARANTEES 
AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments cov-
ered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statement. 
 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 

The Successful Purchaser of the Company has suc-
cessfully deposited the consideration as per the 
Letter of Intent (LOI) issued by the Liquidator of the 
Company for selling the Company as a “Going Con-
cern” as per Regulation 32(e) of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) 
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fessional upto December 18, 2023 and by the Liq-
uidator w.e.f. December 19, 2023 and all decisions 
were taken by the Resolution Professional/
Liquidator at its duly convened meeting. The inter-
vening gap between the meetings was within the 
prescribed period under the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) and SEBI LODR Regulations.  
 

BOARD EVALUATION 

As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation dur-
ing the year under review, no formal annual eval-
uation has been done for the directors perfor-
mance and that of the committees and individual 
directors as required under the provisions of Sec-
tion 134 read with Rule 8(4) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year 
2023-24.  

  
FAMIL IARISAT ION PROGRAMME FOR IN-
DEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

The Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors aims to provide them an opportunity to 
familiarize with the Company, its Management 
and its operations so as to gain a clear under-
standing of their roles, rights and responsibilities 
and contribute significantly towards the growth of 
the Company. They have full opportunity to inter-
act with Senior Management Personnel and are 
provided all the documents required and sought 
by them for enabling them to have a good under-
standing of the Company, its business model and 
various operations and the industry of which it is 
a part. The details of such familiarization pro-
grammes for Independent Directors are posted 
on the website of the Company viz. www.imp-
powers.com. 

 

DETAILS OF COMMITTEES OF THE 
BOARD 
 

1. Audit Committee 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(8) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 6 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board & its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 read with 
Part C of Schedule II of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, your Company has constituted an Au-
dit Committee of the Board of Directors. The 
details regarding the composition and terms 

the Company as on 31st March, 2024 
and of the loss of the Company for that 
period; 

c) Proper and sufficient care for the mainte-
nance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for pre-
venting and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d) Annual Accounts on a going concern ba-
sis; 

e) Internal financial controls to be followed 
by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively and 

f) Proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (SUSPENDED)  & 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Following are the changes in the Board of Direc-
tors and Key Managerial Personnel during the 
year under review: 
As your Company is in Liquidation, No Change is 
proposed. Power of Board of Directors have been 
suspended pursuant to section 17 of the IBC 
2016 on the commencement of the CIRP and 
Liquidation.  
Ms. Deepali Rohira was appointed as the Compa-
ny Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Com-
pany w.e.f. August 28, 2023. 
As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation dur-
ing the year under review, the Board of Directors 
stand suspended and hence annual declarations 
of Independence from Independent Directors of 
the Company were not received. Also, the second 
term of Mr. Ramdas T. RajGuroo, Independent 
Director (Suspended) is upto September 29, 
2024.  
 
 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF D IREC-
TORS 
During the year under review, due to the ongoing 
CIRP and Liquidation, the powers of the Board 
remains suspended and accordingly, no meeting 
of the Board of Directors or committees thereof 
were held. Further, the duties and responsibilities 
of the Board were fulfilled by the Resolution Pro-
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der review.  

 

4.  CORPORATE  SOCIAL  RESPONSIBIL ITY  
COMMITTEE  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibil-
ity Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has 
constituted a Corporate Social Responsi-
bility (CSR) Committee of the Board of 
Directors. However, company is not re-
quired to incur any expenditure on CSR 
due to accumulated loses.  

 

DEPOSITS 
 

Your Company has not accepted any depos-
its within the meaning of Section 73 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of De-
posits) Rules, 2014 and no amount on ac-
count of principal or interest on public de-
posits was outstanding as on March 31, 
2024. 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 

As required under Section 134(3)(a) and 
Section 92(3) of the Act, the data on Annual 
Return has been uploaded on the Compa-
ny’s website viz. www.imp-powers.com.  
 

SUBSIDIARY 
 

The Company has one subsidiary, namely, 
IMP Energy Limited (IEL). IEL is engaged in 
complete EPC Work of small hydro Power 
(SHP) business. IEL sets up small hydro pow-
er plants of upto 5 MW capacity and does 
the entire EPC work. IEL has already suc-
cessfully commissioned its 1st hydro project 
on EPC basis at Bairas (2 x 750KW) in Octo-
ber 2017 and 2nd EPC Hydro Project at San-
grah (2 x 750KW).  
 

The Company has attached along with its 
financial statements, a separate statement 
containing the salient features of the finan-
cial statements of the said subsidiary in 
“Form AOC-1” which is annexed as 
“Annexure - A”. 
 

of reference of Audit Committee of the Com-
pany are disclosed in the report of Corporate 
Governance, which forms part of this Annual 
Report. 

 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, no meet-
ings of the Audit Committee were held due to 
the Company being under CIRP/Liquidation.  

 

2.  NOMINATION  & REMUNERATION  COMMITTEE  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 6 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board & its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 read with 
Part D of Schedule II of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, your Company has constituted a Nom-
ination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board of Directors. The details regarding the 
composition and terms of reference of Nomi-
nation & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) 
of the Company are disclosed in the report of 
Corporate Governance, which forms part of 
this Annual Report.  

Further, due to the Company being under 
CIRP/Liquidation during FY 2023-24, no 
meeting of NRC was held during the year 
under review.  

 

3.  STAKEHOLDERS  RELATIONSHIP  COMMITTEE  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 
read with Part D of Schedule II of the Securi-
ties and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, your Company has con-
stituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship Com-
mittee (“SRC” ) of the Board of Directors. The 
details regarding the composition and terms 
of reference of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee of the Company are disclosed in 
the report of Corporate Governance, which 
forms part of this Annual Report. 

Further, due to the Company being under 
CIRP/Liquidation during FY 2023-24, no 
meeting of SRC was held during the year un-
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the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India 
(Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016 on “As 
is where is, as is what is, whatever there is and 
without recourse basis”. The Liquidator has is-
sued a Sale Certificate in favour of Successful 
Purchaser as per the order of Honourable NCLT, 
Ahmedabad.  
 
In the Para “Future Outlook”, the Company has 
already stated the challenges, opportunities, 
key steps taken by the Company and the Future 
Outlook.  
 
S IGNIF ICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS,  COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS 
 
Pursuant to the Order dated December 19, 
2023, Liquidation of IMP Powers Limited (‘the 
Company’) was ordered by the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench and 
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal bearing IBBI Reg. 
No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 2020-
2021/13098 was appointed as the Liquidator 
of the Company. Accordingly, the day to day af-
fairs of the Company w.e.f. December 19, 2023 
are being managed by the Liquidator under 
overall supervision of committee of creditors. 
 
Prior to this, the Company was under CIRP upto 
December 18, 2023.  
 
V IGIL  MECHANISM & WHISTLE BLOWER 
POLICY 
 
The Company has a vigil mechanism/whistle 
blower policy to deal with instance of fraud and 
mismanagement. The details of the said policy 
are explained in the Corporate Governance Re-
port and also posted on the website of the Com-
pany viz. www.imp-powers.com . 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,  TECHNOL-
OGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EX-
CHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Account) Rules, 2014 with respect to conserva-

As required under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulat-
ed the Policy on Materiality of Subsidiaries and 
the same is published on the Company’s web-
site viz. www.imp-powers.com. 
 
As per Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(1) of 
the Company (Account) Rules, 2014, the con-
solidated financial statements have been pre-
pared by the Company in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards. The audited con-
solidated financial statements together with 
the Auditor’s Report forms part of this Annual 
Report. 
 

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the Listing Regu-
lations as amended upto date, the Company 
has adopted a Dividend Distribution Policy. The 
same is published on the Company’s website 
at www.imp-powers.com.  
 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 

During the year under review, there was no 
change in the nature of business of the Compa-
ny. 
 

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE 
F INANCIAL POSIT ION OF THE COMPA-
NY 
 

Pursuant to the Order dated December 19, 
2023, Liquidation of IMP Powers Limited (‘the 
Company’) was ordered by the Hon’ble Nation-
al Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench 
and Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal bearing IBBI 
Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 2020-
2021/13098 was appointed as the Liquidator 
of the Company. Accordingly, the day to day 
affairs of the Company w.e.f. December 19, 
2023 are being managed by the Liquidator un-
der overall supervision of committee of credi-
tors (SCC). 
 
At present, your company is under Liquidation. 
The Successful Purchaser of the Company has 
successfully deposited the consideration as per 
the Letter of Intent (LOI) issued by the Liquida-
tor of the Company for selling the Company as 
a “Going Concern” as per Regulation 32(e) of 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Business risks exist for any enterprise hav-
ing national and international exposure. Your 
Company also faces such risks, the key ones 
being - a longer than anticipated delay in 
economic revival, unfavorable exchange rate 
fluctuations, emergence of inflationary con-
ditions, rise in counterfeits and look-alikes 
and any unexpected changes in regulatory 
framework. 
 

The Company is well aware of these risks 
and challenges and has put in place mecha-
nisms to ensure that they are managed and 
mitigated with adequate timely actions. 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

A report on Management Discussion and 
Analysis which includes details on the state 
of affairs of the Company as required under 
the Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI LODR Regu-
lations, forms part of this Annual Report. 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Report on Corporate Governance duly ap-
proved by the Liquidator/Board of Directors 
(Suspended) in accordance with SEBI LODR 
Regulations, along with a certificate from the 
Statutory Auditors confirming the compli-
ance is given separately in this Annual Re-
port.  
 

AUDITORS  
 

1.  Statutory Auditors 
 

Pursuant to Section 139 to 144 of the Com-
panies Act, 2013 and Rules 3 to 6 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
the Members of the Company had at their 
61st Annual General Meeting held on 30th 
September, 2023, approved the appoint-
ment of M/s. Shyam S. Gupta as the Statuto-
ry Auditors of the Company to hold the office 
from the conclusion of ensuing 61st AGM till 
the conclusion of the 62nd AGM of the Com-
pany. 
 

Accordingly, the tenure of M/s. Shyam S. 

tion of energy, technology absorption & foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo are given in 
“Annexure – B” to this report. 
 
MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PAR-
T ICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and 
other details as required under Section 197(12) 
of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in annexure and 
forms part of this report. However, as per the pro-
visions of the section 136(1) of the Act, this Re-
port is sent to the shareholders excluding the 
said information. Any shareholder interested in 
obtaining such particulars may write to the Com-
pany at the Registered Office of the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND AR-
RANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
The details of related party transactions are pro-
vided in the accompanying financial statements. 
In conformity with the requirements of the Act 
read with SEBI LODR Regulations, the Policy on 
Related Party Transactions as approved by the 
Board is available on the Company’s website and 
can be accessed through www.imp-powers.com. 
 
None of the Directors nor KMP had any pecuni-
ary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the 
Company except the sitting fees paid to Directors 
and remuneration paid to KMPs, if any. 
 
During the year under review, no transactions 
were entered into with any Related Parties. Ac-
cordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Trans-
actions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of 
the Act, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to your 
Company.  
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN,  IN-
VESTMENT MADE,  GUARANTEES GIVEN 
AND SECURIT IES PROVIDED 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Act, the details of Loans, Guarantees and Invest-
ments made by the Company as at 31st March, 
2023 are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
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4. The Company has, on the basis of their inter-
nal evaluation, valued inventories for the period 
ended 31st March, 2024 at Rs. 9,85,22,485. 
In the view of current Liquidation Process fol-
lowed by liquidation process, and no production 
activities since long time and in absence of val-
uation report and any supporting papers, we 
are unable to comment on the realizability of 
the inventories—The Company is under Liquida-
tion. Remarks are self-explanatory and hence 
does not require further explanation from ex-
management/Liquidator.  
 
5. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the 
company has Gross Trade Receivables for Rs. 
39,82,93,341 out of which no provision for 
doubtful debt/ECL has been created in the pre-
vious financial years. Further the said balances 
are aged more-than three years hence, In the 
view of current Liquidation Process followed by 
liquidation process, and no production activities 
during review period and in absence of valua-
tion report and any supporting papers, we are 
unable to comment on the carrying value of the 
said receivables. Further in the absence of suf-
ficient appropriate audit evidence we are una-
ble to review said receivables and accordingly 
necessary audit procedures couldn’t be per-
formed on the same—The Company is under 
Liquidation. Remarks are self-explanatory and 
hence does not require further explanation 
from ex-management/Liquidator. 
 
 6. In absence of independent bank confirma-
tions for 4 current accounts, as required under 
SA 505 – External Balance Confirmation, hav-
ing a book balance of Rs. 1,52,464.88 as on 
March 31, 2024 also non-availability of Bank 
account statements for 4 current accounts hav-
ing a book balance of Rs. 1,52,464.88 as on 
March 31, 2024 led to incomplete supporting 
for our audit opinion. Hence, we are unable to 
comment on the bank transactions as well as 
the closing balances as appearing in the books 
of accounts for the said bank balances—The 
Company is under Liquidation and Bank has 
not provided relevant information. The claims 
are already approved and put on respective 
website by the Liquidator.  
 

Gupta as the Statutory Auditors expires at this en-
suing 62nd AGM. The Liquidator has proposed the 
appointment of M/s. BJS and Associates, Char-
tered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 113268W) as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period 
of 5 years from the conclusion of this 62nd Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) upto the conclusion of 
67th AGM of the Company to the shareholders for 
their approval.  
 

Below are the details of Disclaimer of Opinion in 
the Auditors Report and the Liquidator response in 
respect of the same:  
 
1. As per SA 510, para 10, read with SA 705 
(Revised) as applicable, when an auditor is unable 
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence re-
garding the opening balances, the auditor shall 
express an opinion (qualified opinion or a disclaim-
er of opinion), as appropriate, in accordance with 
SA 705 (Revised). Since we were unable to obtain 
appropriate audit evidences pertaining to opening 
balances to the extent as mentioned in subsequent 
paras and other financial information, (where appli-
cable), we express a disclaimer of opinion—
Remarks are self-explanatory and hence does not 
require further explanation from Ex-management/
Liquidator.  
 
2. The company has not carried out detailed as-
sessment of the useful life of Company’s assets as 
company is in progress of updating fixed assets 
register, so assets wise useful life working is not 
possible, hence depreciation has been adjusted, 
based on past historical trend and not as per the 
notification to Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. We are unable to comment on the impact on 
statement of Profit & Loss Account—The Company 
is under Liquidation. Remarks are self-explanatory 
and hence does not require further explanation 
from Ex-management/Liquidator. Depreciation is 
provided as per Schedule II.  
 
3. The company has not complied with Ind AS – 19, 
with respect to employee benefits. Actuarial valua-
tion certificate has not been obtained for gratuity 
and other post-employment benefits—Already tak-
en the certificate and provision is made according 
to the Acturian Certificate. Ind AS-19 has been 
complied.  
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7. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the com-
pany has reported “Other Current Assets” includes 
interest accrued/receivables Rs. 6,81,34,772, 
EMD/ Margin Money and Other Deposits Rs. 
1,26,09,438 and Balance with Government Author-
ities Rs. 49,98,779. The said balances are aged 
and are subject to confirmations. In the view of cur-
rent Liquidation Process followed by liquidation pro-
cess, and no production activities during review pe-
riod and in absence of any supporting papers, we 
are unable to comment on the carrying value of the 
said balances of “Other Current Assets”. Further in 
the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evi-
dence we are unable to review said receivables and 
accordingly necessary audit procedures couldn’t be 
performed on the same—The Company is under Liq-
uidation. Remarks are self-explanatory and hence 
does not require further explanation from ex-
management/Liquidator.  

 

8. Property, Plant & Equipment - The company has 
not carried out detailed assessment of the useful 
life of Company’s assets as company is in progress 
of updating fixed assets register, so assets wise 
useful life working is not possible, hence deprecia-
tion has been adjusted, based on past historical 
trend and not as per the notification to Schedule II 
of the Companies Act, 2013. We are unable to com-
ment on the impact on statement of Profit & Loss 
Account—The Company is under Liquidation. Re-
marks are self-explanatory and hence does not re-
quire further explanation from ex-management/
Liquidator. Depreciation is provided as per Sched-
ule II.  

 

9.  In respect of Finance cost we draw attention to 
note no. 47 of the standalone financial statement 
of the Company, that it has not provided finance 
cost related with interest expenses for the year end-
ed on March 31, 2024 as the account of the Com-
pany has been classified as Non-Performing Assets 
(NPA) by all lenders on financial facilities availed 
from them. Due to non-provision of the interest ex-
penses, Loss for the year ended on March 31, 
2024 is understated. Amount is not determinable—
Remarks are self-explanatory and hence does not 

require further explanation from ex-management/
Liquidator.  

 

 

10. The Company is in the process of reconciling 
direct/indirect tax related balances as per books 
of account and as per tax records. Accordingly, we 
are unable to comment whether these balances 
are fairly stated in the books  - Remarks are self-
explanatory and hence does not require further 
explanation from ex-management/Liquidator.  

 

11. Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern: 

 

a) the company has accumulated losses and 
its net worth has been eroded. The company has 
incurred net loss during the current year and in the 
earlier year(s), the company’s current liabilities 
exceed its current assets and the company has a 
high debt-equity ratio as at 31st March, 2024, 
earnings per share is negative. 

 

b) Uncertainty in Going Concern due to initia-
tion of liquidation vide order date 19th December, 
2023 of Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad Bench. Accord-
ingly, audited consolidated financial results of the 
Company for year ended March 31, 2024 have 
been reviewed by Liquidator. The status of the 
Company being under liquidation and impact aris-
ing therefrom as such cannot be commented upon 
by us. However, the standalone financial state-
ments are prepared on the going concern assump-
tion.  

 

The Liquidator is striving to maintain the going 
concern status till a final decision is taken by 
Hon’ble NCLT.  

 

Further, there are no frauds, details of which as 
required to be reported under Section 143(12) of 
the Act.   
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9. As per Regulation 17 (b) and (c) of the Listing Regu-
lations, the Board of Directors shall comprise of at-
least one Women Director and the Board shall com-
prise of not less than six Directors. However, as on 
31.03.2024, there was no Women Director on the 
Board and there were only four Directors on the 
Board of the Company.  

10. The Company has not submitted the Financial State-
ments for the period ended 30.06.2023 to the 
Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time frame as 
per Regulation 30 and 33 of the Listing Regulations.  

11. There was a delay in submission of Investor Griev-
ance Report for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 
31.03.2024 as per Regulation 13(3) of the Listing 
Regulations to the Stock Exchanges by the Compa-
ny.  

12. There was a delay in submission of Share Holding 
Pattern for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 
31.03.2024 as per Regulation 31(1)(b) of the List-
ing Regulations to the Stock Exchanges by the Com-
pany;  

13. There was a delay in submission of Reconciliation of 
Share Capital Audit Report for the quarter ended 
30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024.  

14. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under 
Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations for the 
year ended 31.03.2024 to the Stock Exchanges by 
the Company.  

15. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under 
Regulation 7(3) of the Listing Regulations for the 
year ended 31.03.2024 to the Stock Exchanges by 
the Company.  

16. The Promoter Disclosure as per Regulation 31(4) of 
the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 has not been submit-
ted by the Promoters for the year ended March 31, 
2024.  

17. Website of the Company is not updated as per Regu-
lation 46 of the SEBI LODR.  

18. The Company has not submitted the SDD Compli-
ance Certificate.  

19. As per Regulation 24(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obliga-
tions and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, atleast 1 
Independent Director of the Holding Listed Company 
shall be on Board of Directors of Material Unlisted 
Subsidiary Company. No Independent Director of the 
Company is appointed on the Board of IMP Energy 
Limited (‘Material Unlisted Subsidiary’).  

20. The Company has not transferred the funds to IEPF 
as required under the provisions of the Act.  

 
Ex-Managements’/ Liquidator response to Qualification/
Observations: 
 
1. The delay/non-filing of returns/information/

disclosures to the ROC/other statutory or regulatory 
authorities was due to ongoing CIRP/Liquidation of 
the Company and limitation of resources and funds.  

2. The Company had published an ad in newspaper 
twice. However, due to the Company being under 
CIRP, no applications were received. Further, the RP 

 

2.COST  AUDITOR 
 

M/s. NNT & Co., Cost Accountant (Formerly known as 
M/s. N. Ritesh & Associates) were appointed as Cost 
Auditors by the Company under Section 148 of the Act.  

The Resolution Professional has re-appointed M/s. NNT 
& Co. as Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2024–25. The Company is seeking the ratification 
of the remuneration to be paid to M/s. NNT & Co., Cost 
Auditors of the Company in respect of Cost Audit for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 as mentioned in 
the Notice convening 62nd AGM. 

 

3.  SECRETARIAL  AUDITOR  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
the Resolution Professional had appointed M/s. Harsh 
Kothari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries 
(ACS: F12935 and CP: 22951), to undertake the Secre-
tarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-
24 and issue Secretarial Audit Report. The Secretarial 
Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024 is appended as “Annexure – C-1” to this Report.  

 

The Secretarial Auditor has made following qualifica-
tions/observations: 

1. As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and as per Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the 
Company had not appointed Company Secretary 
till August 27, 2023.   

2. As per Section 170 of the Act, DIR-12 has to be 
filed for appointment or Resignation of CFO. Mr. 
Shanti Lal Surana resigned as the CFO of the 
Company w.e.f. 04.07.2022. However, DIR-12 for 
the same is not filed as on the date of issue of 
this Report.  

3. The Company has not filed Form MGT-7 for the 
year ended 31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

4. The Company has not filed Form CRA-2 for the 
year ended 31.03.2023 and 31.03.2024 with the 
ROC.  

5. The Company has not filed Form CRA-4 for the 
year ended 31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

6. Delay as observed infiling Form DIR-12 for ap-
pointment of Company Secretary during the year 
under review.  

7. There was delay in payment of Listing Fees to 
stock exchanges under Regulations 14 of the List-
ing Regulations. 

8. The Company has not filed Form MSME-1 for the 
half year ended 31.09.2023 and 31.03.2024 
with ROC.  
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL  STANDARDS 
ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS 
 
During the Financial Year under review, your Company 
has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(ICSI), as far as applicable due to the Company being 
under CIRP/Liquidation.  
 
D ISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL  HARASS-
MENT OF  WOMEN AT  WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION,  PROHIBIT ION  AND REDRESSAL)  
ACT,  2013 
 
The Company has formed a Committee and framed a 
Policy on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Work Place” and matters connected therewith or inci-
dental thereto covering all the aspects as contained 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place 
(Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013. Dur-
ing the year under review, no complaints were received 
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work 
Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
The Board of Directors/Liquidator places on record its 
sincere appreciation for the dedicated services rendered 
by the employees of the Company at all levels and the 
constructive co-operation extended by them. Your Direc-
tors would also like to express their grateful apprecia-
tion for the assistance and support by all Shareholders, 
Government Authorities, Auditors, Bankers, Financial 
Institutions, Customers, Employees, Suppliers, other 
business associates and various other stakeholders. 
 
For IMP Powers Limited 
Sd/- 
 
Ravindra Kumar Goyal 
Liquidator 
IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 2020-
2021/13098  
 
Date: September 2, 2024  
Place: Mumbai 

 

has appointed Ms. Deepali Rohira as the Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 
w.e.f. August 28, 2023.  

3. The information regarding resignation of CFO shall 
be filed with the ROC at the earliest. 

4. Due to the Company being under CIRP/Liquidation 
during the year under review, Board stands sus-
pended and hence no new Directors are appointed.  

5. The management of the Company has taken all 
necessary steps and actions to do proper and time-
ly compliance. It assures to do timely compliance in 
future under various applicable acts & regulations.   

6. The delay in transfer to IEPF was on account of limi-
tation of resources in the Company due to ongoing 
CIRP. Company is in the process to comply with the 
same at the earliest.  

7. The Company is in the process of complying with all 
the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations as 
mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report.  

8. The Company had filed Form MGT-7 for the year 
ended 31.03.2023 as an attachment to Form GNL-
2. However, the said form was rejected by the ROC. 
Further, as the Company went into Liquidation w.e.f. 
19.12.2023, it is not allowed to file any forms on 
the MCA V2 portal as its status is “Under Liquida-
tion”. Hence, certain forms which are to be filed by 
the Company on MCA V2 portal are pending to be 
filed.  

  

SECRETARIAL  AUDIT  OF MATERIAL  SUBSIDIARY 
 

In accordance with Reg. 24 A of the Listing Regulations, 
the Secretarial Audit Report of IMP Energy Limited 
(Material Subsidiary) is attached as Annexure C-2 to this 
Report. 
 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY RE-
PORT: 
 

The Company was not in the Top 1,000 companies as per 
Market Capitalisation as on March 31, 2024, at both the 
Stock Exchanges, where it is listed namely - BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Accordingly, 
the Company is not required to submit a Business Re-
sponsibility and Sustainability Report (which replaces the 
earlier requirement of a Business Responsibility report) in 
view of Regulation 34 read with Regulation 3(2) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.  
 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 
 

The provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act are applicable 
to the Company.  M/s. NNT & Co., Cost Accountant,  had 
been appointed to carry out the Cost Audit of the Compa-
ny for the FY ended March 31, 2024. 
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ANNEXURE – A 

FORM AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of 
section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient fea-
tures of the financial statement of subsidiar-
ies / associate companies / joint ventures as 
on 31st March, 2024 Part “A”: Subsidiary 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

For IMP Powers Limited 

Sd/- 
Ravindra Kumar Goyal 
Liquidator 
IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 
2020-2021/13098  
Date: September 2, 2024  
Place: Mumbai 

ANNEXURE – B 

 

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technolo-
gy Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014: 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 

Steps taken for conservation of Energy: 

 

· Use of energy efficient LED lighting and 
modernization in distribution system.  

· Systematic studies of power consumption 
to avoid unwanted energy losses.  

· Creating awareness among all employees 
to conserve energy. 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: N.A. 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

Details of Foreign Exchange Income and Outgo 
are as below  

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

For IMP Powers Limited 

Sd/- 
Ravindra Kumar Goyal 
Liquidator 
IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 
2020-2021/13098  
Date: : September 2, 2024  
Place: Mumbai 

PARTICULAR 2023-24 2022-23 
Foreign exchange 
earnings 

Nil Nil 

Foreign exchange 
expenditure 

4.56 Nil 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1 
Name of the Subsidi-
ary 

IMP Energy Limited 

2 

Reporting Currency 
& Exchange rate as 
on the last date of 
the relevant financial 
year in the case of 
foreign subsidiary 

INR 

3 Share Capital 100 

4 Reserves and Surplus 126.55 

5 Total Assets 455.27 

6 Total Liabilities 455.27 

7 Investments 0 

8 
Turnover / Total In-
come 

0 

9 
Profit/(Loss) before 
Taxation 

(2.49) 

10 
Provision for Taxa-
tion 

0 

11 
Profit/(Loss) after 
Taxation 

(2.49) 

12 Proposed Dividend 0 

13 % of Shareholding 
77.47% held by IMP 
Powers Ltd (Holding 

Company) 
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ANNEXURE - C-1 
 

Form No. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2024 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remu-
neration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
IMP POWERS LIMITED 
CIN: L31300DN1961PLC000232 
Regd. Off: SURVEY NO. 263/3/2/2, SAYLI VILLAGE UMAR 
KUIN ROAD SILVASSA (U. T. ) DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI SIL-
VASSA DN 396230 IN 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. IMP Powers Limited 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory complianc-
es and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information pro-
vided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the 
explanations and clarifications given to us and the repre-
sentations made by the Management and considering the 
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to 
the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit peri-
od covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, 
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed here-
under and also that the Company has proper Board pro-
cesses and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinaf-
ter:  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Com-
pany for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 ac-
cording to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder and the applicable provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 1956; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and  the  rules  made  there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and  
Bye-laws  framed  there  under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules  
and  regulations  made  there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regu-
lations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 re-
garding the Companies Act and dealing with client. 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories 
and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capi-
tal and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the reporting period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the reporting period); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 
(Not applicable to the Company during the reporting peri-
od); 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations. 2009 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the reporting period); 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Com-
pany during the reporting period). 

 
(vi) Other laws applicable to the Company: 
 
(a) Factories Act, 1948.  
(b) Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:  
i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India; and  
ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 

BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions. 2015. 

 
(vii) I have relied on the representation made by the company 

and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
company for compliance under other applicable Acts, 
Laws & Regulations to the Company. The Compliance of 
the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
management. My examination was limited to the verifica-
tion of procedure on test basis. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above except the following: 
1. As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

and as per Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), the Company had not appointed Company 
Secretary till August 27, 2023.   

2. As per Section 170 of the Act, DIR-12 has to be filed for 
appointment or Resignation of CFO. Mr. Shanti Lal Surana 
resigned as the CFO of the Company w.e.f. 04.07.2022. 
However, DIR-12 for the same is not filed as on the date of 
issue of this Report. 

3. The Company has not filed Form MGT-7 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

4. The Company has not filed Form CRA-2 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 and 31.03.2024 with the ROC.  

5. The Company has not filed Form CRA-4 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

6. Delay was observed in filing Form DIR-12 for appointment 
of Company Secretary during the year under review.  
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7. There was delay in payment of Listing Fees to stock exchanges 
under Regulations 14 of the Listing Regulations.  

8. The Company has not filed Form MSME-1 for the half year end-
ed 31.09.2023 and 31.03.2024 with ROC.  

9. As per Regulation 17 (b) and (c) of the Listing Regulations, the 
Board of Directors shall comprise of atleast one Women Direc-
tor and the Board shall comprise of not less than six Directors. 
However, as on 31.03.2024, there was no Women Director on 
the Board and there were only four Directors on the Board of 
the Company.  

10. The Company has not submitted the Financial Statements for 
the period ended 30.06.2023 to the Stock Exchanges within 
the stipulated time frame as per Regulation 30 and 33 of the 
Listing Regulations.  

11. There was a delay in submission of Investor Grievance Report 
for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024 as per Reg-
ulation 13(3) of the Listing Regulations to the Stock Exchanges 
by the Company.  

12. There was a delay in submission of Share Holding Pattern for 
the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024 as per Regula-
tion 31(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations to the Stock Exchanges 
by the Company;  

13. There was a delay in submission of Reconciliation of Share 
Capital Audit Report for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 
31.03.2024. 

14. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under Regulation 
40(9) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31.03.2024 
to the Stock Exchanges by the Company. 

15. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under Regulation 
7(3) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31.03.2024 
to the Stock Exchanges by the Company. 

16. The Promoter Disclosure as per Regulation 31(4) of the SEBI 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011 has not been submitted by the Promoters for the year 
ended March 31, 2024. 

17. Website of the Company is not updated as per Regulation 46 of 
the SEBI LODR. 

18. The Company has not submitted the SDD Compliance Certifi-
cate. 

19. As per Regulation 24(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), 2015, atleast 1 Independent Direc-
tor of the Holding Listed Company shall be on Board of Direc-
tors of Material Unlisted Subsidiary Company. No Independent 
Director of the Company is appointed on the Board of IMP Ener-
gy Limited (‘Material Unlisted Subsidiary’). 

20. The Company has not transferred the funds to IEPF as required 
under the provisions of the Act.  

 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is NOT 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. For more details 
refer point 9 above. There were no changes carried out in the com-
position of Board of Directors during the period under review.  

 
During the FY 2023-24, the Company was under CIRP upto Decem-
ber 18, 2023 and further under Liquidation till date. Accordingly, 
due to the ongoing CIRP/Liquidation of the Company during FY 
2023-24, the powers of the Board remained suspended and hence, 
no meetings of the Board of Directors or committee thereof were 
held. Further, the duties and responsibilities of the Board were ful-
filled by the Resolution Professional (Upto 18.12.2023) and by the 
Liquidator (W.e.f. 19.12.2023) and all decisions were taken by the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator at its duly convened meeting. 
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the pre-
scribed period under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI 
LODR Regulations. 

 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.   
 
As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notic-
es received from various statutory / regulatory authorities includ-
ing initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found 
necessary. 
 
I further report that during the audit period there were no specific 
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs 
in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. except an order passed by the 
Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench whereby Liquidation of the 
Company was ordered w.e.f. 19.12.2023.  
 
This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is an-
nexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 
 
For Harsh Kothari & Associates  
Practicing Company Secretaries 
s/d 
Harsh Kothari 
Proprietor 
Membership No. F12935 
CP No. 22951 
UDIN: F012935F000967900   
Place: Mumbai  
Date:  August 13, 2024  

 
 Annexure A 

To, 
The Members, 
IMP POWERS LIMITED 
CIN: L31300DN1961PLC000232 
Regd. Off: SURVEY NO. 263/3/2/2, SAYLI VILLAGE UMAR KUIN 
ROAD SILVASSA (U. T. ) DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI SILVASSA DN 
396230 IN 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with the letter 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of 

management of the company. My responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2.  have followed the audit practices and processes as were 
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the cor-
rectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifi-
cation was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of 
financial records and books of accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Repre-
sentation about the compliance of laws, rules and regula-
tions and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other ap-
plicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is the respon-
sibility of the management. My examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effective-
ness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the company. 

 
For Harsh Kothari & Associates  
Practising Company Secretaries 
  s/d 
Harsh Kothari (Proprietor) 
Membership No. F12935             CP No. 22951 
UDIN: F012935F000967900  
Place: Mumbai   Date: August 13, 2024  
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ANNEXURE – C-2 

 
Form No. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
For the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remu-

neration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To, 
The Members, 
IMP ENERGY LIMITED 
CIN: U45209MH2012PLC226580 
Regd. Off: 21/A, 2nd Floor, Plot 68, Film Centre, Pandit 
Madan, Mohan Malviya Marg, Tardeo, Mumbai 400034  
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by M/s. IMP Energy Limited 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory com-
pliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information pro-
vided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the 
explanations and clarifications given to us and the repre-
sentations made by the Management and considering the 
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due 
to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2024, generally complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:  

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records made available to us 
and maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 

made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 

(‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 

Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 

rules and regulations made there under to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Invest-
ment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capi-
tal and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and 
amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Com-
pany during the audit period) 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Bene-
fits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period) 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and List-
ing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The Securi-
ties and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable 
to the Company during the audit period) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 re-
garding the Companies Act and dealing with client 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories 
and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

 
(vi) Other laws applicable to the Company: 
 
a. Factories Act, 1948.  
b. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Compa-

ny Secretaries of India. 
 
(vii) I have relied on the representation made by the company 

and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
company for compliance under other applicable Acts, Laws 
& Regulations to the Company. The Compliance of the 
provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the manage-
ment. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedure on test basis. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above except the following: 

 
1. The Company has not obtained an ISIN to facilitate Demate-

rialisation of shares to the existing shareholders. This is non
-compliance of MCA Notification G.S.R. 853(E) dated 
10.09.2018 

2. The company has not filed form PAS-6 for the half year end-
ed 30.09.2023 and 31.03.2024. 

3. The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 for the resolutions 
passed in FY 2023-24.  

4. The Company has not filed Forms AOC-4 XBRL and Form 
MGT-7 with ROC for FY ended 31.03.2023.  

5. The Company has not maintained proper Minutes for the 
Board and Committee meetings held during the year under 
review.  

6. The Company has not maintained proper Statutory Regis-
ters as required under the Companies Act, 2013, during the 
year under review.  

7. The Company has not filed Form DPT-3 for FY ended 
31.03.2023 and 31.03.2024.  

8. As per Regulation 24(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), 2015, atleast 1 Independent 
Director of the Holding Listed Company shall be on Board of 
Directors of Material Unlisted Subsidiary Company. The 
Board of the Company does not have any Director who is an 
Independent Director of IMP Powers Limited (Holding Com-
pany).  

 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
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Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no 
change in the composition of Board of Directors during the period 
under review.  
 
I further report that the Company is a Subsidiary of Holding Com-
pany. As on March 31, 2024, Holding Company was under Liqui-
dation.  

 
Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board 
meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent gener-
ally seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.  

 
All the decisions were carried through unanimously and captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes.  

 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

 
I further report that during the audit period there were no specific 
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs 
in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc.  
 
I further report that during the audit period no specific events 
occurred which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursu-
ance of the above referred laws, rules regulations, guidelines, 
standards etc.  
 
This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is an-
nexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 

 
For Harsh Kothari & Associates  
Practising Company Secretaries 
 
 
Harsh Kothari 
Proprietor 
Membership No. F12935 
CP No. 22951 
UDIN: F012935F000967933   
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date:  August 13, 2024 

  
 

Annexure A 
 
To, 
The Members, 
IMP ENERGY LIMITED 
CIN: U45209MH2012PLC226580 
Regd. Off: 21/A, 2nd Floor, Plot 68, Film Centre, Pandit Madan, 
Mohan Malviya Marg, Tardeo, Mumbai 400034  
 
My report of even date is to be read along with the letter 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of 

management of the company. My responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were 

appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the cor-

rectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasona-
ble basis for our opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of 

financial records and books of accounts of the company. 
 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management 

Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events, etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other 

applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to 

the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company. 

 
 
For Harsh Kothari & Associates  
Practising Company Secretaries 
 
 
Harsh Kothari 
Proprietor 
Membership No. F12935 
CP No. 22951 
UDIN: F012935F000967933   
  
Place: Mumbai  
Date:  August 13, 2024 
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CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE  

REPORT 
 

The Liquidator present the Company’s Report 
on Corporate Governance for the year ended 
31st March, 2024, in terms of Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obli-
gations & Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015, as amended from time to time 
(“Listing Regulations”).  

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOV-
ERNANCE 

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Gov-
ernance envisages attainment of the highest 
level of integrity, fairness, transparency and 
accountability in all the facets of its functioning 
and in its interactions with shareholders, em-
ployees, government(s), regulatory body(ies) 
and the community at large. The Company reit-
erates its commitment to adhere to the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance. The Com-
pany recognizes that good Corporate Govern-
ance is a continuing exercise and is committed 
to pursue the highest standard of Governance 
in the overall interest of the stakeholders.  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Suspended) 

A. Composition of the Board & other relevant 
details 

The Company believes that an active, well – 
informed and Independent Board is vital to 
achieve the apex standard of Corporate Govern-
ance. The Board is not constituted with combi-
nation of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors & Independent Directors as on 31st 
March, 2024 as per prevailing regulatory re-
quirements. As on 31st March, 2024, the Board 
of Directors of the Company comprises of 4 
(Four) Directors out of which 2 (Two) are Execu-
tive, 2 (Two) Non - Executive Independent Direc-
tors as under:  

Name of 
Director & 
DIN 

Catego-
ry 

No. of 
Director-
ships in 
other 
public 
limited 
compa-
nies 
(incl. 
IMP 
Powers 
Limited)*  

No. of Com-
mittee mem-
berships in 
all Compa-
nies (incl. 

IMP Powers 
Limited)** 

No. of 
Board 
Meet-
ings 
at-

tende
d*** 

At-
tenda
nce at 
last 
AGM**
* 

Chair-
man 

Mem-
ber 

Shri Ajay R. 
Dhoot 
DIN: 
00210424 

Pro-
moter / 
Execu-
tive/ 
Vice-
Chair-
man & 
Whole-
time 
Direc-
tor 

2 0 1 NA  NA  

Shri Aditya 
R. Dhoot 
DIN: 
00057224 

Promot-
er / Ex-
ecutive/ 
Manag-
ing Di-
rector 

2 0 1 NA  NA  

Shri Ramdas 
T. RajGuroo 
DIN: 
00001424 

Non – 
Execu-
tive / 
Inde-
pendent 
Director 

1 2 2 NA  NA  

Shri Praveen 
Saxena 
DIN: 
03199264 

Non – 
Execu-
tive / 
Inde-
pendent 
Director 

2 0 1 NA  NA  

Notes: 

* Excludes Directorship in Foreign Companies, Private Companies 
and Companies governed by Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

** Chairmanship/membership of Committee includes Audit Commit-
tee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee in Indian Public Limited 
Companies including IMP Powers Limited [Committee Membership
(s) & Chairmanship(s) are counted separately.] 

*** During the year under review, the Company was under CIRP/
Liquidation due to which powers of the Board of Directors stand 
suspended. Accordingly, no Board Meetings were held during the 
year under review and the Directors did not attend the AGM held on 
September 30, 2023.  
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The names of Listed Companies (other than IMP Pow-
ers Limited) in which the Directors holds Directorships 
as on 31st March, 2024 are as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b. Board Meetings 

During the year under review, due to the ongoing 
CIRP upto December 18, 2023 and the Liquidation 
w.e.f. December 19, 2023, the powers of the Board 
remains suspended and accordingly, no meeting of 
the Board of Directors or committees thereof were 
held. Further, the duties and responsibilities of the 
Board were fulfilled by the Resolution Professional/
Liquidator and all decisions were taken by the Resolu-
tion Professional/Liquidator at its duly convened 
meeting. The intervening gap between the meetings 
was within the prescribed period under the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI LODR Regulations.  
 

c. Familiarization Programme for Independent Direc-
tors 
 
The Company has in place a system to familiarize the 
Independent Directors with the organization, its busi-
ness and ongoing events. Web link giving the details 
of such familiarization programmes imparted to the 
Independent Directors is www.imp-powers.com.  

 
d. Chart setting out the skills / expertise / competen-
cies of the Board of Directors 

 

The relevant core skills / expertise / competencies of 
the Board as required in the context of business to 
function effectively are tabulated below– 

 

 

 

e. Confirmation from the Board of Directors 

As no declaration is received from Independent Direc-
tors of the Company, it cannot be confirmed whether 
the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the 
conditions specified in Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 
Regulations and are independent of the management or 
not.  

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Board has constituted the following committees: 
 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to mon-
itor and provide effective supervision of the manage-
ment’s financial reporting process with a view to ensure 
accurate, timely and proper disclosure and transparen-
cy, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The com-
position and terms of reference of Audit Committee 
meet with the requirement of Section 177 of the Act 
and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations.  

 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Audit Committee comprised 
of 3 (Three) members with majority being Independent 
Directors. The members of Audit Committee have wide 
exposure and knowledge in areas of finance and ac-
counting. The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to 
the Committee.  

 

 

Name 
of the 
Direc-
tor 

Name of the 
Company 

Category of 
Directorship 

Shri 
Pravee
n 
Saxena 

Mangalam 
Drugs & Organ-
ics Limited 

Non – Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Sr. 
No. 

List of Core 
skills / expertise / 
competencies 

Availability of the Core 
skills / expertise / 

competencies as on 31st 
March, 2024 

1. Leadership / Strat-
egy 

ü 

2. Management of 
Business Opera-
tions 

ü 

3. Finance & Account-
ing 

ü 

4. Regulatory & Gov-
ernance 

ü 

5. Legal ü 
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a. Terms of Reference 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) 
and Part C of Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, the 
terms of reference of the Committee are briefly described 
below: 
 
 
 
i. overseeing financial reporting process, reviewing peri-

odic financial statements, financial results and audi-
tor’s report thereon; 

 
ii. review and monitoring the auditor’s independence and 

performance & effectiveness of audit process and dis-
cussions with Statutory, Internal and Cost Auditors; 

 
iii. approval or any subsequent modification of transac-

tions of the Company with related parties; 
 
iv. evaluation of internal financial controls; 
 
v. management discussion and analysis of financial condi-

tion and results of operations; 
 
In addition, the powers and role of the Audit Committee 
are as laid down under Part C of Schedule II of SEBI LODR 
Regulations and Section 177 of the Act. 
 
b. No. of Meetings and Attendance 
 
As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation during the 
year under review, no meetings of the Audit Committee of 
Board of Directors were held.  
 
c. Composition  
 
Details of composition of the Committee is as follows: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Member Category 

1. Shri Ramdas T. 
RajGuroo (C) 

Non-Executive / Independent 

2. Shri Aditya R. 
Dhoot 

Executive 

3. Shri Praveen 
Saxena 

Non-Executive / Independent 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee comprised of three (3) members with majority 
being Independent Directors. The composition of the Com-
mittee is in compliance with the requirement of Section 
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regula-
tions . 
 
a. Terms of Reference 
 
The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee inter- alia are: 
 
i. to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 

competencies, positive attributes and independence for 
appointment of a Director (Executive and Non-Executive) 
and recommend to the Board, policy relating to the remu-
neration of the Directors, KMP and other employees; 

ii. to formulate the criteria for evaluation of all the Directors 
on the Board; 

iii. to devise a policy on Board diversity; 
iv. to identify persons who are qualified to become Direc-

tors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend 
to the board their appointment and removal and 

v. to lay out remuneration principles for employees linked to 
their effort, performance and achievement relating to the 
Company’s goals. 

 
b.  No. of Meetings and Attendance 
 
As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation during the 
year under review, no meetings of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors were held.  
 
c Composition  
 
Details of composition of the Committee is as follows: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Member Category 

1. Shri Ramdas T. RajGuroo (C) Non-Executive / 
Independent 

2. Shri Aditya R Dhoot Executive  
3. Shri Praveen Saxena Non-Executive / 

Independent 
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d. Performance Evaluation Criteria 
 

As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation during the 
FY 2023-24, no formal annual evaluation has been 
done for the directors performance and that of the com-
mittees and individual directors as required under the 
provisions of Section 134 read with Rule 8(4) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

 
Details of Remuneration to all Directors 

· No Remuneration was paid to the Directors 
during the year under review. 

· Criteria for making payments to Non – Execu-
tive Directors is given in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy and the same is placed 
on the website of the Company at 
www.imppowers.com . 

· None of the Non-Executive Directors holds 
any shares or convertible instruments in the 
Company as on 31st March, 2023 except 
773 shares held by Shri Aditya Dhoot and 
2000 shares held by Shri Ramdas T. 
RajGuroo. 

 

3.STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been con-
stituted to monitor and review investors’ grievances which 
comprises of four (4) members.  
 
a. Terms of Reference 

 
Brief Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders’ Relation-
ship Committee inter alia includes: 
i. reviewing status of approval of transfer/

transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share 
certificates and 

ii. considers and resolves grievances of the Security 
Holders of the Company and suggests improve-
ments to investor relations initiatives undertaken at 
the Company. 

 
b. Composition and Attendance 

 
Details of composition of the Committee is as follows : 

 

As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation during the year 
under review, no meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee of Board of Directors were held.  

 
c. Shareholders’ Complaints 

 

During the F.Y. 2023-24, no complaints have been re-
ceived from Shareholders of the Company.  
 

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE 

The CSR Committee comprises of three (3) members. The 
constitution of the Committee meets the requirement of 
Section 135 of the Act. Based on the recommendation of 
CSR Committee, the Company has adopted CSR policy 
which is displayed on the website of the Company at 
www.imp-powers.com.  

 
a. Terms of Reference 

 
The brief terms of reference of the CSR Committee are 
as under– 

 
i. to formulate and recommend to the Board, a 

CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to 
be undertaken by the Company as specified in 
Schedule VII of the Act; 

 
ii. to recommend the amount of expenditure to be 

incurred on the activities referred to in clause 
(i) and 

 
iii. to monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from 

time to time. 
b. Composition and Attendance 

Details of composition and attendance at the aforesaid 
meetings were as follows: 

 
 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
Details of Last three Annual General Meetings are as un-
der: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Member Category 

1. Shri Ramdas T. 
RajGuroo (C) 

Non-Executive / Inde-
pendent 

2. Shri Ajay R. Dhoot Executive 
3. Shri Aditya R. Dhoot Executive 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Member Category 

1. Shri Ajay R. Dhoot (C) Executive 
2. Shri Aditya R. Dhoot Executive 
3. Shri Ramdas T. RajGuroo 

(C) 
Non-Executive / Inde-
pendent 
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During the year under review, no resolutions were passed through 
Postal Ballot. 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

1. Quarterly and the Annual financial results are published in 
the Financial Express (English) and Financial Express 
(Gujarati). These results and official news releases are also 
available on the website of the Company viz. www.imp-
powers.com.  

2. No presentation to any Institutional Investors or Analysts has 
been made during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2024. 

3. All data required to be filed electronically or otherwise pursu-
ant to the SEBI LODR Regulations with the Stock Exchanges, 
are being regularly filed with the Stock Exchanges, namely, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(www.nseindia.com) through NSE Electronic Application Pro-
cessing System (NEAPS) and BSE Limited 
(www.bseindia.com) through BSE Listing Center and are 
available on their websites. 

 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

i. Day, Date, Time & Venue of 62nd  Annual General Meeting: 

Day, Date & Time Venue Special Resolutions 
passed for - 

Thursday, 

30th September, 
2021 at 2 p.m. 

Through Video Confer-
encing / Other Audio 
Visuals means 

Survey No. 
263/3/2/2, 
Village Sayli, 
Umar Kuin 
Road, Silvassa 
– 396 230, 
Dadra & Na-
gar Haveli 

NIL 

Thursday, 

February 02, 2023 at 
2 p.m. 

Through Video Confer-
encing / Other Audio 
Visuals means 

Survey No. 
263/3/2/2, 
Village Sayli, 
Umar Kuin 
Road, Silvassa 
– 396 230, 
Dadra & Na-
gar Haveli 

NIL 

Saturday, 

September 30, 2023 
at 11.00 a.m. 

Through Video Confer-
encing / Other Audio 
Visuals means  

Survey No. 
263/3/2/2, 
Village Sayli, 
Umar Kuin 
Road, Silvassa 
– 396 230, 
Dadra & Na-
gar Haveli 

NIL 

Day Date Time Venue 
Satur-
day 

 28th 
Sep-
tember, 
2024  

11:00 A.M. The Company is conducting 
AGM through VC / OAVM pur-
suant to the MCA /SEBI Circu-
lars, hence there is no require-
ment to have a venue for the 
AGM. For details please refer 
to the Notice of AGM separate-
ly provided in the Annual Re-
port. 

ii.Financial Year: 
The Financial Year is from 1st April to 31st March. 

 
iii. Dividend Payment date: 

Not applicable as the Liquidator/Board of Directors 
(Suspended) has not declared Final Dividend for the F.Y. 
2023-24.  

 
Iv.Listing on Stock Exchange: 

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fees to the Stock Exchang-
es for the F.Y. 2023–24 and 2024-25.  
The trading in shares of the Company has been suspended on 
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited due to 
procedural reasons as the Company is under Liquidation.  

 
Market Price Data (high and low in each month in last financial 
year)  

* Trading suspended due to procedural reasons. 

BSE Limited 

 

National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tow-
ers, 

“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra Kurla 
Complex, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 
400 001, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051, 

Maharashtra Maharashtra 

Scrip Code – 517571 NSE SYMBOL – INDLMETER 

Scrip ID - INDLMETER   

Month BSE BSE NSE NSE SENS
EX 

SENSEX 

. High 
(Rs.) 

Low 
(Rs.) 

High 
(Rs.) 

Low 
(Rs.) 

High 
(Rs.) 

Low 
(Rs.) 

April, 
2023 

3.92 2.95 3.85 3.00 61209.46 58793.08 

May, 
2023 

3.55 3.06 3.50 2.90 63036.12 61002.17 

June, 
2023 

3.99 3.05 4.00 3.05 64768.58 62359.14 

July, 
2023 

4.10 3.26 4.00 3.20 67619.17 64836.16 

August, 
2023 

5.46 3.66 6.35 3.70 66658.12 64723.63 

Septem-
ber, 2023 

5.72 4.47 6.05 5.25 67927.23 64818.37 

October, 
2023 

5.65 4.27 5.45 4.40 66592.16 63092.98 

Novem-
ber, 2023 

6.40 4.30 6.65 4.25 67069.89 63550.46 

Decem-
ber, 2023 

7.05 6.06 7.25 5.60 72484.34 67149.07 

January, 
2024 

—* —* —* —* 73427.59 70001.60 

Febru-
ary, 2024 

—* —* —* —* 73413.93 70809.84 

March, 
2024 

—* —* —* —* 74245.17 71674.42 
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vi.The Company Website: www.imp-powers.com  
 

vii.Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 
 
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited  
 
C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083, 
Maharashtra 
 
Tel. No. 022 – 4918 6270 
 
Fax No. 022 – 4918 6060 
 
Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in  Website: 
www.linkintime.co.in  
 
The shareholders are requested to address all their com-
munications/ suggestions/grievances to the Company’s 
RTA at the above address. 

 
viii.Share Transfer System:  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, in order to ex-
pedite the process, has delegated the power of approv-
ing transfer, transmission etc. of the securities of the 
Company to the Registrar & Transfer Agents. Securities 
lodged for transfer, transmission, etc. are normally 
processed within the stipulated time as specified under 
the Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has duly 
obtained certificates on half yearly basis from the Prac-
ticing Company Secretary, certifying due compliance 
with the formalities of share transfer as required under 
clause 47(c) and Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regu-
lations and submitted a copy of the certificate to the 
Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company 
are listed. 

 
ix..Shareholding as on 31st March 2024: 
 

 
 
 

x.Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2024: 

 
xi. Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity: 
 

The Company has arrangement with National Securities 
Depositories Limited (‘NSDL’) as well as Central Deposito-
ry Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) for dematerialisation 
of shares with INE065B01013. 

 
As on 31st March, 2024, 99.58% of the equity shares are 
held in dematerialized mode. 

 
xii. During the year under review, the Company has not is-
sued any GDSs / ADRs. 
 
xiii.Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedg-
ing activities: Not Applicable. 
 
xiv.Plant Locations: 
 
Survey No. 263/3/2/2, Village Sayli, Umar Kuin Road, Sil-
vassa – 396 230, Dadra & Nagar Haveli. 
 
xv.Address for correspondence: 
 
Regd. Office: Survey No. 263/3/2/2, Village Sayli, Umar 
Kuin Road, Silvassa – 396 230, Dadra & Nagar Haveli. 
 
Corp. Office: Film Centre, 2nd Floor, Unit No. 21A, 68, Tardeo 
Road, Mumbai 400034. 
xvi.Credit Ratings: 

Since the Company was under liquidation during the 
year under review, the Company had not obtained any 
Credit Rating.  

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

i. There have been no materially significant Related Par-
ty Transactions that may have potential conflict with 
the interests of the Company at large. Transactions 
with related party set out in Notes to Accounts, form-
ing part of the Annual Report.  

 
ii. The Company has complied with the requirements of 

Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities 

Category No. of 
Shares 

% 

Promoter & Promoter 
Group 

14,47,207 16.76 

Bodies Corporate 4,44,182 5.14 

Hindu Undivided 
Family 

3,12,470 3.62 

Public 62,28,581 72.12 

Others 2,04,123 2.36 

TOTAL 86,36,563 100% 

Particulars Shareholders 
. Number % 
Less than 500 7239 78.80 
501 – 1000 864 9.40 
1001 – 2000 478 5.20 
2001 – 3000 191 2.08 
3001 – 4000 97 1.06 
4001 – 5000 86 0.94 
5001 – 10000 129 1.40 
Above 10000 103 1.12 
TOTAL 9187 100.00 
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on all the matters related to capital markets during 
the last three years. No penalties or strictures have 
been imposed on the Company by the said authori-
ties relating to the above. 

 
iii. Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Act and 

Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, the Company 
has a Whistle- Blower Policy and vigil mechanism for 
Directors and employees to report genuine concerns 
regarding unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company‘s Code of Conduct 
and Ethics policy. The said mechanism also provides 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of 
persons who use such mechanism and makes provi-
sion for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We 
affirm that no employee of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee pertaining to 
Whistle Blower Policy. The said Policy has been host-
ed on the website of the Company and can be ac-
cessed through weblink at www.imp-powers.com.  

 
iv. The Company has complied with all the mandatory 

requirements of the Company Law, Securities Law & 
other applicable laws. The status of Compliance with 
the non-mandatory requirements is as follows – 

 
v. As on 31st March, 2024, the Company has one ma-

terial subsidiary. The Company’s policy on “material 
subsidiary” and policy on dealing with related party 
transactions have been placed on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed through weblink at 
www.imp-powers.com. 

 
vi. Details of Utilization of funds raised through prefer-

ential allotment 
 

During the year under review, no funds were raised 
through preferential allotment. 
 

vii. During the year under review, due to the ongoing 
CIRP/Liquidation process, no Committee meetings 

were held and as such, the question for accepting recommen-
dations of Committee(s) does not arise. 

 
viii. During the year under review, Rs. 2,24,200/- (Rupees Two 

Lakhs Twenty Four Thousand Two Hundred only) was paid to 
Statutory Auditors as Audit Fees. 

 
ix. The Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Commit-

tee (ICC) pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 for prevention, prohibition and redressal of com-
plaints/grievances on the sexual harassment of women at 
work places. During the year under review, there were no 
cases filed pursuant to the above Act and accordingly, there 
was no meeting convened and held by ICC. 

 
x. The Company has complied with the requirements as men-

tioned in Schedule V, Para C, sub-paras (2) to (10) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
xi. The Company has complied with all the requirements as 

specified in the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015 as applicable to the Company. 

 
xii. Prevention of Insider Trading: The Company has formulated a 

Code of Fair Disclosure (Including Determination of Legiti-
mate Purpose), Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulat-
ing, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Designated Per-
son(s) (‘the Code’) in accordance with provisions of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amend-
ed, with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Direc-
tors and Designated Persons as identified therein. The Com-
pany Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer in terms of the 
Code. 

 
xiii. CEO & CFO Certification: Provisions of Regulation 17 of Listing 

Regulations were not applicable to the Company during the 
year under review as the Company was under CIRP/ Liquida-
tion.  

 

xiv. Code of Conduct: The Board has laid down a code of conduct 
for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company and is also available at the website of the Com-
pany viz.  www.imppowers.com 
 
Due to the Company being under CIRP/Liquidation during the 
year under review, the powers of the Board were suspended 
and the provisions of Regulation 17(5) (a) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
were not applicable to the Company. A declaration to this 
effect by the Liquidator forms part of this report.   

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Remarks 

1. Non-Executive 
Chairman’s Office 

Shri Ramdas T. Rajguroo (Non – 
Executive Independent Director) is 
the Chairman of the Company. 

2. Shareholder’s 
Rights 

As the quarterly and half yearly 
financial performance are pub-
lished in the newspapers and 
are also posted on the Compa-
ny’s website, the same are not 

3. Audit Qualifica-
tions 

Please refer the Auditors report 
forming part of this Annual Re-
port for further information re-
garding Auditors qualifications. 

4. Separate posts of 
Chairman and 
CEO 

Shri Ramdas T. Rajguroo (Non 
– Executive Independent Direc-
tor) is the Chairman of the Com-
pany. However, no person is 
designated as CEO in the Com-
pany. 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause 
(10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-

ments) Regulations, 2015] 
 

To, 
The Members, 
IMP Powers Limited, 
Survey No. 263/3/2/2, Village Sayli,  
Umar Kuin Road, Silvassa - 396230,  
Dadra & Nagar Haveli (U.T.) 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, re-
turns and disclosures received from the Directors of IMP Powers 
Limited having Corporate Identity Number (CIN): 
L31300DN1961PLC000232 and having its Registered Office at 
Survey No. 263/3/2/2, Village Sayli,  Umerkuin Road, Silvassa - 
396230, Dadra & Nagar Haveli (U.T.) (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regula-
tion 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub Clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the verifications [including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
i.e., www.mca.gov.in]  as considered necessary and explana-
tions furnished to us by the Company & its Officers, we hereby 
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 
as stated below for Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024, 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of Companies by Securities and Ex-
change Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such 
other Statutory Authority.  

Ensuring the eligibility of / for the appointment / continuity of every 
Director on the Board is the responsibility of the Management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based 
on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Com-
pany.  
 
For Harsh Kothari & Associates  
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
Sd/- 
Harsh Kothari 
Proprietor 
Membership No. F12935 
CP No. 22951 
UDIN: F012935F001059079  
Place: Mumbai  
Date:  August 28, 2024  
 

 
 
 
 

Compliances with Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 
 

As the Company was under CIRP/Liquidation during the year under review, 
the powers of the Boards stand suspended and the provisions of Regulation 
17(5) (a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015 were not applicable to the Company.  
 
 
For IMP Powers Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Ravindra Kumar Goyal  
Liquidator 
IBBI Reg. No. IBBI/ IPA-001 /IP-P-02019/ 2020-2021/13098  
 
Date: September 2, 2024  
Place: Mumbai 
 

Independent Auditor‘s Report on compliance with the conditions of Corpo-
rate Governance as per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015 

 
The Members of IMP Powers Limited 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
IMP Powers Limited (hereinafter the “Company”), for the year ended on 
March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of 
regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (“Listing Regulations”) 
pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock Exchanges. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under 
the listing regulations is the responsibility of the Company‘s Management 
including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant records and 
documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regula-
tions. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 
on the financial statements of the Company.  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibil-
ity to provide a reasonable assurance whether the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regula-
tions for the year ended 31st March, 2024.  

We conducted our examination of the above corporate governance compli-
ance by the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or 
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance both issued by the Institute of the 
Chartered Accountants of India (the“ICAI”), in so far as applicable for the 
purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with 
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.  

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard 
on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Relat-
ed Services Engagements.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor‘s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks associated incompliance of the Corporate Govern-
ance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures include but not 
limited to verification of secretarial records and financial information of the 
Company and obtained necessary representations and declarations from 
directors including independent directors of the Company.  

The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars 
in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN 

1. Ajay Ramniwas Dhoot 00210424 

2. Aaditya Ramniwas Dhoot 00057224 
3. Ramdas Trimbak RajGuroo 00001424 

4. Praveen Saxena 03199264 
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work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the 
purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any 
of the financial information or the financial statements of the Compa-
ny taken as a whole.  

Modified Opinion 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
abovementioned Listing Regulations except as stated below. 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above except the following:  
 
1. As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and as 

per Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the 
Company had not appointed Company Secretary till August 27, 
2023.  

2. As per Section 170 of the Act, DIR-12 has to be filed for appoint-
ment or Resignation of CFO. Mr. Shanti Lal Surana resigned as the 
CFO of the Company w.e.f. 04.07.2022. However, DIR-12 for the 
same is not filed as on the date of issue of this Report.  

3. The Company has not filed Form MGT-7 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

4. The Company has not filed Form CRA-2 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 and 31.03.2024 with the ROC.  

5. The Company has not filed Form CRA-4 for the year ended 
31.03.2023 with the ROC.  

6. Delay as observed infiling Form DIR-12 for appointment of Compa-
ny Secretary during the year under review.  

7. There was delay in payment of Listing Fees to stock exchanges 
under Regulations 14 of the Listing Regulations.  

8. The Company has not filed Form MSME-1 for the half year ended 
31.09.2023 and 31.03.2024 with ROC.  

9. As per Regulation 17 (b) and (c) of the Listing Regulations, the 
Board of Directors shall comprise of atleast one Women Director 
and the Board shall comprise of not less than six Directors. How-
ever, as on 31.03.2024, there was no Women Director on the 
Board and there were only four Directors on the Board of the Com-
pany.  

10. The Company has not submitted the Financial Statements for the 
period ended 30.06.2023 to the Stock Exchanges within the stip-
ulated time frame as per Regulation 30 and 33 of the Listing 
Regulations.  

11. There was a delay in submission of Investor Grievance Report for 
the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024 as per Regulation 
13(3) of the Listing Regulations to the Stock Exchanges by the 
Company.  

12. There was a delay in submission of Share Holding Pattern for the 
quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024 as per Regulation 31
(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations to the Stock Exchanges by the 
Company;  

13. There was a delay in submission of Reconciliation of Share Capital 
Audit Report for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 31.03.2024.  

14. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under Regulation 
40(9) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 
the Stock Exchanges by the Company.  

15. There was a delay in submission of Certificate under Regulation 7
(3) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 
the Stock Exchanges by the Company.  

16. The Promoter Disclosure as per Regulation 31(4) of the SEBI 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011 has not been submitted by the Promoters for the year end-
ed March 31, 2024. 

17. Website of the Company is not updated as per Regulation 46 of 
the SEBI LODR.  

18. The Company has not submitted the SDD Compliance Certificate.  
 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the fu-
ture viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

 

Restriction on Use 
 
Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company 
solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations under the 
Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations 
of Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for 
any other purpose. 
 
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for 
any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose 
hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsi-
bility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the 
date of this report. 
 
For SHYAM GUPTA & ASSOCIATES,  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 007309C 
CA Nirav Saiya 
Partner 
Membership No. 179919 
Date: 30-08-2024 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: 24179919BKGWTQ1943 
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MANAGEMENT  
DISCUSSION AND 

ANALYSIS 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Company Philosophy on Corporate Governance 
 
Corporate Governance is a mechanism by which the values, 
policies and procedures of the organisation are inculcated 
and manifested. The essence of Corporate Governance lies in 
promoting and maintaining integrity and transparency in deal-
ings by the Promoters. 
 
Future Outlook 
 
The Successful Purchaser of the Company has successfully 
deposited the consideration as per the Letter of Intent (LOI) 
issued by the Liquidator of the Company for selling the Com-
pany as a “Going Concern” as per Regulation 32(e) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Pro-
cess) Regulations, 2016 on “As is where is, as is what is, 
whatever there is and without recourse basis”. The Liquidator 
has issued a Sale Certificate in favour of Successful Purchas-
er as per the order of Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad.  
 
The Company has taken following Operational Steps:  
- Change in Business Mix – Movement from Govt. business to 
Non Govt. Business  
 
The Company is under Liquidation, adversely impacting the 
order book. After completion of the existing order, the Compa-
ny is trusting on repairs, which is a remuneration activity. 
Currently, the Company has limited enquiries as regards fresh 
manufacturing. The Company has been working to shift its 
customers profile with entire focus on business from Non-
utility customers as compared to business from govt. custom-
ers.  
 
Intermittent STOP-START-STOP flipping of business operations 
lead to lot of uncertainty, impacting our liquidity with cascad-
ing effect. In such scenario, the Company has adopted a cau-
tious approach of Survive-Stabilise-Sustain-Grow.  
 
 
Financial & Operational Performance 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

 
Concerns 
 
The Successful Purchaser of the Company has successfully 
deposited the consideration as per the Letter of Intent (LOI) 

issued by the Liquidator of the Company for selling the Company 
as a “Going Concern” as per Regulation 32(e) of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) Regula-
tions, 2016 on “As is where is, as is what is, whatever there is 
and without recourse basis”. The Liquidator has issued a Sale 
Certificate in favour of Successful Purchaser as per the order of 
Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad.  
 
Overall there is industrial demand slackening, constraints of 
banking and financial support, delay in collection of Receivables 
from the government owned PSUs, etc. The ongoing Liquidation 
has affected the financial position of the Company.  
 
Internal Control Systems 
 
During the year under review, your Company’s internal controls 
systems are commensurate with the nature and size of its busi-
ness operations. Adequate internal controls, systems and 
checks are in place and the management exercises financial 
controls on the operations through a well – defined processes. 
 
 
Human Resources 
 
The Company continues its focus on development of human 
resources. The relations of the management with employees 
during the year continued to be cordial. Learning and develop-
ment has been strengthened to bring value addition in the em-
ployee and to enhance team building leading towards success. 
The Company focuses on providing the employees, employee - 
friendly environment and culture and career growth opportuni-
ties. As the global pandemic of Chinese Corona has taken its toll 
on the Company’s current performance, the Company, with a 
view to survive during such difficult times, has initiated various 
cost & manpower rationalisation measures. The workers have 
not been receptive to these cost cutting measures leading to 
industrial invest in the plant. The workers have been agitating to 
increase in salaries despite very low levels of activites, resorting 
to stick Strike, Dharna etc. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
 
The Liquidator/management believes the above to be true to 
the best of its knowledge at the time of preparation of this re-
port. However, these statements are subject to certain future 
events and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those, which may be indicated in such 
statements. 

 

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Revenue from 
Operations 

229.31 2839.61 

Profit before Tax 
(PBT) 

(2048.99) (5195.95) 

Profit after Tax 
(PAT) 

(2048.99) (5195.95) 
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the compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
rules and regulations framed thereunder (“Act”).  
 
We have been informed by RP/Liquidator that certain information 
including the minutes of meetings of the Committee of Creditors 
(COC)/ Stakeholders Consultation Committee (SCC) and the outcome 
of certain procedures carried out as a part of the CIRP are confidential 
in nature and could not be shared. Accordingly, we are unable to Com-
ment on the possible financial impact, presentation and disclosures, if 
any, that may arise if we have been provided access to that infor-
mation.  
 
1. As per SA 510, para 10, read with SA 705 (Revised) as applicable, 

when an auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the opening balances, the auditor shall ex-
press an opinion (qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion), as 
appropriate, in accordance with SA 705 (Revised). Since we were 
unable to obtain appropriate audit evidences pertaining to opening 
balances to the extent as mentioned in subsequent paras and 
other financial information, (where applicable), we express a dis-
claimer of opinion.  

2. The company has not carried out detailed assessment of the use-
ful life of Company’s assets as company is in progress of updating 
fixed assets register, so assets wise useful life working is not pos-
sible, hence depreciation has been adjusted, based on past histor-
ical trend and not as per the notification to Schedule II of the Com-
panies Act, 2013. We are unable to comment on the impact on 
statement of Profit & Loss Account.  

3. The company has not complied with Ind AS – 19, with respect to 
employee benefits. Actuarial valuation certificate has not been 
obtained for gratuity and other post-employment benefits.  

4. The Company has, on the basis of their internal evaluation, valued 
inventories for the period ended 31st March, 2024 at Rs. 
9,85,22,485. In the view of current Liquidation Process followed 
by liquidation process, and no production activities since long time 
and in absence of valuation report and any supporting papers, we 
are unable to comment on the realizability of the inventories.  

5. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the company has Gross 
Trade Receivables for Rs. 39,82,93,341 out of which no provision 
for doubtful debt/ECL has been created in the previous financial 
years. Further the said balances are aged more-than three years 
hence, In the view of current Liquidation Process followed by liqui-
dation process, and no production activities during review period 
and in absence of valuation report and any supporting papers, we 
are unable to comment on the carrying value of the said receiva-
bles. Further in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evi-
dence we are unable to review said receivables and accordingly 
necessary audit procedures couldn’t be performed on the same.  

6. In absence of independent bank confirmations for 4 current ac-
counts, as required under SA 505 – External Balance Confirma-
tion, having a book balance of Rs. 1,52,464.88 as on March 31, 
2024 also non-availability of Bank account statements for 4 cur-
rent accounts having a book balance of Rs. 1,52,464.88 as on 
March 31, 2024 led to incomplete supporting for our audit opin-
ion. Hence, we are unable to comment on the bank transactions 
as well as the closing balances as appearing in the books of ac-
counts for the said bank balances.  

7. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the company has reported 
“Other Current Assets” includes interest accrued/receivables Rs. 

Standalone Financials 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
To the Members of  
IMP Powers Limited (“Under Liquidation”), 
CIN: L31300DN1961PLC000232  
  
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Results  
 
Disclaimer of Opinion  
We were engaged to audit of accompanying financial state-
ments of IMP Powers Limited (“under liquidation”) (also 
"hereinafter referred to as the Company"), which comprise the 
standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the 
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the standalone 
Cash Flow Statement, the standalone Statement of Changes 
in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial state-
ments”).   
 
We do not express an opinion on the accompanying 
standalone Financial Statements of the Company. Because of 
the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Dis-
claimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide 
a basis for an audit opinion on these Standalone Financial 
Statements.  
 
We draw attention to: 
The NCLT, vide its order dated March 29, 2022 (“Insolvency 
Commencement Date”) initiated the Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of the Company under the Code. 
The said NCLT Order also records the appointment of Mr. 
Mukesh Verma as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) 
in accordance with Section 16 of the Code. Subsequently, 
pursuant to the meeting of the Committee of Creditors (the 
“CoC”) confirmed Mr. Mukesh Verma as the Resolution Pro-
fessional (“RP”) for the Company. Upon the application filed 
by CoC, the NCLT has approved the appointment of RP. Fur-
ther resolution plans did not find requisite majority and upon 
decision of the CoC on liquidation. Company went into Liqui-
dation vide NCLT order dated 19th December, 2023 
(“Liquidation Commencement Date”), pursuant to the said 
liquidation order Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad Bench appointed 
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal as liquidator for the company.  
 
In view of the on-going liquidation, the powers of Board of 
Directors remain suspended and hence, as explained to us, 
the powers of directs vests with RP/Liquidator. These audited 
standalone financial statements are prepared by the Manage-
ment of the Company and approved by the liquidator.  
 
The financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 
have been prepared on the basis of the trial balance for the 
period ended March 31, 2024 which is on the basis of the 
carrying balance of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 
2023.  Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Board of Di-
rectors, whose powers were subsequently suspended during 
the CIRP, had oversight on the management of the affairs of 
the company together with the KMPs for the year ended 31st 
March 2023. The primary purpose of preparing the financial 
statements is for  
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6,81,34,772, EMD/ Margin Money and Other Deposits Rs. 
1,26,09,438 and Balance with Government Authorities 
Rs. 49,98,779. The said balances are aged and are sub-
ject to confirmations. In the view of current Liquidation 
Process followed by liquidation process, and no produc-
tion activities during review period and in absence of any 
supporting papers, we are unable to comment on the car-
rying value of the said balances of “Other Current Assets”. 
Further in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evi-
dence we are unable to review said receivables and ac-
cordingly necessary audit procedures couldn’t be per-
formed on the same.  

8. Property, Plant & Equipment - The company has not car-
ried out detailed assessment of the useful life of Compa-
ny’s assets as company is in progress of updating fixed 
assets register, so assets wise useful life working is not 
possible, hence depreciation has been adjusted, based on 
past historical trend and not as per the notification to 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. We are unable to 
comment on the impact on statement of Profit & Loss 
Account.  

9. In respect of Finance cost we draw attention to note no. 
47 of the standalone financial statement of the Company, 
that it has not provided finance cost related with interest 
expenses for the year ended on March 31, 2024 as the 
account of the Company has been classified as Non-
Performing Assets (NPA) by all lenders on financial facili-
ties availed from them. Due to non-provision of the inter-
est expenses, Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2024 
is understated. Amount is not determinable.  

10. The Company is in the process of reconciling direct/
indirect tax related balances as per books of account and 
as per tax records. Accordingly, we are unable to comment 
whether these balances are fairly stated in the books  

11. Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern:  

 

a) the company has accumulated losses and its net 
worth has been eroded. The company has incurred net 
loss during the current year and in the earlier year(s), 
the company’s current liabilities exceed its current 
assets and the company has a high debt-equity ratio 
as at 31st March, 2024, earnings per share is nega-
tive.  

b) Uncertainty in Going Concern due to initiation of liqui-
dation vide order date 19th December, 2023 of 
Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad Bench. Accordingly, audited 
consolidated financial results of the Company for year 
ended March 31, 2024 have been reviewed by Liqui-
dator. The status of the Company being under liquida-
tion and impact arising therefrom as such cannot be 
commented upon by us. However, the standalone 
financial statements are prepared on the going con-
cern assumption.  

 
Emphasis of Matter  
 
1. We draw attention to Note 41 of the standalone Ind AS 

financial statements, which states that Powers of the 
Board of directors have been suspended on account of 
ongoing liquidation process. These financial statements 
are signed by the Liquidator Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal 
confirming the accuracy and completeness of the financial 
statements and thereafter taken on record by the Liquida-

tor. Liquidation process has commenced with effect from Decem-
ber 19, 2023. 

 

2. We draw attention to Note 42 of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, that Liquidation Process under Section 33 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 has been admitted 
against the Company vide Honourable National Company Law 
Tribunal, Ahmedabad bench vide Order dated 19.12.2023 and 
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal (having registration no. IBBI/ IPA-
001 / IP-P-02019/2020-2021/13098} has been appointed as 
Liquidator of the company under section 34 of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and Resolution Professional has 
been discharged. Upon the order of Hon’ble NCLT, all the powers 
of board of directors shall cease to have effect and shall be vest-
ed in the Liquidator.  

 

3. Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Loans and 
advances are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.  

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.  

 

Key Audit Matters  

 

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, 
was of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on this matter.  

 

Other Information 

 

The Company’s erstwhile Management, Resolution Professional and 
Liquidator are responsible for the other information. The other infor-
mation comprises the information related with Annual Report is not 
yet compiled.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclu-
sion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respon-
sibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or oth-
er-wise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstate-
ment of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.  
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volve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.  
 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-
cumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also re-
sponsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such con-
trols.  
 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclo-
sures made by the Liquidator/Management.  
 

‟/ Manage-
ments‟ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we con-
clude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ob-
tained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  
 

Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement 
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  
 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 

ment that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela-
tionships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in para-
graphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.   
 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
 
1. We have sought and except for effects (to the extent ascer-
tained) of the matters described in the basis of qualified opinion 
paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the pur-
poses of our audit.  
  
2. Except for the effects (to the extent ascertained) of the matter 
described in our basis of opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper 
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Compa-
ny so far as it appears from our examination of those books and 
proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit.  

 
Liquidator’s/ Management’s responsibilities for the 
standalone financial statement  
 
The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the 
standalone annual financial statements. The Liquidator/
Management of the Company are responsible for the mat-
ters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
these standalone Ind AS financial Statements that gives a 
true and fair view of the financial position , financial per-
formance including other comprehensive income, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company and other 
financial information in accordance with the applicable 
accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of audit trail and 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provi-
sions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Com-
pany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application. of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementa-
tion and maintenance of adequate internal financial con-
trols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accu-
racy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, Liquida-
tor/management is responsible for assessing the Compa-
ny’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless Liquidator/
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. Liquidator/ management are also responsible for over-
seeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Results  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Statement as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaran-
tee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Mis-
statements can arise from fraud or error and are consid-
ered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic deci-
sions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.  
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepti-
cism throughout the audit. We also: 

of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropri-
ate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not de-
tecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may in-



IMP POWERS LIMITED.  Page 40 

3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.  

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.  

5. Pursuant to the Liquidation Order dated December 19, 2023 by 
Hon’ble NCLT, the erstwhile Directors of the Company are deemed 
to have Suspended/resigned/vacated the office. Hence, none of 
the erstwhile Directors continue as Members of the Board.   

6. The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and 
other matters connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for 
opinion paragraph   

7. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effec-
tiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.  

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our infor-
mation and according to the explanations given to us:  

its financial position in its financial statements- Refer Note 
No.34.1 in its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial 
statements  
  

-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.  

ferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Com-
pany which has not been transferred.  

  
For SHYAM GUPTA & ASSOCIATES.,  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number: 0007309C 
 
 
 
CA Nirav Saiya  
Partner 
Membership No. 179919 
  
Date:  23-05-2024 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN:  24179919BKGWSX5581    
 

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of 

our report of even date 
Based on the audit procedures performed for the pur-
pose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial 
statements of the Company and taking into consideration 
the information and explanations given to us and the 
books of account and other records examined by us in 
the normal course of audit, and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we report that:  
i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records ex-
cept those mentioned above showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.  
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars of intangible assets.  
(b) During the year, the Liquidator/management of the 
Company has physically verified the Property, Plant and 
Equipment and no material discrepancy were noticed on 
such verification. 
(c) The title deeds of all immovable properties (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the les-
see) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the 
name of the Company.  
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible 
assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.  
(e) To the best of our knowledge there are no proceed-
ings initiated or pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Prohibition of benami 
Property Transaction Act, 1988 and rules made thereun-
der.  
ii. (a) The Liquidator/management has conducted physi-
cal verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during 
the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure 
of such verification by the Liquidator/management is 
appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggre-
gate for each class of inventory were noticed on such 
physical verification. Inventories lying with third parties 
have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2024 and 
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class 
of inventory were not noticed in respect of such confirma-
tions.  
(b) As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, 
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of Rupees five crores in aggregate from banks 
and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis 
of security of current assets of the Company. The quarter-
ly returns/statements filed by the Company with such 
banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the 
books of account of the Company. The Company has not 
filed the quarterly returns / statements for the period 1st 
April 2023 to 31st March 2024 as company is undergo-
ing Liquidation.  
iii. (a) During the year, the Company has not provided 
loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee 
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the re-
quirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.  
(b) During the year, the Company has not made invest-
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ments and Company has not provided guarantees, se-
curity and granted loans and advances in the nature of 
loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partner-
ships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement 
to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applica-
ble to the Company.  
(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances 
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Lia-
bility Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  
(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in 
the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liabil-
ity Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirements to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable.  
(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of 
loan granted to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Part-
nerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the require-
ments to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable.  
(f) The Company has not granted loans or advances in 
the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liabil-
ity Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.     
iv.  In our opinion and according to the infor-
mation and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not provided any loans, guarantees, security and has 
not made any investments in respect of which provi-
sions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applica-
ble.  
v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits 
or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, Hence 
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 
the provisions of the Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereun-
der, are not applicable. Accordingly reporting under 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.  
vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of ac-
count maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules 
made by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of the cost records under section 148(1) of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture electrical 
transformers and are of the opinion that prima facie, 
the specified accounts and records have been made 
and maintained.  
vii. (a) The Company is not regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues in-
cluding goods and service tax, provident fund, employ-
ees state insurance, income tax, duty of custom, cess 
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to 
the information and explanations given to us and based 
on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable.  
 

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of 
Dues 

Outstanding 
for more  
than 6 
months 
(Rs.) 

Profession Tax 
Act 1987 

Profession Tax 2,78,045 

E m p l o y e e 
State Insur-
ance, 1948 

ESIC 3,57,971 

E m p l o y e e s 
Provident Fund 
& Miscellane-
ous Provisions 
Act, 1952 

P r o v i d e n t 
Fund 

10,96,442 

The Income 
Tax Act, 1961 

Tax Deducted 
at Source 

1,44,70,717 

The Income 
Tax Act, 1961 

Tax Collected 
at Source 

54,351 

Name of 
the stat-
ue 

Na-
ture 
of 
dues 

Amo
unt 
(Rs. 
In 
lakhs
) 

Peri-
od 
for 
whic
h the 
amo
unt 
re-
lates 

Fo-
rum 
whe
re 
dis-
put
e is 
pen
din
g 

D
e-
po
sit
ed 

Net 

The Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Tax/
Inter-
est 
Penalty 

624.54 
0.40 

2000-
01 to 
2018-
19 

Com-
missi
oner
ate 

Nil 624.54 
0.40 

(b) Dues in respect of Income tax, sales tax, duty of 
customs, service tax, Goods and Service Tax, entry 
tax value added tax, on account of disputes not 
deposited are as follows:  

This amount is derived from the latest intimation order re-
ceived from the income tax department for the F.Y. 2021-22 
and subject to reconciliation.  
viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any trans-
action, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income 
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
ix. (a) As stated in Note No. 17 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements, the company has defaulted in its repayment of 
loans and borrowings to the bank and financial institutions. 
Pursuant to the continuing defaults of the Company, a corpo-
rate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP‟) under The Insol-
vency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) was initiated 
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against the Company vide an order of the “NCLT‟ 
dated 29 March 2022. Further, liquidation process 
under Section 33 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 has been admitted against the Compa-
ny vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad bench vide Order dated 
19.12.2023There are no Loans or borrowings paya-
ble to Government. The company has not accounted 
interest for year ended 31st March, 2024 pursuant 
to the admission in CIRP.  
(b) The Company has not been declared as wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Gov-
ernment or any government authority.  
(c) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given by the Liquidator/
management, during the year the Company has not 
borrowed any term loans, accordingly clause (ix)(c) 
of the Order not applicable.  
(d) On an overall examination of the financial state-
ments of the Company, funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the 
Company  
(e) On an overall examination of the financial state-
ments of the Company, the Company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or 
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associ-
ates or joint ventures  
(f) The Company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiar-
ies, joint ventures or associate companies. Accord-
ingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
x. (a) The Company has not raised any money during 
the year by way of initial public offer / further public 
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the re-
quirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  
(b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet, the Company has not made any pref-
erential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
under audit and hence, reporting requirements un-
der clause 3(x)(b) of the order are not applicable to 
the Company.  
xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed 
for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the financial statements and according to the infor-
mation and explanations given by the Liquidator/
management, we report that no fraud by the Compa-
ny or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year.  
(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) 
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been filed by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed un-
der Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules,2014 with the Central Government.  
(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle 

blower complaints received by the Company during the 
year while deter-mining the nature, timing and extent 
of audit procedures.  
xii. In our opinion Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) is not applica-
ble.  
xiii. According to the information and explanations giv-
en by the Liquidator/management, transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where applicable 
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements, as required by the applicable 
India accounting standards.  
xiv. (a) The Company has an internal audit system 
which is not in commensurate with the size and nature 
of its Business and which needs to be strengthened.  
 
(b) The internal audit reports of the Company for the 
period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 have been 
considered by us.  
 
xv. According to the information and explanations giv-
en by the Liquidator/management, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with direc-
tors or persons connected with him as referred to in 
section 192 of Act.  
xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Re-
serve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the 
Company.  
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities.  
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as 
defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.  
xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the cur-
rent financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.  
xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year. Accordingly, requirement to 
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.  
xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in 
note 34(b) to the financial statements, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information ac-
companying the financial statements, Based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assump-
tions, we are drawing our attention which causes us to 
believe that material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
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dit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Inter-
nal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guid-
ance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI 
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Stand-
ards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was es-
tablished and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial con-
trols system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, as-
sessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and test-
ing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The proce-
dures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, includ-
ing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls sys-
tem over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Re-
porting 
A company's internal financial control over financial report-
ing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prep-
aration of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial report-
ing includes those policies and procedures that  
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasona-
ble detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;  
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted ac-
counting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with au-
thorizations of Liquidator/management and directors of 
the company; and  
3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispo-
sition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assur-
ance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get dis-
charged by the Company as and when they fall due.  
xx. Due to Losses the provisions related with section 
135 of the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, re-
porting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the order is 
not applicable.  
 
For SHYAM GUPTA & ASSOCIATES.,  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number: 007309C  
CA Nirav Saiya  
Partner 
Membership No. 179919  
Date: 23/05/2024 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: 24179919BKGWSX5581  
 
 
Annexure - B to the Auditor’s Report 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of IMP Powers Limited (the Com-
pany) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.  
 
Liquidator’s/Management’s Responsibility for Inter-
nal Financial Controls  
The Company‘s management/Liquidator is responsi-
ble for establishing and maintaining internal finan-
cial controls based on the internal control over finan-
cial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inter-
nal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting is-
sued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI‘).These responsibilities include the de-
sign, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effec-
tively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company‘s 
policies, the safe-guarding of its assets, the preven-
tion and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial infor-
mation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our au-
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of collusion or improper Liquidator/management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial con-
trol over financial reporting may become in-
adequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.  
 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information & 
according to the explanations give to us, the Compa-
ny has, in all material respects, an adequate inter-
nal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 
2024, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company con-
sidering the essential components of internal con-
trol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  
 

For Shyam S. Gupta & Associates ., 
Chartered Accountants  
FRN 007309C  
 
CA Nirav Saiya  
Partner  
Membership No. 179919  
 
Date: 23/05/2024  
Place: Mumbai  
UDIN: 24179919BKGWSX5581  
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Notes to Financial Statements 
1: Corporate in formation  
 
IMP Powers L imi ted is  a  publ ic  Company 
domic i led in  Ind ia  and  incorporated under the  
provis ions of  the Companies Act  appl icable 
in  Ind ia .  The Company’s  pr inc ipa l  bus iness is  
manufactur ing o f  t ransfo rmers.  The  Company 
caters  to  both domest ic  and in ternat ional  
markets .  The company’s  s tock is  l is ted on 
two recognized s tock exchanges in  Ind ia .    
 
Note 1.2  Recent Accounting Developments   
 
Minis t ry o f  Corporate Af fa i rs  ( “MCA”)  not i f ies  
new s tandard or  amendments  to  the exis t ing 
s tandards.  There is  no such not i f icat ion 
which would have been appl icable f rom 1st  
Apr i l ,  2021.  MCA issued not i f icat ions dated  
24th March ,  2021 to  amend Schedule I I I  to  
the Companies Act ,  2013 to  enhance the d is-
c losures requi red to  be made by the Compa-
ny in  i ts  f inanc ia l  s ta tements .  These amend-
ments  are appl icable to  the Company fo r  the  
f inanc ia l  year  s tar t ing  1st  Apr i l ,  2021     
 
 
Note 2 :  Basis of  preparat ion  measurement  
and signi f icant accounting pol ic ies  
 
2.1.  Basis  of  preparat ion and measurement  
 
2.1.1Basis of  Preparat ion   : -  These f inan-
c ia l  s ta tements  fo r  the year  ended 31st  
March,  2024,  compr is ing of  Balance Sheet ,  
Statement  o f  Prof i t  and Loss ( Inc lud ing other  
comprehens ive  income),  S tatement  o f  
Changes in  Equi ty and  Statement  o f  Cash  
F lows have been prepared in  accordance  
wi th  the Ind ian Account ing Standards  
(here inaf te r  re fer red to  as the ‘ Ind AS’ )  as  
not i f ied by Min is t ry o f  Corporate A f fa i rs  pur -
suant  to  Sect ion  133 of  the Companies Act ,  
2013 ( ‘Act ’ )  read wi th  o f  the Companies  
( Ind ian Account ing S tandards)  Rules,  2015  
as amended and  other  re levant  provis ions o f  
the Act .   
 
2.1.2 Measurement :  -  These f inanc ia l  s ta te-
ments  have been prepared on accrual  bas is  
and under h is tor ica l  cost  bas is .   
 
Account ing po l ic ies  have been cons is tent l y  
appl ied excep t  where a newly issued  ac-
count ing s tandard is  in i t ia l ly  adopted or  a  
revis ion  to  an  exis t ing account ing s tandard  
requi res  a change in  the account ing po l icy  
h i ther to  in  use.   
The Company has prepared these f inanc ia l  
s ta tements  as per  the  format  prescr ibed in  
Schedule I I I  to  The Companies Act ,  2013.     
 
 

2.2 Change in accounting pol ic ies  
 
2.2.1Accounting for  leases  
 
The Company’s  lease  asset  c lasses pr imar i ly  
cons is t  o f  leases fo r  Bu i ld ing.  The  Company as -
sesses whether  a  contract  is  conta ins  a lease,  a t  
incept ion of  a  con tract .  A contract  is ,  or  con ta ins ,  
a  lease i f  the con tract  conveys the  r ight  to  con-
t ro l  the  use o f  an  ident i f ied asset  fo r  a  per iod  of  
t ime in  exchange fo r  cons iderat ion.  To  assess 
whether  a  contract  conveys the r ight  to  con tro l  
the use of  an ident i f ied asset ,  the Company as -
sesses whether :    
( i )  the con tract  invo lves  the use of  an ident i f ied 
asset   
 
( i i )  the Company has substant ia l ly  a l l  o f  the eco-
nomic  benef i ts  f rom use  of  the asset  through the 
per iod of  the  lease and  
 
( i i i )  The Company has the r ight  to  d i rec t  the use 
of  the asset .   
 
At the  date o f  commencement  o f  the  lease,  the 
Company recognizes a r ight -of -use asset  ( “ROU”)  
and a corresponding lease l iab i l i ty  for  a l l  lease 
arrangements  in  which i t  is  a  lessee,  except  fo r  
leases wi th  a  te rm of  twelve months or  less 
(shor t - term leases)  and  leases of  low va lue as -
sets .  For  these shor t - term and leases o f  low va l -
ue assets ,  the  Company recognizes the  lease 
payments  as an operat ing expense on a s t ra igh t -
l ine bas is  over  the te rm of  the lease.    
 
The r ight -of -use assets  are in i t ia l l y  recognized at  
cost ,  which compr ises the in i t ia l  amount  o f  the 
lease l iab i l i t y  ad justed  for  any lease  payments 
made at  or  pr ior  to  the  commencement  date of  
the lease p lus  any in i t i a l  d i rec t  costs  less any 
lease incent ives.  They are subsequent ly meas-
ured at  cost  less accumulated deprec ia t ion and 
impai rment  losses,  i f  any.  Right -of -use assets  
are deprec ia ted f rom the commencement  date on 
a s t ra ight - l ine bas is  over  the shor ter  o f  the lease 
term.    
 
The lease l iab i l i t y  is  in i t ia l ly  measured at  the 
present  va lue o f  the  fu ture lease payments .  The 
lease payments  are d iscounted us ing the in teres t  
ra te  impl ic i t  in  the lease or ,  i f  not  readi l y dete r-
minable,  us ing the incrementa l  borrowing ra tes.  
The lease l iab i l i t y  is  subsequent ly remeasured by 
increas ing the carry ing amount  to  re f lec t  in terest  
on the lease l iab i l i ty  and reduc ing the carry ing 
amount  to  re f lec t  the lease payments  made.    
 
A lease l iab i l i t y  is  remeasured upon the occur-
rence of  cer ta in  events  such as a change in  the 
lease term or  a  change in  an index o r  ra te  used 
to  determine lease  payments .  The  remeasure-
ment  normal l y a lso  ad justs  the leased  assets .  
Lease l iab i l i t y  and ROU asset  have  been sepa-
rate ly  presented in  the Balance Sheet  and lease 
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whether  an ent i ty has r ight  to  payment ,  the ent i ty  
shal l  cons ider  whether  i t  would have an enforcea-
b le  r ight  to  demand or  re ta in  payment  fo r  good 
suppl ied.   
Revenue is  recognized a t  the t ransact ion  pr ice.  
Transact ion pr ice  is  the  amount  o f  cons iderat ion 
to  which a  company expects  to  be en t i t led in  ex-
change for  t ransfe rr ing  promised goods  or  se r-
v ices to  a  customer,  exc lud ing amounts  co l lec ted 
on behal f  o f  th i rd  par t ies .   
The Company does not  expect  to  have any con-
t rac ts  where the per iod  between the t ransfer  o f  
the promised goods or  services to  the customer 
and payment  by  the customer exceeds one year .  
As a consequence,  i t  does not  ad just  any of  the 
t ransact ion pr ices fo r  the t ime va lue  of  money.   
Interest  and Dividend Income : In terest  income is 
recognized  on  a t ime propor t ion bas is  tak ing  in to  
account  the amount  outs tanding and the  ra te  ap-
p l icab le.  Div idend  income is  recognized when the 
shareholders ’  r ight  to  rece ive d iv idend is  es tab-
l ished.   
Insurance Cla im :  Cla ims receivable  are accoun t-
ed at  the t ime when such income has been earned 
by the  Company depend ing on the cer ta in ty o f  re-
ce ip ts .   
The spec i f ic  recogni t ion  cr i ter ia  descr ibed below 
must  a lso be met  before  revenue is  recognized.  
 
2.5.  Export  incentives  
 
Export  Incent i ves such  as Merchandise Export  
Incent ive Scheme,  is  recognized in  the Statement  
o f  Pro f i t  and  Loss as a par t  o f  o ther  operat ing 
revenues.   
 
 
2.6.  Taxes  
 
Current income tax  
 
Current  income tax assets  and l iab i l i t ies  are 
measured at  the amount  expected to  be recovered 
f rom or  pa id  to  the taxat ion author i t i es .  The tax 
ra tes and tax laws used to  compute the amount  
are those that  are enacted or  substant ive ly enact -
ed,  a t  the repor t ing  date in  Ind ia  where  the Com-
pany operates and generates taxable income.   
 
Current  income tax re la t ing to  i tems recognized 
outs ide prof i t  or  loss is  recognized outs ide  pro f i t  
or  loss (e i ther  in  o ther  comprehens ive income or  
in  equi ty) .  Cur rent  tax  i tems are recognized  in  
corre la t ion to  the  under ly ing t ransact ion  e i ther  in  
s ta tement  o f  prof i t  and loss or  d i rec t l y in  equi ty.  
Management  per iod ica l l y eva lua tes pos i t ions  tak-
en in  the tax re turns wi th  respect  to  s i tuat ions in  
which appl icable tax regulat ions are subject  to 
in terpretat ion  and  estab l ish provis ions where ap-
propr ia te .   
 
2.7.  Deferred tax  
Deferred tax is  provided  us ing the l iab i l i ty  method 
on temporary  d i f ferences between the tax bases 
of  assets  and l iab i l i t ies  and the i r  carry ing 
amounts  for  f inanc ia l  repor t ing purposes at  the 
repor t ing da te.  Defer red  tax l iab i l i t ies  a re recog-

payments  have been c lass i f ied as f inanc ing 
cash f lows.   
 
The Company has lease contracts  that  in-
c lude extens ion and terminat ion opt ions.  
These  opt ions a re negot ia ted by manage-
ment  to  provide f lexib i l i ty  in  managing  the  
leased -asset  por t fo l io  and again the Compa-
ny’s  bus iness needs.  Management  exerc ise 
s ign i f icant  judgment  in  determin ing whether  
theses extens ion and  te rminat ion opt ion  are  
reasonably cer ta in  to  be  exerc ised (see Note  
5) .   
 
 
 
2.3 Current versus non -current c lassi f ica-
t ion  
The Company presents  assets  and l iab i l i t ies  
in  the ba lance sheet  based on current /non -
current  c lass i f icat ion.  An asset  is  t reated as 
current  when i t  is :   
•  Expected to  be rea l i zed or  in tended to  be  
so ld  or  consumed in  normal  operat ing cyc le .  
•  Held  pr imar i l y  fo r  the purpose of  t rad ing  
•  Expected to  be rea l i zed wi th in  twelve 
months af ter  the  repor t ing per iod,  or  
•  Cash o r  cash equiva lent  un less rest r ic ted 
f rom being exchanged or  used to  Set t le  a  
l iab i l i ty  fo r  a t  least  twelve months af ter  the 
repor t ing per iod  
 
Al l  o ther  assets  are  c lass i f ied as non -
current .  
 
A l iab i l i t y  is  curren t  when:  
•  I t  is  expected to  be se t t led in  normal  oper-
at ing cyc le  
•  I t  is  he ld  pr imar i l y  fo r  the purpose of  t rad-
ing  
•  I t  is  due to  be set t led wi th in  twelve months  
af ter  the repor t ing  per iod,  or  
•  There  is  no uncondi t ional  r ight  to  defer  the  
set t lement  o f  the  l iab i l i t y  fo r  a t  least  twelve  
months af ter  the  repor t ing per iod  
 
 
The Company c lass i f ies  a l l  o ther  l iab i l i t ies  
as non -current .   
 
Deferred  tax assets  and l iab i l i t ies  are c lass i -
f ied as noncurrent  assets  and l iab i l i t ies .  
 
The operat ing cyc le  is  the t ime between the  
acquis i t ion of  assets  for  process ing and 
the i r  rea l i zat ion  in  cash and cash equiva-
lents .  The Company has ident i f ied twelve-
months as i ts  operat ing cyc le .   
 
 
 
2.4.  Revenue recognit ion  
 
Revenue from Products: Revenue f rom sale  
of  products  and  services are  recognized  at  a  
t ime at  which the p roper t ies  in  goods are  
t ransferred  to  the buyer .  In  dete rmin ing  
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incurring expenses  
Expenses  and assets  a re recognized  net  o f  the 
amount  o f  GST/  pa id ,  except :   
•  W hen the tax incurred  on a purchase of  assets  
or  services is  not  recoverable f rom the taxat ion  
author i t y,  in  which  case ,  the tax pa id  is  recog-
n ized as par t  o f  the cost  o f  acquis i t ion of  the 
asset  or  as  par t  o f  the expense i tem,  as appl ica-
b le  
•  W hen receivables and payables a re s ta ted wi th  
the amount  o f  tax inc luded the net  amount  o f  tax  
recoverable f rom, o r  payable to ,  the taxat ion au-
thor i t y is  inc luded as par t  o f  rece ivables o r  pay-
ables in  the ba lance sheet .  
 
2.9.  Property,  plant  and equipment  
Property,  p lant  and equ ipment  is  s ta ted a t  cost ,  
net  o f  accumulated deprec ia t ion and  accumulat -
ed impai rment  losses,  i f  any.  Capi ta l  work  in  
progress is  s ta ted at  cost .  Cost  compr ises the 
purchase pr ice  and any a t t r ibutab le cost  o f  
br ing ing asset  to  i ts  work ing condi t ion for  i ts  in-
tended use only.  Such cost  inc ludes the cost  of  
rep lac ing par t  o f  the p lant  and equipment  and 
borrowing costs  for  long - term const ruct ion p ro -
jec ts  i f  the recogni t ion  cr i ter ia  are met .  Subse-
quent  expendi tu re re la ted to  an i tem of  f i xed as-
set  is  added  to  i ts  book va lue on ly  i f  i t  increases  
the fu ture bene f i ts  f rom the exis t ing asset  be-
yond i ts  previous ly assessed s tandard of  per for-
mance.  W hen s ign i f icant  par ts  o f  p lant  and  
equipment  are  requi red  to  be  rep laced  at  in ter -
va ls ,  the Company deprec ia tes them separate ly  
based on the i r  spec i f ic  usefu l  l i ves.  L ikewise,  
when a  major  inspect ion  is  per formed,  i ts  cost  is  
recognized  in  the  carry ing amount  o f  the p lan t  
and equipment  as  a rep lacement  i f  the recogni -
t ion cr i ter ia  are  sat is f ied.  Al l  o ther  repai r  and 
maintenance costs  are recognized in  pro f i t  o r  
loss as incurred.    
 
Deprec ia t ion is  ca lcu la ted as per  schedule I I  o f  
the companies act  2013  on a  s t ra ight - l ine bas is  
us ing the  ra tes  arr i ved  at  based on  the  usefu l  
l ives est imated by the management .  The Compa-
ny has used the fo l lowing usefu l  l ives to  provide  
deprec ia t ion on i ts  f i xed assets .  The ident i f i ed 
components  are deprec ia ted over  the i r  usefu l  
l ives;  the remain ing asset  is  deprec ia ted over  
the l i fe  o f  the  pr inc ipa l  asset .   
 
 
Asset Class Useful  l i fe  
Bui ld ings     30 years   
Plant  & Machinery     15 years  
Sof tware      6  years  
Air  Condi t ion ing Equipment     8  years  
Furn i ture & F ixtures       10 years  
Off ice Equipment      5  years  
Motor  Vehic les    8 years  
Computer  Servers    3 years  
Elect r ica l  Ins ta l la t ions   10 years  
Technica l  Knowhow                        10 years  
 

nized  for  a l l  taxable temporary  d i f fe rences,  
except :   
 
•  W hen the deferred tax l iab i l i t y  ar ises f rom 
the in i t ia l  recogni t ion  of  an asset  o r  l iab i l i ty  
in  a  t ransact ion that  is  not  a  bus iness combi-
nat ion and,  a t  the t ime of  the t ransact ion,  
a f fec ts  ne i ther  the account ing prof i t  nor  taxa-
b le  prof i t  o r  loss  
 
Deferred  tax assets  are recognized  for  a l l  
deduct ib le  temporary  d i f ferences,  the  carry  
forward  of  unused tax cred i ts  and any un-
used tax losses.  Defer red tax assets  a re rec-
ognized  to  the extent  that  i t  is  probable tha t  
taxable  prof i t  wi l l  be  avai lab le  against  which 
the deduct ib le  temporary d i f ferences and  the  
carry  forward  of  unused tax cred i ts  and un-
used tax losses can be  ut i l i zed,  except :  
 
•  W hen the deferred tax asset  re la t ing to  the 
deduct ib le  temporary d i f ference ar ises f rom 
the in i t ia l  recogni t ion  of  an asset  o r  l iab i l i ty  
in  a  t ransact ion that  is  not  a  bus iness combi-
nat ion and,  a t  the t ime of  the t ransact ion,  
a f fec ts  ne i ther  the account ing prof i t  nor  taxa-
b le  prof i t  o r  loss  
 
The carry ing amount  o f  deferred  tax assets  
is  reviewed at  each repor t ing da te and  re -
duced to  the  extent  that  i t  is  no  longer  prob-
able that  suf f ic ient  taxable p rof i t  wi l l  be  
avai lab le  to  a l low a l l  or  par t  o f  the defe rred  
tax asset  to  be  ut i l i zed.  Unrecognized  de-
ferred tax assets  are  re -assessed at  each 
repor t ing  date and  are  recognized to  the  ex-
tent  tha t  i t  has  become probable  that  fu tu re  
taxable  prof i ts  wi l l  a l low the de ferred  tax as-
set  to  be recovered .  
 
Deferred  tax assets  and  l iab i l i t ies  are  meas-
ured at  the  tax ra tes that  are expected to  
apply in  the year  when the asset  is  rea l ized 
or  the l iab i l i t y  is  set t led ,  based on tax ra tes 
(and tax laws)  that  have been enacted  or  
substant ive ly enacted  at  the repor t ing date.  
 
Deferred  tax re la t ing  to  i tems recognized 
outs ide prof i t  o r  loss i s  recognized ou ts ide 
prof i t  or  loss (e i ther  in  o ther  comprehens ive  
income or  in  equi ty) .  Deferred tax i tems a re  
recognized  in  cor re la t ion to  the  under l y ing  
t ransact ion ne i ther  in  OCI nor  d i rec t l y in  eq-
u i ty.  
 
Deferred  tax assets  and deferred tax l iab i l i -
t ies  are of fset  i f  a  legal ly enforceable r ight  
exis ts  to  set  o f f  cur ren t  tax assets  against  
current  tax l iab i l i t ies  and the deferred taxes  
re la te  to  the same taxable ent i ty and the 
same taxat ion author i t y.  
 
2.8.  Goods and Service Tax/  value added 
taxes paid  on acquisi t ion of  assets or on 
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spect ive bas is .   
 
Gains or  losses ar is ing f rom derecogni t ion of  an 
in tangib le  asset  a re measured as the  d i f ference 
between the ne t  d isposa l  proceeds and the car ry-
ing amount  o f  the asset  and are recognized in  the 
s ta tement  o f  prof i t  and  loss when the  asset  i s  
derecognized .   
 
In tangib le  assets  are amort ized on s t ra ight  l ine 
method asunder:  
•  So f tware expendi tu re i s  amort ized over  a  per iod 
of  three years .  
•  Technica l  Knowhow expendi tu re is  amort i zed 
over  a  per iod o f  ten years .  
 
2.11.  Borrowing costs  
Borrowing costs  d i rec t l y  a t t r ibu tab le to  the  acqu i -
s i t ion,  const ruct ion or  product ion of  an asset  that  
necessar i ly  takes a substant ia l  per iod  of  t ime to  
get  ready fo r  i ts  in tended use or  sa le  are capi ta l -
ized as  par t  o f  the cos t  o f  the asset .  A l l  o ther  
borrowing costs  a re expensed in  the per iod in  
which they occur .  Borrowing costs  cons is t  o f  in -
terest  and other  costs  that  an ent i t y incurs  in 
connect ion wi th  the bor rowing of  funds.  Bor row-
ing cost  a lso inc ludes exchange d i f ferences to  
the extent  regarded  as an ad justment  to  the bor-
rowing costs .  To the extent  that  the Company 
borrows funds spec i f ica l ly for  the purpose o f  ob-
ta in ing a qual i fy ing asset ,  the Company de te r-
mines the amount  o f  borrowing costs  e l ig ib le  fo r  
capi ta l izat ion  as the  actua l  borrowing costs  in-
curred on that  borrowing dur ing the per iod  less 
any investment  income on the temporary invest -
ment  o f  those bor rowings.   
To the extent  that  the  Company borrows funds 
genera l ly and uses them for  the purpose of  ob-
ta in ing a qual i fy ing asset ,  the Company de te r-
mines the amount  o f  borrowing costs  e l ig ib le  fo r  
capi ta l izat ion by apply ing a capi ta l iza t ion ra te  to  
the expendi tu res on that  asset .  The capi ta l i zat ion 
ra te is  the weighted average of  the borrowing 
costs  appl icable to  the borrowings  of  the Compa-
ny that  a re outs tanding  dur ing the per iod,  o ther  
than borrowings made spec i f ica l ly for  the purpose 
of  obta in ing a qual i fy ing  asset   
 
Investments:  
 
Current  investments  are carr ied  at  the  lower o f  
cost  or  quoted/  fa i r  va lue,  computed category -
wise .  Long te rm investments  are s ta ted at  cost 
and provis ion is  made for  any d iminut ion in  such 
va lue,  which is  not  temporary in  natu re .  
 
 
2.13 Leases  
 
The Company has  ente red in to  var ious ar range-
ments  l ike lease of  p remises which  has been d is-
c losed accord ing ly under Ind AS 116  At  incep t ion 
of  a  contract ,  the Company assesses whether  
contract  is ,  or  conta ins ,  lease.  A cont ract  is ,  o r  
conta ins ,  a  lease is  the contract  convey the r igh t  
o f  contro l  the use of  an  ident i f ied assets  for  the 
per iod of  t ime in  exchange for  cons idera t ion.  The 
assessment  o f  whether  a  contract  convey the 
r ight  to  contro l  the  use of  as  ident i f ied  asse ts 

The  management  be l ieves that  the deprec ia-
t ion ra tes fa i r l y  re f lec t  i ts  es t imat ion of  the 
usefu l  l i ves and  res idua l  va lues of  the  f i xed  
assets .  
 
An i tem of  proper ty,  p lant  and equipment  
and any s ign i f ican t  par t  in i t ia l ly  recognized  
is  derecognized upon d isposal  or  when no  
fu ture economic  benef i t s  are  expected f rom 
i ts  use o r  d isposal .  Any ga in o r  loss  ar is ing  
on derecogni t ion of  the asset  (ca lcu la ted as 
the d i f ference between the net  d isposal  pro-
ceeds and the  car ry ing amount  o f  the  asset)  
is  inc luded in  the income s tatement  when 
the asset  is  derecognized.   
 
The res idual  va lues,  usefu l  l i ves and  meth-
ods of  deprec ia t ion  of  proper ty ,  p lant  and  
equipment  are reviewed at  each f inanc ia l  
year  end  and adjusted  prospect ive ly,  i f  ap-
propr ia te .  
 
2.10.  Intangible assets  
 
In tangib le  assets  acqui red separate ly are  
measured on in i t ia l  recogni t ion at  cost .  Fo l -
lowing in i t ia l  recogni t ion,  in tangib le  assets  
are carr ied at  cost  less any accumulated 
amort izat ion and accumulated impai rment  
losses.  In terna l ly generated in tangib les ,  ex-
c lud ing capi ta l ized  development  costs ,  are  
not  capi ta l ized and the  re la ted expendi ture  
is  re f lec ted in  s ta tement  o f  pro f i t  and  loss in  
the per iod in  which the expendi tu re is  in-
curred.   
 
The usefu l  l i ves of  in tangib le  assets  are as-
sessed as e i ther  in f in i te  or  f in i te .  
 
In tangib le  assets  wi th  f i n i te  l ives a re amor-
t ized  over  the usefu l  economic  l i fe  and  as-
sessed for  impai rment  whenever there is  an  
ind icat ion that  the  in tangib le  asset  may be  
impai red.  The amort i za t ion per iod and the  
amort izat ion method  fo r  an in tangib le  asset  
wi th  a  f in i te  usefu l  l i f e  are reviewed at  least  
a t  the end of  each repor t ing per iod.  Changes  
in  the expected usefu l  l i fe  or  the expected  
pat tern  of  consumpt ion  of  fu ture  economic  
benef i ts  embodied in  the asset  are cons id-
ered to  modi fy the amort iza t ion per iod or  
method,  as  appropr ia te ,  and are t reated as  
changes in  account ing est imates.  The amor-
t izat ion expense  on in tangib le  assets  wi th  
f in i te  l ives is  recognized in  the s ta tement  o f  
prof i t  and loss un less such expendi ture  
forms par t  o f  carry ing va lue of  another  as-
set .   
 
In tangib le  assets  wi th  in f in i te  usefu l  l ives 
are not  amor t ized,  but  a re tes ted fo r  impai r -
ment  annual ly,  e i ther  ind iv idual l y or  a t  the  
cash -generat ing un i t  leve l .  The assessment  
o f  in f in i te  l i fe  is  reviewed annual ly to  deter-
mine whether  the in f in i te  l i fe  cont inues to  be  
supportab le .  I f  not ,  the change in  usefu l  l i fe  
f rom indef in i te  to  f in i te  is  made on a  pro -



IMP POWERS LIMITED.  Page 52 

 terminat ing the lease,  i f  the lease term ref lec ts  
the Company exerc is ing  the  opt ion  to  terminate .  
Var iab le  lease  payments  that  do  not  depend on 
an index or  rare  are recognized  as expenses 
(un less the const  is  inc luded in  the carry ing va l -
ue of  inventor )  in  the per iod in  which the event  o r  
condi t ion that  t r iggers  the payments  occurs .   
 
In  ca lcu la t ing the present  va lue of  lease pay-
ment ,  the  Company uses i ts  incrementa l  bor row-
ing ra te at  the lease commencement  date be-
cause the in terest  ra te  impl ic i t  in  the lease is  not  
readi ly  determinable .  A f ter  the commencement  
date,  the  amount  lease  l iab i l i t ies  a re increased 
to  re f lec t  the accre t ion  of  in terest  and reduces 
for  the lease payment  made.  In  addi t ion,  the  car -
ry ing  amount  o f  lease l i ab i l i t ies  is  re  measured i f  
there is  a  modi f icat ion,  a  change in  the lease 
terms,  a  change in  the lease payments  (e .g . ,  
changes to  fu ture payments  resul t ing f rom a 
change in  an index or  ra te  used to  determine 
such lease payments )  or  a  change in  the assess -
ment  o f  an opt ion to  purchase the under ly ing as -
sets .    
 
The Company’s  lease l iab i l i t ies  are inc luded in  
current  and non -current  f inanc ia l ;  l iab i l i t ies .  
Lease l iab i l i t ies  have been separate ly p resented 
in  the Balance Sheet  and lease payments  have 
been c lass i f ied as f inanc ing cash f lows.    
 
2.13.1.3 Short - term lease and leases of  low -
value  assets  
 
The Company appl ies  the shor t - term lease recog-
n i t ion exempt ion  to  the  contracts  which have a 
lease term of  12 months  or  less f rom the  date  o f  
commencement  date and do not  conta in  a  pur -
chase opt ion.  I t  a lso  appl ies  the lease  of  low -
value assets  recogni t ion exempt ion to  the lease 
contract  tha t  a re cons idered to  the  low va lue .  
Lease payments  on shor t - term leases and leases 
of  low -value  assets  are  recognized as expenses 
on a s t ra ight  – l ine bas is  over  the lease te rm.   
 
2.14 Inventories  
 
Invento r ies  are  va lued at  the lower o f  cost  and 
net  rea l i zable va lue.  
 
Costs  incurred in  br ing ing each product  to  i ts  
present  locat ion and condi t ions are accounted fo r  
as  fo l lows:  
 
•  Raw mater ia ls ,  components ,  s tores and spares 
are va lued at  lower o f  cost  and net  rea l i zable 
va lue.  However ,  mater ia ls  and other  i tems held 
for  use in  the product ion of  inventor ies  are not  
wr i t ten  down below cost  i f  the f in ished  products  
in  which they wi l l  be  incorporated a re expected 
to  be so ld  at  o r  above cost  f i rs t  in  f i rs t  out  bas is .   
•  W ork - in -progress and f in ished goods are va lued 
at  lower o f  cost  and net  rea l izable va lue .  Cost  
inc ludes d i rec t  mater ia ls  and labor  and a  propor -
t ion of  manufactur ing overheads based on normal  

depends on whether  the Company obta ins  
substant ia l ly  a l l  the economic  benef i ts  f rom 
the use of  the assets  and whether  the Com-
pany has a  r ight  to  d i rec t  the use of  the as-
sets .   
 
 
2.13.1 Company as a lessee  
 
The Company appl ies  a s ing le  recogni t ion  
and measurement  approach for  a l l  leases,  
except  for  shor t - term leases and leases of  
low va lue  assets .  The Company recognizes  
to  make lease payments  and r ight -of -use as-
sets  represent ing the r ight  to  use the under-
ly ing assets .  
 
2.13.1.1Right -of -use assets  
 
The Company recognizes r ight -of -assets  a t  
the commencement  date of  the  lease ( i .e  ,  
the date the under l y ing  assets  is  ava i lab le  
for  use) .  The  cost  o f  r i ght -of -use assets  in-
c ludes the amount  o f  lease l iab i l i t ies  recog-
n ized,  in i t ia l  d i rec t  costs  incurred,  and lease 
payments  made at  or  before the  commence-
ment  date less any lease incent ives re-
ce ived.  Right -of -use assets  are  measured at  
cost ,  less  any accumulated deprec ia t ion and 
impai rment  losses,  and  adjusted for  any re -
measurement  o f  l iab i l i t i es .  Right -of -use as-
sets  are deprec ia ted on a s t ra ight -  bas is 
over  shor ter  o f  the lease term or  the est imat-
ed usefu l  l i fe  o f  the under ly ing  assets  as fo l -
lows.   
 

 
I f  ownersh ip of  the leased assets  t ransfers  to  
the Company a t  the end  of  the lease term or  
the cost  re f lec ts  the exerc ise of  a  purchase 
opt ion,  deprec ia t ion is  ca lcu la ted us ing the  
est imated usefu l  l i fe  o f  the assets .  The com-
pany p resents  r ight -of -  use assets  separate ly 
in  the ba lance sheet .   
 
 
2.13.1.2 Lease Liabi l i t ies  
 
At the  commencements  date of  the lease ,  the  
Company recognizes lease l iab i l i t ies  meas-
ured at  the  present  va lue of  lease payments  
to  be made over  the lease term.  The lease 
payment  inc ludes f i xed  payments  ( inc lud ing  
in -substance f i xed  payments)  less any lease  
incent ives receivable,  var iab le  lease pay-
ments  that  depend on an index or  ra te ,  and  
amounts  expected to  be  pa id under res idual  
va lue guarantees.  The  lease payment  a lso 
inc ludes the exerc ise  pr ice of  a  purchase 
opt ion reasonably cer ta in  to  be exerc ised by 
the Company and  payments  of  penal t ies  for  

Assets Class  Useful l i fe  

Bui ld ing  3 years  
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the bas is  o f  ac tuar ia l  va luat ion us ing Pro jec ted  
Uni t  Credi t  Method at  the date of  ba lance 
sheet .  
 
Remeasurement ,  compr is ing of  ac tuar ia l  ga ins  
and losses,  the ef fec t  o f  the asset  ce i l ing,  ex-
c lud ing amounts  inc luded in  net  in terest  on the  
net  def ined benef i t  l iab i l i ty  and  the re turn on  
p lan assets  (exc lud ing amounts  inc luded in  net  
in terest  on the net  def ined benef i t  l iab i l i t y) ,  are  
recognized immediate ly  in  the ba lance sheet  
wi th  a  corresponding debi t  or  c red i t  to  re ta ined  
earn ings through OCI in  the per iod in  which 
they occur .  Remeasurement  is  not  rec lass i f ied  
to  s ta tement  o f  prof i t  and loss in  subsequent  
per iods.  
 
Past  service costs  are recognized in  s ta tement  
o f  prof i t  and  loss on the ear l ier  o f :  
 
•  The date of  the p lan  amendment  or  cur ta i l -
ment  and  
 
•  The date that  the Company recognizes re la ted  
rest ruc tur ing costs  
 
Net in terest  is  ca lcu la ted by apply ing the d is-
count  ra te  to  the ne t  de f ined benef i t  l iab i l i t y  or  
asset .  The Company recognizes the  fo l lowing  
changes in  the net  def ined benef i t  ob l igat ion as 
an expense in  s ta tement  o f  prof i t  and loss:  
 
•  Service costs  compr is ing current  service  
costs ,  past  service costs ,  ga ins and  losses on  
cur ta i lments  and non - rout ine set t lements ;  and  
 
•  Net  in terest  expense o r  income  
 
Compensated absences  
 
Accumulated leave ,  wh ich is  expected to  be  
ut i l i zed  wi th in  the next  12 months,  is  t reated as  
shor t - term employee benef i t  and  th is  is  shown 
under shor t  term provis ion in  the  Balance  
Sheet .  The  Company measures the expected  
cost  o f  such  absences as the addi t ional  amount  
that  i t  expects  to  pay as  a resul t  o f  the unused  
ent i t lement  that  has accumulated at  the  repor t -
ing date.  
 
The Company t reats  accumulated leave ex-
pected to  be  carr ied  forward  beyond twelve  
months,  as  long - term employee  benef i t  for  
measurement  purposes and th is  is  shown under  
long term provis ions in  the Balance Sheet .  
Such long - term compensated absences are  pro -
vided for  based on the actuar ia l  va lua t ion us ing 
the pro jec ted un i t  c red i t  method at  the  year -
end.  Actuar ia l  ga ins / losses are immediate ly  
taken to  the Statement  o f  Other  Comprehens ive  
Income and are no t  deferred.  The Company 
presents  the leave as a  current  l iab i l i t y  in  the 
ba lance sheet ;  to  the extent  i t  does no t  have  
an uncondi t ional  r ight  to  defer  i ts  set t lement  
for  12 -month s i f ter  the repor t ing da tes.  W here 
the Company has the uncondi t ional  legal  and  
contractua l  r ight  to  defer  the set t lement  for  a  
per iod beyond 12 months,  the same is  presen t-
ed as non -current  l iab i l i t y .   

operat ing capac i ty bu t  exc lud ing  borrowing  
cost .  Cost  o f  f in ished  goods exc lud ing  GST.  
Cost  is  determined  on a f i rs t  in  f i rs t  out  bas is .  
 
•  Traded goods a re va lued at  lower o f  cost  and  
net  rea l i zable  va lue.  Cost  inc ludes cost  o f  pur-
chase and other  costs  incurred in  b r ing ing the  
invento r ies  to  the i r  present  locat ion and condi -
t ion.  Cost  is  determined on a f i rs t  in  f i rs t  out  
bas is .  
 
Net rea l i zable  va lue is  the est imated se l l ing  
pr ice in  the ord inary course of  bus iness,  less 
est imated costs  o f  complet ion and the est imated 
costs  necessary to  make  the sa le .  
 
 
2.  15.  Provisions  
 
Provis ions are recognized when the Company 
has a present  ob l igat ion ( legal  or  const ruct ive )  
as  a resul t  o f  a  past  event ,  i t  is  p robable that  
an out f low o f  resources embodying economic  
benef i ts  wi l l  be  requi red  to  set t le  the  ob l igat ion  
and a re l iab le  est imate can be made of  the  
amount  o f  the  ob l igat ion.  W hen the Company 
expects  some or  a l l  o f  a  provis ion to  be re im-
bursed,  for  example,  under an insurance con-
t rac t ,  the re imbursement  is  recognized  as a  
separate asset ,  but  on ly when the re imburse-
ment  is  v i r tua l l y ce r ta in .  The expense  re la t ing  
toa provis ion is  presen ted in  the s ta tement  o f  
prof i t  and loss net  o f  any re imbursement .  I f  the  
ef fec t  o f  the t ime va lue of  money is  mater ia l ,  
provis ions are d iscounted us ing a current  pre -
tax ra te  that  re f lec ts ,  when appropr ia te ,  the 
r isks  spec i f ic  to  the l iab i l i ty .  W hen d iscount ing 
is  used,  the increase in  the provis ion due to  the  
passage of  t ime is  recognized as a f inance cost .   
 
2.16.  Retirement and other employee benef i ts  
 
Defined Contribution p lan  
Ret i rement  benef i t  in  the form of  Provident  
Fund is  def ined  contr ibu t ion scheme.  The Com-
pany has no obl igat ion,  o ther  than the contr ibu-
t ion payable to  the abovement ioned  funds.  The 
Company recognizes contr ibut ion payable  to  the  
providen t  fund scheme as an expense,  when an  
employee renders  the re la ted service.  I f  the  
contr ibut ion payable  to  the scheme fo r  service  
received  before  the ba lance sheet  date  exceeds 
the contr ibu t ion a l ready paid,  the de f ic i t  paya-
b le  to  the  scheme is  recognized as  a l iab i l i t y  
a f ter  deduct ing  the cont r ibut ion a l ready paid.  I f  
the contr ibut ion a l ready paid exceeds the con-
t r ibut ion due for  se rvices received befo re the  
ba lance sheet  da te,  then excess  is  recognized  
as an asset  to  the extent  that  the pre -payment  
wi l l  lead to ,  for  example,  a  reduct ion in  fu ture  
payment  o r  a  cash refund.   
 
Defined benefi t  plan  
The Company has a def ined benef i t  g ratu i t y  
p lan,  which requi res  contr ibut ion to  be made to  
a  separate ly  admin is tered fund.  The  Company’s  
l iab i l i ty  towards th is  benef i t  is  determined  on  
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2.19 Fore ign currencies  
 
The Company’s  f i nanc ia l  s ta tements  are pre -
sented in  which is  a lso the Company’s  funct ion-
a l  currency.  Transact ions in  fore ign  currenc ies 
are in i t ia l l y  recorded  by the Company at  `  spot  
ra te ’  a t  the date  the t ransact ion f i rs t  qual i f ies  
for  recogni t ion.  Moneta ry assets  and l iab i l i t ies  
denominated in  fore ign currenc ies are t rans la ted  
at  the funct ional  currency spot  ra tes of  ex-
change at  the repor t ing date.  
 
Exchange d i f ferences a r is ing on set t lement  o r  
t rans la t ion of  monetary i tems are recognized  in  
s ta tement  o f  pro f i t  and loss.  
 
Non -monetary  i tems tha t  are  measured  in  terms 
of  h is tor ica l  cost  in  a  fore ign currency are t rans-
la ted us ing the exchange rates at  the  ra tes o f  
the in i t ia l  t ransact ions.  On -monetary i tems  
measured at  fa i r  va lue in  a  fore ign currency are  
t rans la ted us ing the exchange rates at  the  ra te 
when the  fa i r  va lue  is  determined.  The gain  o r  
loss ar is ing on t rans la t ion of  non -monetary  
i tems measured at  fa i r  va lue is  t reated in  l ine 
wi th  the recogni t ion of  the ga in or  loss on the 
change in  fa i r  va lue of  the i tem ( i .e .  t rans la t ion  
d i f ferences on i tems whose fa i r  va lue ga in or  
loss is  recognized in  OCI or  s ta tement  o f  p rof i t  
and loss are a lso recognized in  OCI o r  s ta te -
ment  o f  prof i t  and loss,  respect ive ly) .  
 
2.20.  Earnings per Share  
Basic  Earn ings per  share (EPS) amounts  are 
ca lcu la ted by d iv id ing the prof i t  for  the year  a t -
t r ibutab le  to  equi ty ho lders  of  the  company by 
the weighted  average number of  equi ty  shares 
outs tanding dur ing the year .  
 
Di lu ted EPS amounts  are ca lcu la ted by d iv id ing  
the prof i t  a t t r ibutab le to  equi ty ho lders  of  the 
company af ter  ad just ing impact  o f  d i lu t ion  
shares by the weighted average number of  equi -
ty shares outs tanding dur ing the year  p lus  the  
weighted average number of  equi ty shares  that  
would be  issued on  convers ion of  a l l  the d i lu t i ve  
potent ia l  equi ty shares in to  equi ty shares.  
 
 
2.21.  Contingent l iab i l i t ies and assets  
A cont ingent  l iab i l i t y  i s  a  poss ib le  ob l iga t ion  
that  ar ises f rom past  events  whose exis tence 
wi l l  be con f i rmed by the occurrence o r  non—
occurrence of  one or  more uncer ta in  fu ture 
events  not  whol l y wi th in  the contro l  o f  the Com-
pany or  a  present  ob l igat ion that  is  no t  recog-
n ized because i t  is  not  probable that  an out f low 
of  resources wi l l  be requi red to  set t le  the ob l i -
gat ion.  A cont ingent  l iab i l i ty  a lso ar ises in  ex-
t remely rare cases where there is  a  l iab i l i ty  that  
cannot  be recognized  because i t  cannot  be 
measured re l iab ly .  The Company does not  rec-
ognize a cont ingent  l i ab i l i ty  but  d isc loses i ts  
exis tence in  the f inanc ia l  s ta tements .  

 
Terminat ion benefi ts  
The Company recognizes terminat ion  bene-
f i t  as  a l iab i l i ty  and an  expense  when the  
Company has a p resent  ob l igat ion  as a  re-
su l t  o f  past  event ,  i t  is  p robable that  an out -
f low of  resources embodying economic  ben-
ef i ts  wi l l  be requi red  to  set t le  the ob l igat ion  
and a re l iab le  est imate  can be made o f  the  
amount  o f  the ob l igat ion.  I f  the  terminat ion  
benef i t  fa l ls  due for  more than 12 -month 
s i f ter  the ba lance sheet  date,  they are  
measured at  present  va lue of  the fu tu re  
cash f lows us ing  the  d iscount  ra te  deter -
mined by re ference to  market  y ie lds  at  the  
ba lance sheet  da te on the government  
bonds.  
 
2.17 Cash and cash equiva lents  
 
Cash and cash equiva lent  in  the ba lance 
sheet  compr ise cash at  banks and on  hand  
and shor t - term depos i ts  wi th in  o r ig ina l  ma-
tur i t y o f  three  months  or  less,  which  are  
subject  to  an  ins ign i f icant  r isk  o f  changes in  
va lue.  
 
For the purpose of  the  s ta tement  o f  cash 
f lows,  cash and cash equiva lents  cons is t  o f  
cash and shor t - term depos i ts ,  as  def ined 
above,  net  o f  ou ts tanding bank overdraf ts  
as  they are cons idered  an in tegra l  par t  o f  
the Company’s  cash management .  
 
 
2.18.  Other  Financia l  Assets:  
 
The Company c lass i f ies  i ts  f inanc ia l  assets 
in  the fo l lowing measurement  categor ies :  
(1)  Those to  be measured subsequent ly a t  
fa i r  va lue (e i ther  through other  comprehen-
s ive income,  or  through the Statement  o f  
Prof i t  and  Loss) ,  and  
(2)  Those measured  at  amort ized cost .  
 
The c lass i f icat ion depends on the Compa-
ny’s  bus iness model  for  managing the f inan-
c ia l  assets  and the cont ractua l  terms of  the  
cash f lows.  
 
At in i t ia l  recogni t ion,  the Company 
measures a f inanc ia l  asset  a t  i ts  fa i r  va lue.  
Transact ion costs  o f  f inanc ia l  assets  carr ied 
at  fa i r  va lue th rough the  Prof i t  and Loss are 
expensed in  the  Statement  o f  Prof i t  and  
Loss.  
 
The Company measures  the expected cred i t  
loss  assoc iated wi th  i t s  assets  based on 
h is tor ica l  t rend ,  indust ry p ract ices and the  
bus iness envi ronment  in  which  the  ent i t y  
operates or  any other  appropr ia te  bas is .  
The impai rment  methodology appl ied de-
pends on whether  there  has been a s ign i f i -
cant  increase in  cred i t  r i sk .  
 



62nd ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024. Page 55 

 
A cont ingent  asset  is  not  recognized unless 
i t  becomes vi r tua l l y cer ta in  that  an in f low of  
economic  benef i ts  wi l l  a r ise.  W hen an in f low 
of  economic  benef i ts  is  probable,  cont ingent  
assets  are  d isc losed in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta te-
ments .  Cont ingent  l iab i l i t ies  and cont ingent  
assets  are reviewed at  each balance sheet  
date.  
 
2.22 Signif icant  accounting judgments,  
est imates and assumpt ions  
The p reparat ion of  the f inanc ia l  s ta tements  
requi res  management  to  make judgments ,  
es t imates and assumpt ions that  a f fec t  the  
repor ted amounts  of  revenues,  expenses,  
assets  and l iab i l i t ies ,  and the accompanying  
d isc losures,  and the d isc losure of  cont ingent  
l iab i l i t ies .  Uncer ta in ty about  these assump-
t ions and est imates could resul t  in  outcomes  
that  requi re  an ad justment  to  the carry ing  
amount  o f  assets  or  l iab i l i t ies  in  fu ture  per i -
ods.  Di f ference  between actua l  resu l ts  and  
est imates are recognized in  the  per iods  in  
which the resul ts  are known /  mate r ia l ized .  
 
Estimates  and assumpt ions  
The key assumpt ions concern ing the fu ture  
and other  key sources of  es t imat ion  uncer-
ta in ty  a t  the repor t ing  date,  that  have a  s ig-
n i f icant  r isk  o f  caus ing  a  mater ia l  ad jus tment  
to  the carry ing amounts  of  assets  and l iab i l i -
t ies  wi th in  the next  f inanc ia l  year ,  are  de-
scr ibed below.  The  Company has  based  i ts  
assumpt ions and est imates on parameters  
avai lab le  when the f inanc ia l  s ta tements  were  
prepared.  Exis t ing c i rcumstances and as-
sumpt ions about  fu ture developments ,  how-
ever ,  may change due to  market  changes or  
c i rcumstances ar is ing that  are beyond the  
contro l  o f  the  Company.  Such  changes a re  
re f lec ted in  the assumpt ions when they oc-
cur .  
 
In format ion about  the cr i t ica l  judgment  in  
apply ing account ing po l i c ies ,  as  wel l  as  est i -
mated and assumpt ion  that  have not  most  
that  have the most  s ign i f icant  e f fec t  to  the  
carry ing amount  o f  assets  and l iab i l i t ies  
which the  net  f inanc ia l  year ,  are  inc luded in  
the fo l lowing notes:  
 
a)  Measurement  o f  def ined  benef i ts  ob l i -

gat ions –  note no.  19  
b)  Measurement  and l ike l ihood of  occur -

rence of  provis ion note no.  24  
c)  Recogni t ion of  current  tax and de-

ferred tax assets  no te no.7  
d)  Key assumpt ion uses  in  fa i r  va luat ion  

note no.  37  
e)  Measurement  o f  l ease l iab i l i t ies  and  

r ight -of -assets  note no.  5  
f )  Est imat ion of  uncer ta in t ies  re la t ing to  

the g lobal  heal th  pandemic  for  COVID -
19 note no.  52  

 
 

2.23 non-current  assets (or disposal  
groups)  c lassi f ied as held for sale :  
 
To c lass i f y any asset  or  d isposal  groups 
(compr is ing assets  and l iab i l i t ies)  as  
“Asset  /  Disposal  groups held for  sa le”  they 
must  be avai lab le  fo r  immediate sa le  and i ts  
sa le  must  be h igh ly probable.  Such assets  o r  
group of  assets  /  l iab i l i t ies  are presented 
separate ly  in  the  Balance Sheet ,  i n  the  l ine  
“Assets  /  Disposal  groups held for  sa le ”  and  
“L iab i l i t ies  inc luded in  d isposal  group held 
for  sa le”  respect i ve ly.  Once  c lass i f ied as  
he ld for  sa le ,  in tangib le  assets  and  PPE are  
no longer amor t ized o r  deprec ia ted.  Such  
assets  or  d isposal  groups held for  sa le  are  
s ta ted at  the lower o f  carry ing amount  and  
fa i r  va lue less costs  to  se l l .  
 

2.24 Amendment to schedule I I I  Compa-
nies Act ,  2013  
Minis t ry o f  Corporate  A f fa i rs  (MCA) issued  
not i f icat ions dated March 24,2021 to  amend 
schedule I I I  o f  the Companies Act ,  2013 to  
enhance the d isc losures  requi red to  be made 
by the Company in  i ts  f inanc ia l  s ta tements .  
These amendments  are appl icable to  the  
Company for  the f inanc ia l  year  s tar t ing  
Apr i l1 ,2021 and appl ied to  the s tandalone  
f inanc ia l  s ta tements :  
a)  Lease l iab i l i t ies  separate ly d isc losed  

under the  head  f inanc ia l  l iab i l i t ies ,  du-
ly d is t inguished  as current  o r  non -
current .  

b)  Certa in  addi t ional  d isc losures in  the  
s tandalone s ta tements  of  change in  
equi ty such as  change in  equi ty  share  
capi ta l  due to  pr io r  per iod erro r  and  
restated ba lances at  the beginn ing of  
the current  repor t ing  per iod.  

c)  Addi t ional  d isc losure fo r  sharehold ing  
or  promoters  and  promoters ’  group.  

d)  Addi t ional  d isc losure for  ageing sched-
u le  of  t rade  receivable  and t rade  paya-
b le .  

e)  Speci f ic  d isc losure on compl iance wi th  
approved  scheme of  arrangement .  

f )  Addi t ional  d isc losure re la t ing to  Corpo-
rate Soc ia l  Respons ib i l i ty  (CSR) and  
undisc losed income.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of  
IMP Powers Limited (“Under Liquidation”) 
CIN: L31300DN1961PLC000232  
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Disclaimer of Opinion 
 
We were engaged to audit of accompanying financial state-
ments of IMP Powers Limited ("hereinafter referred to as the 
Holding Company"), and its subsidiary (the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary referred together as "the Group") which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement, the consolidated Statement of Chang-
es in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of the signifi-
cant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial state-
ments”). 
 
We do not express an opinion on the accompanying Consoli-
dated Financial Statements of the Company. Because of the 
significance of the matters described in the Basis for Dis-
claimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to pro-
vide a basis for an audit opinion on these Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements.  
 
We draw attention to:  
 
The NCLT, vide its order dated March 29, 2022 (“Insolvency 
Commencement Date”) initiated the Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of the Company under the Code. 
The said NCLT Order also records the appointment of Mr. 
Mukesh Verma as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) 
in accordance with Section 16 of the Code. Subsequently, 
pursuant to the meeting of the Committee of Creditors (the 
“CoC”) confirmed Mr. Mukesh Verma as the Resolution Pro-
fessional (“RP”) for the Company. Upon the application filed 
by CoC, the NCLT has approved the appointment of RP. Fur-
ther resolution plans did not find requisite majority and upon 
decision of the CoC on liquidation. Company went into Liqui-
dation vide NCLT order dated 19th December, 2023 
(“Liquidation Commencement Date”). 
 
In view of the on-going liquidation, the powers of Board of 
Directors remain suspended and hence, as explained to us, 
the powers of directs vests with RP/Liquidator. These audited 
consolidated financial statements are prepared by the Man-
agement of the Company and approved by the liquidator.  
 
The financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 
have been prepared on the basis of the trial balance for the 
period ended March 31, 2024 which is on the basis of the 
carrying balance of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 
2023.  Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Board of 
Directors, whose powers were subsequently suspended dur-
ing the CIRP, had oversight on the management of the affairs 
of the company together with the KMPs for the year ended 

31st March 2023. The primary purpose of preparing the finan-
cial statements is for the compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the rules and regulations framed 
thereunder (“Act”).  
 
We have been informed by Resolution Professional that cer-
tain information including the minutes of meetings of the 
Committee of Creditors and the outcome of certain proce-
dures carried out as a part of the CIRP are confidential in na-
ture and could not be shared with anyone other than the Com-
mittee of Creditors and NCLT. Accordingly, we are unable to 
Comment on the possible financial impact, presentation and 
disclosures, if any, that may arise if we have been provided 
access to that information.  
 
1. As per SA 510, para 10, read with SA 705 (Revised) as 

applicable, when an auditor is unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening balanc-
es, the auditor shall express an opinion (qualified opinion 
or a disclaimer of opinion), as appropriate, in accordance 
with SA 705 (Revised). Since we were unable to obtain 
appropriate audit evidences pertaining to opening balanc-
es to the extent as mentioned in subsequent paras and 
other financial information, (where applicable), we express 
a disclaimer of opinion.  

2. The company has not carried out detailed assessment of 
the useful life of Company’s assets as company is in pro-
gress of updating fixed assets register, so assets wise 
useful life working is not possible, hence depreciation has 
been adjusted, based on past historical trend and not as 
per the notification to Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. We are unable to comment on the impact on state-
ment of Profit & Loss Account.  

3. The company has not complied with Ind AS – 19, with re-
spect to employee benefits. Actuarial valuation certificate 
has not been obtained for gratuity and other post-
employment benefits.  

4. The Company has, on the basis of their internal evaluation, 
valued inventories for the period ended 31st March, 2024 
at Rs. 9,85,22,485. In the view of current Liquidation Pro-
cess followed by liquidation process, and no production 
activities since long time and in absence of valuation re-
port and any supporting papers, we are unable to com-
ment on the realizability of the inventories.  

5. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the company has 
Gross Trade Receivables for Rs. 39,82,93,341 out of 
which no provision for doubtful debt/ECL has been created 
in the previous financial years. Further the said balances 
are aged more-than three years hence, In the view of cur-
rent Liquidation Process followed by liquidation process, 
and no production activities during review period and in 
absence of valuation report and any supporting papers, we 
are unable to comment on the carrying value of the said 
receivables. Further in the absence of sufficient appropri-
ate audit evidence we are unable to review said receiva-
bles and accordingly necessary audit procedures couldn’t 
be performed on the same.  

6. In absence of independent bank confirmations for 4 cur-
rent accounts, as required under SA 505 – External Bal-
ance Confirmation, having a book balance of Rs. 
1,52,464.88 as on March 31, 2024 also non-availability of 
Bank account statements for 4 current accounts having a 
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book balance of Rs. 1,52,464.88 as on March 31, 
2024 led to incomplete supporting for our audit opinion. 
Hence, we are unable to comment on the bank transac-
tions as well as the closing balances as appearing in the 
books of accounts for the said bank balances.  

7. For the period ended 31st March 2024, the company 
has reported “Other Current Assets” includes interest 
accrued/receivables Rs. 6,81,34,772, EMD/ Margin 
Money and Other Deposits Rs. 1,26,09,438 and Bal-
ance with Government Authorities Rs. 49,98,779. The 
said balances are aged and are subject to confirma-
tions. In the view of current Liquidation Process followed 
by liquidation process, and no production activities dur-
ing review period and in absence of any supporting pa-
pers, we are unable to comment on the carrying value of 
the said balances of “Other Current Assets”. Further in 
the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we 
are unable to review said receivables and accordingly 
necessary audit procedures couldn’t be performed on 
the same.  

8. Property, Plant & Equipment - The company has not 
carried out detailed assessment of the useful life of 
Company’s assets as company is in progress of updat-
ing fixed assets register, so assets wise useful life work-
ing is not possible, hence depreciation has been adjust-
ed, based on past historical trend and not as per the 
notification to Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
We are unable to comment on the impact on statement 
of Profit & Loss Account.  

9. In respect of Finance cost we draw attention to note no. 
47 of the standalone financial statement of the Compa-
ny, that it has not provided finance cost related with 
interest expenses for the year ended on March 31, 
2024 as the account of the Company has been classi-
fied as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) by all lenders on 
financial facilities availed from them. Due to non-
provision of the interest expenses, Loss for the year 
ended on March 31, 2024 is understated. Amount is 
not determinable.  

10. The Company is in the process of reconciling direct/
indirect tax related balances as per books of account 
and as per tax records. Accordingly, we are unable to 
comment whether these balances are fairly stated in 
the books  

11. Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern:  

 
a) the company has accumulated losses and its net 

worth has been eroded. The company has incurred 
net loss during the current year and in the earlier 
year(s), the company’s current liabilities exceed its 
current assets and the company has a high debt-
equity ratio as at 31st March, 2024, earnings per 
share is negative.  

 
 
a) Uncertainty in Going Concern due to initiation of liqui-

dation vide order date 19th December, 2023 of 
Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad Bench. Accordingly, audit-
ed consolidated financial results of the Company for 
year ended March 31, 2024 have been reviewed by 
Liquidator. The status of the Company being under 
liquidation and impact arising therefrom as such 

cannot be commented upon by us. However, the consoli-
dated financial statements are prepared on the going 
concern assumption.  

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the finan-
cial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have ob-
tained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
 
1. We draw attention to Note 41 of the standalone Ind AS finan-
cial statements, which states that Powers of the Board of direc-
tors have been suspended on account of ongoing liquidation 
process. These financial statements are signed by the Liquidator 
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Goyal confirming the accuracy and com-
pleteness of the financial statements and thereafter taken on 
record by the Liquidator. Liquidation process has commenced 
with effect from December 19, 2023.  
 
 
2. We draw to Note 42 of the standalone Ind AS financial state-
ments, that Liquidation Process under Section 33 of the Insol-
vency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 has been admitted against 
the Company vide Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad bench vide Order dated 19.12.2023 and Mr. Ravin-
dra Kumar Goyal (having registration no. IBBI/ IPA-001 / IP-P-
02019/2020-2021/13098} has been appointed as Liquidator of 
the company under section 34 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 and Resolution Professional has been discharged. 
Upon the order of Hon’ble NCLT, all the powers of board of direc-
tors shall cease to have effect and shall be vested in the Liquida-
tor.  
 
 
3. Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Loans and 
advances are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.  
 
 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, 
was of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in 
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on this matter.  
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date the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Liquidator/ management are also 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial report-
ing process.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Statement as a whole is free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable as-
surance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstate-
ments can arise from fraud or error and are considered ma-
terial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasona-
bly be expected to influence the economic decisions of us-
ers taken on the basis of the Statement.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise pro-
fessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:  
 
· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detect-
ing a material misstatement resulting from fraud is high-
er than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresenta-
tions, or the override of internal control.  

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) 
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such con-
trols.  

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Liquidator/
Management.  

· Conclude on the appropriateness of the Liquidators‟/ 
Managements‟ use of the going concern basis of ac-
counting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are re-
quired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial results or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

Other Information 
 
The Company’s erstwhile Management, Resolution 
Professional and Liquidator are responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information related with Annual Report is not yet com-
piled.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial state-
ments, our responsibility is to read the other infor-
mation and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
other-wise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other in-
formation, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Liquidator’s/ Management’s responsibilities for the 
standalone financial statement  
 
The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the 
standalone annual financial statements. The Liquida-
tor/Management of the Company are responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to these standalone Ind AS financial State-
ments that gives a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other com-
prehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company and other financial information in ac-
cordance with the applicable accounting standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibil-
ity also includes maintenance of audit trail and ade-
quate accounting records in accordance with the provi-
sions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application. of appro-
priate accounting policies; making judgments and esti-
mates that are reasonable and prudent; and the de-
sign, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effec-
tively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Statement that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, Liq-
uidator/management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, dis-
closing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting un-
less Liquidator/management either intends to liqui-
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to continue as a going concern.  

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the Statement, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Statement represents the underly-
ing transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  

· We communicate with those charged with govern-
ance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

· We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with rele-
vant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (the Order), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure 1’ a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  
 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
  
1. We have sought and except for effects (to the extent 

ascertained) of the matters described in the basis 
of qualified opinion paragraph, obtained all the in-
formation and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pur-
poses of our audit.  

2. Except for the effects (to the extent ascertained) of 
the matter described in the Basis for opinion para-
graph, in our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and proper returns adequate for the purpos-
es of our audit.  

3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of ac-
count.  

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

5. Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated December 19, 
2023, the erstwhile Directors of the Company are 
deemed to have Suspended/resigned/vacated the 
office. Hence, none of the erstwhile Directors con-
tinue as Members of the Board.  

6. The qualification relating to the maintenance of 
accounts and other matters connected there with 

are as stated in the Basis for opinion paragraph.  

7. With respect to the adequacy of the internal finan-
cial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure 2’.  

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:  

 

· The Company has disclosed the impact of pend-
ing litigations on its financial position in its finan-
cial statements – Refer Note No.34.1 in its finan-
cial position in its consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements.  

· The Company did not have any long-term con-
tracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.  

· An amount of Rs. 1,33,831 which was required to 
be transferred to the Investor Education and Pro-
tection Fund by the Holding Company which has 
not been transferred.  

 
 
 
For SHYAM S. GUPTA & ASSOCIATES.,  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number: 007309C 
 
 
 
 
CA Nirav Saiya  
Partner 
Membership No. 179919 
  
Date: 23/05/2024  
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: 24179919BKGWSY5323  
 



IMP POWERS LIMITED.  Page 78 

 requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operat-
ing effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an under-
standing of internal financial controls over financial re-
porting, assessing the risk that a material weakness ex-
ists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of mate-
rial misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Holding Company’s and Subsidiary’s inter-
nal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 
 
A company’s internal financial control over financial re-
porting is a process designed to provide reasonable as-
surance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external pur-
poses in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that 
1. pertains to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles, and that re-
ceipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorization of 
Liquidator/management and directors of the com-
pany; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding preven-
tion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper Liquidator/management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

Annexure - 1 to the Auditor’s Report on the Con-
solidated Financial Statements of IMP Powers 
Limited  
 
In terms of the financials and explanations sought 
by us and given by the Holding Company, its sub-
sidiary which are companies incorporated in India 
and the books of account and records examined by 
us in the normal course of audit and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, we state that:  
 
There are qualification and adverse remarks in the 
Auditor’s Report Order (CARO) of Holding Company 
in clause no. ii(b), vii(a), ix(a) and xvii of the Order.  
 
Annexure - 2 to the Auditor’s Report on the Con-
solidated Financial Statements of IMP Powers 
Limited Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)  
 
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated fi-
nancial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the group which is incorporated in India, as of that 
date.  
 
Liquidator’s/Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls  
The Company‘s Liquidator/management is responsi-
ble for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company con-
sidering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fi-
nancial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘ICAI‘).These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate inter-
nal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s poli-
cies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Holding Company’s and its subsidiary’s internal fi-
nancial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finan-
cial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance 
Note) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over fi-
nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compli-
ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company and its subsidiary Company, 
which are incorporated in India, have, in all material re-
spects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2024 based on the internal control over finan-
cial reporting criteria established by the respective Com-
panies considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  
  
 
For SHYAM GUPTA & ASSOCIATES.,  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number: 007309C 
 
 
 
 
CA Nirav Saiya  
Partner 
Membership No. 179919 
  
Date: 23-05-2024 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: 24179919BKGWSY5323  
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Notes to Financial Consolidated 
Statements 

 
Note 1:  Corporate information 
 
The  conso l ida ted f inancia l  s tatements  com-
pr ise f inancia l  s ta tements  of  IMP Powers  L im-
i ted ( " the company" )  and i ts  subsid iary  of  IMP 
Energy  L imi ted (col lect i vely ,  " the Group")  for  
the  year  ended March 31,  2024.  The  Company  
is  a  publ ic  Company domic i led in  Ind ia  and in -
corpora ted u prov is ions  of  the Compan ies  Act  
app l icable in  Ind ia .  The Group’s  pr inc ipa l  bus i -
ness is  manufactur ing of  t ransformers  and is  
set t ing up o f  smal l  and min i  hydro power  
plants  Company’s  shares are l is ted on two rec-
ognized s tock exchanges in  Ind ia .    
 
Note  2:  Bas is  of  Prepara t ion,  Bas is  of  Consol i -
da t ion  and  Summary  of  s ign i f i cant  account ing 
po l ic ies   
 
2 .1.  Bas is  of  account ing and prepara t ion of  
f inancia l  s ta tements   
 
The f inancia l  s ta tements  of  the group have  
been prepared in  accordance with  Ind ian Ac-
count ing Standards ( Ind  AS)  not i f ied  under  the  
Companies  ( Ind ian Account ing Standards)  
Ru les ,  2015.For  a l l  per iods up to and  inc lud ing  
the  year  ended  March  31,  2021,  the Group 
prepared i ts  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  in  accord-
ance wi th  the  account ing standards not i f ied  
under  sec t ion 133 of  the Companies  Act  2013,  
read together  with  paragraph 7 of  the Compa-
nies  (Accounts )  Rules ,  2014 ( Ind ian  GAAP).  
These f inancia l  s tatements  have been pre-
pared on a h is tor ica l  cost  bas is  except  fo r  the  
cer ta in  assets  and l iab i l i t ies  wh ich have been  
measured a t  fa i r  va lue:   
 
2 .2 Basis  of  Consol ida t ion  
 
The  conso l ida ted f inancia l  s tatements  com-
pr ise the f inancia l  s ta tements  of  the Company  
and i ts  subs id ia r ies  as  at  March 31,  2023.  
Contro l  is  ach ieved when the Group is  ex-
posed,  o r  has r igh ts ,  to  var iab le re turns f rom 
i ts  invo lvement with  the  inves tee and has the  
ab i l i ty  to  af fect  those returns th rough i ts  pow-
er  over  the inves tee.  Speci f ica l l y ,  the Group 
contro ls  an inves tee i f  and only  i f  the Group 
has:   
 
• Power over  the investee ( i .e . ,  ex is t ing r igh ts  
that  g ive i t  the current  abi l i ty  to  d i rec t  the re l -
evant ac t iv i t ies  of  the investee)   
• Exposure,  or  r ights ,  to  var iab le  re turns f rom 
i ts  involvement wi th  the inves tee,  and  

• The abi l i ty  to  use  i ts  power over  the investee 
to a f fec t  i ts  retu rns  
 
General ly ,  there is  a  presumpt ion that  a  major i t y  
of  vo t ing r ights  resul t  in  cont ro l .  To  suppor t  th is  
presumption and when the Group has less  than a 
major i ty  of  the vot ing or  s imi la r  r igh ts  of  an in -
vestee,  the Group considers  a l l  re levant fac ts  
and c i rcumstances in  assess ing whether  i t  has 
power over  an investee,  inc lud ing:  
 
• The cont rac tua l  a rrangement with  the o ther  
vote ho lders  of  the investee  
• R ights  ar is ing f rom other  contractual  arrange-
ments  
• The Group’s  vot ing  r ights  and  potent ia l  vot ing 
r igh ts  
• The s i ze of  the Group’s  hold ing of  vo t ing r ights  
re lat ive  to  the s i ze and d ispers ion  of  the ho ld -
ings  of  the other  vot ing r igh ts  holders  
 
The  Group re -assesses whether  or  not  i t  cont ro ls  
an inves tee i f  fac ts  and c i rcumstances ind ica te 
that  there are changes  to one or  more of  the 
three e lements  of  contro l .  Conso l idat ion of  a  
subs id ia ry  beg ins  when the Group obta ins  contro l  
over  the subs id ia ry  and  ceases when the Group 
loses contro l  of  the subsid ia ry .  Assets ,  l iab i l i t ies ,  
income and  expenses  of  a  subsid ia ry  acqu ired or  
d isposed of  dur ing the year  a re inc luded in  the 
conso l idated f inancia l  s ta tements  f rom the date 
the Group ga ins  contro l  unt i l  the date the Group 
ceases to contro l  the subsid ia ry .  
 
Conso l idated f inancia l  s ta tements  a re prepared 
us ing uni form account ing pol ic ies  for  l ike trans -
act ions and o ther  events  in  s imi lar  c i rcumstanc -
es .  I f  a  member of  the group uses account ing 
po l ic ies  other  than those adopted in  the conso l i -
dated  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  for  l ike transact ions 
and events  in  s imi la r  c i rcumstances,  appropr iate  
ad jus tments  a re  made to that  group member’s  
f inanc ia l  s tatements  in  prepar ing the conso l idat -
ed f inanc ia l  s ta tements  to  ensure  conformity  
wi th  the Group’s  account ing pol ic ies .   
 
The f inancia l  s ta tements  of  a l l  en t i t ies  used fo r  
the purpose  of  consol idat ion a re d rawn up to 
same repor t ing date  as  that  of  the parent compa-
ny,  i . e . ,  year  ended on March 31.  When the end 
of  the report ing per iod of  the parent is  d i f ferent  
f rom that  of  a  subs id iary ,  the subsid iary  pre -
pares,  for  conso l idat ion  purposes,  add it ional  f i -
nancia l  informat ion in  accordance wi th  Ind AS o f 
the same date as  the f inancia l  s tatements  of  the 
parent to  enable the parent to  consol ida te the 
f inanc ia l  informat ion  of  the  subsid iary ,  un less  i t  
is  imprac t icable to  do so .  
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Consol ida t ion procedure 
 
a. Combine l ike i tems of  assets ,  l iabi l i -

t ies ,  equi ty ,  income,  expenses  and  
cash f lows  of  the parent with  those of  
i ts  subs id ia r ies .  For  th is  purpose,  in -
come and expenses of  the subs id iary  
are  based  on the amounts  of  the  as -
sets  and l iabi l i t ies  recognized in  the  
conso l idated f inancia l  s ta tements  a t  
the acquis i t ion date.  

b.  Of fset  (e l iminate)  the carry ing amount  
of  the  parent’s  inves tment  in  subs id i -
ary  and the parent’s  por t ion of  equ ity  
of  each  subsid iary .  Bus iness  combina-
t ions po l icy  expla ins  how to account fo r  
any re la ted goodwi l l .  

c .  E l iminate in  fu l l  interg roup assets  and  
l iab i l i t ies ,  equi ty ,  income,  expenses  
and cash f lows re lat ing to  t ransact ions  
between ent i t ies  of  the  group (prof i ts  
or  losses resu lt ing  f rom in tergroup 
transact ions that  a re recogn ized in  as -
sets ,  such as  inventory  and f i xed as -
sets ,  are e l iminated in  fu l l ) .  Intergroup 
losses may  ind icate an impai rment that  
requi res  recogn it ion in  the  conso l idat -
ed f inancia l  s ta tements .  Ind AS12 In -
come Taxes  appl ies  to  temporary  d i f fer -
ences that  ar ise  f rom the  e l iminat ion  
of  prof i ts  and losses result ing f rom in -
te rgroup t ransact ions.  

 
Pro f i t  or  loss  and each  component of  o ther  
comprehens ive income (OCI )  are at tr ibuted  
to the equ ity  ho lders  of  the parent of  the  
Group and to the non-contro l l ing in teres ts ,  
even i f  th is  resu l ts  in  the non-cont ro l l ing in -
te res ts  hav ing a  def ic i t  ba lance.  When nec-
essary ,  ad jus tments  a re made to the f inan-
c ia l  s ta tements  of  subs id iar ies  to  br ing thei r  
account ing  pol ic ies  in to l ine with  the Group’s  
account ing po l ic ies .  A l l  in t ra -g roup assets  
and l iabi l i t ies ,  equ ity ,  income,  expenses and  
cash f lows re la t ing to  t ransact ions between 
members  of  the Group are  e l iminated  in  fu l l  
on conso l idat ion .  
 
A change in  the ownership interes t  of  a  sub-
s id ia ry ,  w i thout a  loss  o f  cont ro l ,  is  account-
ed fo r  as  an equ ity  t ransact ion.  
I f  the Group loses  cont ro l  over  a  subsid iary ,  
i t :  
 
• Derecogn ises the assets  ( inc lud ing good -
wi l l )  and l iabi l i t ies  of  the subsid iary  
 
• Derecognises the car ry ing amount of  any  
no cont ro l l ing  in terests  
 

• Derecognises the  cumula t ive trans la t ion  d i f fer -
ences recorded in  equi ty  
 
• Recogn ises the fa i r  va lue of  the cons idera t ion 
received  
 
• Recogn ises the fa i r  va lue of  any inves tment  
re ta ined  
 
• Recognises any surplus  or  def ic i t  in  prof i t  o r  
loss  
 
• Rec lass i f ies  the parent’s  share of  components  
prev ious ly  recognized in  OCI  to  prof i t  or  loss  or  
re ta ined earn ings,  as  appropr ia te,  as  wou ld  be  
requi red  i f  the Group had d irect ly  d isposed of  the  
re lated assets  o r  l iabi l i t ies  
 
IMP Energy  L imited is  cons idered in  the consol i -
dated  f inancia l  s ta tements .  
 
2 .3.  Bus iness Combinat ion 
 
As  such,  Ind ian GAAP balances re lat ing to  bus i -
ness combinat ions entered into before that  date  
have been carr ied forward wi th  min imal  ad jus t -
ment.  
 
Bus iness combinat ions are accounted for  us ing 
the  acquis i t ion method.  The cost  of  an acqu is i -
t ion is  measured as  the  aggregate of  the cons id -
era t ion transferred measured at  fa i r  va lue as  on 
acqu is i t ion  date  and the amount o f  any non -
contro l l ing interes ts  in  the acqu iree.  For  each 
bus iness combinat ion,  the Group e lec ts  whether  
to  measure the non-contro l l ing in teres ts  in  the 
acqu iree at  fa i r  va lue  or  a t  the  proport ionate  
share o f  the acquiree’s  ident i f iable net  assets .  
Acquis i t ion- re lated cos ts  are expensed as  in -
curred.   
 
At  the acqu is i t ion date ,  the ident i f iable assets  
acqu ired and the l iab i l i t ies  assumed are recog -
n ized a t  thei r  acqu is i t ion date fa i r  va lues.  
 
Any  cont ingent cons iderat ion to be  t ransfer red  by  
the  acqu irer  is  recogn ized  a t  fa i r  va lue  at  the 
acqu is i t ion  date.  Cont ingent cons iderat ion c las -
s i f ied  as  an asset  or  l iab i l i ty  that  is  a  f inancia l  
inst rument and with in  the scope o f  Ind AS 109 
Financia l  Ins truments ,  i s  measured  a t  fa i r  va lue 
wi th  changes in  fa i r  va lue  recognized in  the  
sta tement  of  prof i t  and loss .  I f  the cont ingent 
cons iderat ion is  not  wi th in  the  scope o f  Ind AS 
109,  i t  is  measured in  accordance wi th  the ap -
propr ia te Ind AS.  Cont ingent cons iderat ion that  
is  c lass i f ied as  equ i ty  is  not  re -measured  at  sub-
sequent report ing  dates  and subsequent ly  i ts  
set t lement is  accounted  for  w i th in  equi ty .  
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Goodwi l l  is  in i t ia l ly  measured a t  cos t ,  being  
the excess of  the aggregate of  the considera-
t ion t ransfer red and the  amount recognized for  
non-contro l l ing in terests ,  and any prev ious in -
te res t  he ld ,  over  the net  ident i f iab le assets  
acqu ired and l iab i l i t ies  assumed.  Any gain  on  
a  barga in purchase is  recogn ized in  o ther  com-
prehensive income and accumulated in  equ ity  
as  capi ta l  reserve i f  there exis ts  c lear  ev i -
dence,  of  the under ly ing reasons fo r  c lass i fy -
ing the bus iness combinat ion as  resu l t ing in  a  
bargain purchase;  o therwise,  the gain  is  recog-
n ized in  equi ty  as  capi ta l  reserve.   
 
Af ter  in i t ia l  recogni t ion,  goodwi l l  is  measured  
at  cos t  less  any accumulated impa irment loss -
es .  For  the purpose o f  impai rment tes t ing,  
goodwi l l  acqu ired in  a  bus iness combinat ion 
is ,  f rom the acquis i t ion date ,  a l located to each  
of  the Group’s  cash-genera t ing un i ts  that  are  
expected to benef i t  f rom the combinat ion,  i r re -
spect ive of  whether  o ther  assets  o r  l iab i l i t ies  
of  the acqu iree  are ass igned to those uni ts .  
 
Cash generat ing uni t  to  wh ich goodwi l l  has  
been a l located is  tes ted for  impai rment annu-
a l ly ,  o r  more f requent ly  when there is  an  ind i -
cat ion that  the uni t  may be impa ired .  I f  the  
recoverable amount of  the cash generat ing  
uni t  i s  less  than i t  car ry ing amount ,  the  im-
pai rment loss  is  a l located f i rs t  to  reduce the  
carry ing amount of  any  goodwi l l  a l located to  
the un i t  and then to the other  assets  of  the 
uni t  pro ra ta  based on the carry ing amount of  
each asset  in  the uni t .  Any impa irment loss  fo r  
goodwi l l  i s  recognized in  the s ta tement  of  prof -
i t  and loss .  An impa irment  loss  recogn ized for  
goodwi l l  is  not  reversed in  subsequent per i -
ods.   
 
Where goodwi l l  has been a l located to a  cash -
genera t ing uni t  and par t  of  the opera t ion  wi th -
in  that  un i t  is  d isposed  of ,  the goodwi l l  assoc i -
ated  wi th  the d isposed operat ion is  inc luded in  
the carry ing amount of  the operat ion when de-
termin ing the ga in or  loss  on d isposal .  Good-
wi l l  d isposed in  these c i rcumstances is  meas-
ured based on the re la t ive va lues of  the  d is -
posed opera t ion and the por t ion of  the cash  
genera t ing un i t  reta ined .  
 
2 .4 Change in  account ing pol ic ies  
 
2 .4.1 Account ing for  leases  
 
The Company’s  lease asset  c lasses pr imar i l y  
cons ist  of  leases for  Bui ld ing .  The Company  
assesses whether  a  cont rac t  is  conta ins  a  
lease,  a t  incept ion  of  a  contrac t .  A contrac t  is ,  

or  conta ins ,  a  lease i f  the contrac t  conveys  the 
r igh t  to  contro l  the use of  an  ident i f ied  asset  fo r  
a  per iod of  t ime in  exchange for  cons iderat ion .  
To  assess whether  a  cont rac t  conveys  the r ight  
to  contro l  the use of  an ident i f ied  asset ,  the 
Company assesses  whether :   
 
i )   the contract  invo lves the use of  an ident i -

f ied  asset   
i i )  the Company has subs tant ia l ly  a l l  of  the  

economic benef i ts  f rom use of  the asset  
through the per iod of  the lease and  

i i i )  the Company has the r ight  to  d i rect  the use  
of  the asset .   

 
At  the  date of  commencement of  the lease,  the  
Company recognizes a  r igh t -of -use asset  (“ROU” )  
and a cor responding  lease l iab i l i t y  fo r  a l l  lease 
arrangements  in  wh ich i t  is  a  lessee,  except fo r  
leases wi th  a  term of  twelve months or  less  
(short - term leases )  and  leases  of  low va lue as -
sets .  For  these shor t - te rm and leases of  low val -
ue assets ,  the Company recogn izes the lease  
payments  as  an operat ing expense on  a s t ra igh t -
l ine bas is  over  the term of  the lease.   
 
The r igh t -of -use assets  are in i t ia l ly  recognized at  
cost ,  which compr ises  the in i t ia l  amount of  the  
lease l iabi l i ty  ad jus ted  for  any lease payments  
made at  or  pr io r  to  the  commencement date o f  
the lease plus  any in i t ia l  d i rec t  cos ts  less  any 
lease incent ives .  They are subsequent ly  meas -
ured a t  cos t  less  accumulated deprec iat ion and 
impa irment  losses,  i f  any .  Right -of -use assets  
are deprec ia ted f rom the commencement date on 
a  stra igh t - l ine bas is  over  the shorter  of  the lease  
term.   
 
The lease l iab i l i t y  is  in i t ia l ly  measured a t  the  
present  va lue of  the fu ture  lease  payments .  The 
lease payments  are d iscounted us ing  the interes t  
rate impl ic i t  in  the lease or ,  i f  not  readi ly  deter -
minable,  us ing  the  incrementa l  borrowing rates .  
The lease l iab i l i ty  is  subsequent ly  remeasured by  
increas ing the car ry ing amount to  ref lec t  in terest  
on the  lease l iabi l i ty  and reducing the carry ing 
amount to  ref lec t  the  lease payments  made.   
 
A  lease l iab i l i ty  is  remeasured upon the  occur -
rence of  cer ta in  events  such as  a  change in  the  
lease term or  a  change in  an index or  ra te used 
to determine lease payments .  The remeasure-
ment  normal ly  a lso  adjusts  the leased assets .  
Lease  l iabi l i ty  and ROU asset  have been sepa -
rately  presented in  the  Balance Sheet and  lease 
payments  have been c lass i f ied as  f inanc ing cash 
f lows.  
 
The  Company  has lease cont rac ts  that  inc lude 
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extens ion and terminat ion opt ions.  These  
opt ions a re  negot iated  by  management to  
prov ide f lex ibi l i ty  in  managing the leased -
asset  por t fo l io  and again the Company’s  
bus iness needs.  Management  exerc ise  s igni f -
icant  judgment in  determining whether  the-
ses extens ion and terminat ion opt ion a re  
reasonably  cer ta in  to  be  exerc ised  (see  Note  
5) .  
 
 
2 .4.2  Current  versus  non-current  c lass i f i ca -
t ion 
 
The Company presents  assets  and l iabi l i t ies  
in  the ba lance sheet  based on cur rent/non -
current  c lass i f icat ion .  An asset  is  t rea ted as  
current  when i t  is :  
·   Expected to be rea l i zed  or  in tended to  

be  so ld  or  consumed in  normal    oper -
at ing cyc le.  

·   Held  pr imar i l y  fo r  the purpose of  t rad-
ing  

·   Expected  to be  real i zed with in  twelve  
months af ter  the repor t ing per iod,  or  

·   Cash or  cash equiva lent  unless  re-
s tr ic ted  f rom be ing exchanged  or  used  
to Set t le  a  l iabi l i ty  for  at  leas t  twe lve  
months af ter  the repor t ing per iod  

 
A l l  o ther  assets  are  c lass i f ied as  non-
current .  
 
A  l iabi l i ty  is  cur rent  when:  
·   I t  is  expected to  be sett led  in  normal  

opera t ing cyc le  
·   I t  is  held  pr imar i ly  for  the  purpose of  

t rad ing  
·   I t  is  due to be set t led with in  twelve  

months af ter  the repor t ing per iod,  or  
·   There  is  no uncondi t ional  r ight  to  de-

fer  the set t lement  of  the l iabi l i ty  fo r  a t  
leas t  twelve months af ter  the repor t ing  
per iod  

 
The  Company  c lass i f ies  a l l  o ther  l iab i l i t ies  as  
non-current .   
 
Defer red  tax  assets  and  l iabi l i t ies  are c lass i -
f ied  as  noncur rent  assets  and l iabi l i t ies .  
 
 
 
The opera t ing cyc le is  the t ime between the  
acqu is i t ion  of  assets  fo r  process ing and the ir  
rea l i za t ion  in  cash  and  cash equiva lents .  The  
Company has ident i f ied  twe lvemonths as  i ts  
opera t ing cyc le.  
 

2 .4.3 Revenue recogni t ion 
 
Revenue f rom Products : Revenue f rom sa le o f  
products  and serv ices  are recogn ized at  a  t ime 
at  which the proper t ies  in  goods a re transferred 
to the buyer .  In  determining  whether  an ent i ty  
has r ight  to  payment,  the ent i t y  shal l  cons ider  
whether  i t  would  have  an enforceable r igh t  to  
demand or  re ta in  payment for  good suppl ied.  
Revenue is  recognized a t  the transact ion pr ice.  
Transact ion pr ice is  the  amount of  cons idera t ion 
to  which  a  company  expects  to  be ent i t led  in  ex -
change fo r  t ransferr ing  promised goods  or  ser -
v ices  to  a  cus tomer,  exc lud ing amounts  col lected 
on behalf  of  th i rd  par t ies .  
The Company does not  expect  to  have any con -
tracts  where  the per iod  between the  t ransfer  o f  
the promised goods or  serv ices  to the customer 
and payment by  the cus tomer exceeds one year .  
As  a  consequence,  i t  does not  ad jus t  any of  the  
transact ion pr ices  fo r  the t ime va lue of  money.  
In teres t  and  D iv idend  Income:  Interest  income is  
recogn ized on a t ime propor t ion bas is  tak ing into  
account  the  amount  outs tand ing  and the ra te 
app l icable.  D iv idend income is  recognized when 
the shareholders ’  r igh t  to  receive d iv idend is  es -
tabl ished .  
Insurance C la im:  C la ims  rece ivable are account -
ed a t  the  t ime when such income has been  
earned by  the Company depend ing  on  the cer -
ta inty  of  rece ipts .  
Rent :  Rent Income is  recognized on the accrual  
bas is  based  on agreement entered by  the Compa-
ny wi th  the tenants  
The  speci f ic  recogn i t ion  cr i te r ia  descr ibed be low 
must a lso be met before  revenue is  recognized .  
 
2 .4.4.  Expor t  incent ives  
 
Expor t  Incent ives  such  as  Merchandise Export  
Incent ive  Scheme,  is  recognized in  the Statement  
of  Pro f i t  and Loss as  a  part  of  o ther  operat ing 
revenues.  
 
 
2 .4.5 Taxes  
 
Current  income tax 
 
Current  income tax assets  and l iabi l i t ies  are  
measured a t  the amount expected to be recov-
ered f rom or  paid  to  the  taxat ion author i t ies .  The 
tax ra tes  and  tax  laws used  to compute the  
amount are those that  are enacted or  subs tan -
t ively  enacted,  a t  the  report ing date in  Ind ia  
where the Company operates  and genera tes  taxa -
ble income.  
 
Current  income tax re la t ing to  i tems recogn ized 
outs ide prof i t  o r  loss  is  recogn ized outs ide prof i t  
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or  loss  (e i ther  in  o ther  comprehens ive income 
or  in  equ ity ) .  Current  tax i tems are recognized 
in  correlat ion to the under ly ing transact ion  
ei ther  in  s ta tement  of  prof i t  and loss  or  d i rec t -
ly  in  equi ty .  Management  per iod ica l l y  evalu-
ates  pos i t ions  taken  in  the tax returns  wi th  
respect  to  s i tuat ions in  wh ich app l icable tax  
regu la t ions are subjec t  to  in terpretat ion and  
establ ishes prov is ions where appropr ia te.   
 
Defer red  tax 
 
Defer red tax is  prov ided us ing the l iab i l i t y  
method on  temporary  d i f ferences between the 
tax bases of  assets  and l iabi l i t ies  and thei r  
carry ing amounts  for  f inancia l  repor t ing pur -
poses a t  the repor t ing date .  Defer red  tax  l ia -
bi l i t ies  a re  recognized for  a l l  taxable tempo-
rary  d i f ferences,  except:   
 
When the deferred tax l iabi l i ty  ar ises  f rom the  
in i t ia l  recogn i t ion of  an  asset  o r  l iabi l i ty  in  a  
t ransact ion that  is  not  a  bus iness combinat ion  
and,  a t  the  t ime of  the transact ion,  af fec ts  
nei ther  the account ing prof i t  nor  taxable prof i t  
or  loss    
 
Defer red tax assets  are  recognized for  a l l  de-
duct ib le temporary  d i f ferences,  the car ry  for -
ward o f  unused  tax  c red i ts  and  any  unused tax  
losses.  Defer red tax assets  are recogn ized to  
the  extent  that  i t  is  probable that  taxable  prof -
i t  wi l l  be avai lable aga inst  wh ich  the deduct i -
b le temporary  d i f ferences and the carry  fo r -
ward of  unused tax credi ts  and unused tax  
losses can be u t i l ized,  except:   
 
When the defer red  tax  asset  re la t ing to  the  
deduct ib le temporary  d i f fe rence a r ises  f rom 
the in i t ia l  recogni t ion of  an asset  o r  l iabi l i ty  in  
a  t ransact ion that  is  not  a  bus iness combina-
t ion and,  a t  the t ime of  the transact ion,  af -
fec ts  nei ther  the  account ing prof i t  nor  taxable  
prof i t  o r  loss  
 
The  car ry ing amount of  deferred tax assets  is  
rev iewed a t  each repor t ing date and reduced  
to the extent  that  i t  is  no longer  probable that  
suf f ic ient  taxable prof i t  w i l l  be avai lable to  
a l low a l l  or  part  of  the deferred tax asset  to  be  
ut i l i zed.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets  a re  
re -assessed at  each repor t ing date and are  
recogn ized to the extent  that  i t  has become 
probable that  future taxable prof i ts  w i l l  a l low 
the deferred tax asset  to  be recovered.  
 
Defer red  tax  assets  and l iabi l i t ies  are meas-
ured at  the tax  ra tes  that  a re  expected to  ap -
ply  in  the year  when the asset  is  real i zed or  

the l iabi l i ty  i s  set t led,  based on tax ra tes  (and 
tax laws )  that  have been enacted or  subs tant ive-
ly  enacted at  the repor t ing date.  
 
Defer red  tax  re lat ing  to  i tems recogn ized outs ide  
prof i t  or  loss  is  recogn ized outs ide prof i t  o r  loss  
(e i ther  in  other  comprehensive income or  in  equ i -
ty ) .  Deferred tax i tems are recogn ized in  cor re la -
t ion to the under ly ing t ransact ion nei ther  in  OCI  
nor  d i rec t ly  in  equi ty .  
 
Defer red tax assets  and deferred tax l iab i l i t ies  
are of fset  i f  a  legal ly  enforceable r igh t  exis ts  to  
set  of f  cur rent  tax assets  agains t  current  tax l ia -
bi l i t ies  and the deferred  taxes re la te  to  the  same 
taxable ent i ty  and  the same taxat ion author i ty .    
 
 
 
 
Goods  and  Serv ice  Tax/ va lue added  taxes  paid  
on acqu is i t ion of  assets  o r  on incurr ing  expenses  
 
Expenses and assets  a re recognized net  of  the 
amount of  GST/  pa id ,  except:  
 
·  When the tax incurred on a purchase of  as -

sets  or  serv ices  is  not  recoverable f rom the  
taxat ion author i ty ,  in  which case,  the tax  
paid  is  recogn ized as  par t  of  the cos t  of  
acqu is i t ion of  the asset  o r  as  part  of  the  
expense i tem,  as  app l icable  

 
·  When rece ivables  and payables  are sta ted  

wi th  the amount of  tax inc luded the net  
amount of  tax recoverable f rom,  or  payable  
to ,  the taxat ion author i ty  is  inc luded  as  
par t  of  rece ivables  or  payables  in  the bal -
ance sheet.  

 
2 .4.6 Proper ty ,  p lant  and equipment  
 

Proper ty ,  p lant  and equipment is  s ta ted  
at  cos t ,  net  of  accumulated  deprec iat ion 
and accumulated impa irment losses,  i f  
any .  Cap ita l  work  in  progress  is  s tated  at  
cost .  Cos t  compr ises the purchase pr ice  
and any at tr ibutable cost  of  br ing ing as -
set  to  i ts  work ing condi t ion  fo r  i ts  in tend-
ed use on ly .  Such cost  inc ludes the cos t  
of  rep lac ing par t  of  the  plant  and equip-
ment and borrowing costs  for  long- term 
cons truct ion  pro jec ts  i f  the recogni t ion  
cr i te r ia  a re met.  Subsequent  expendi ture  
re lated to an i tem of  f i xed asset  is  added  
to i ts  book va lue  on ly  i f  i t  increases the  
future benef i ts  f rom the exis t ing asset  
beyond  i ts  prev ious ly  assessed  standard 
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of  performance.  When s ign i f icant  
par ts  of  p lant  and equipment are re-
qui red to be replaced at  in tervals ,  the  
Company deprec ia tes  them separa te ly  
based on the ir  speci f ic  usefu l  l ives .  
L ikewise,  when a major  inspect ion is  
performed,  i ts  cos t  is  recogn ized in  
the carry ing amount of  the plant  and  
equ ipment as  a  rep lacement i f  the  
recogn it ion cr i te r ia  are  sat is f ied.  A l l  
other  repai r  and main tenance cos ts  
are recognized in  prof i t  or  loss  as  in -
curred.   
 
Deprec iat ion is  ca lculated as  per  
schedu le I I  of  the compan ies  ac t  
2013 on a s tra igh t - l ine bas is  us ing  
the ra tes  a rr ived a t  based on the use-
fu l  l ives  es t imated by  the manage-
ment.  The Company has  used the fo l -
lowing usefu l  l ives  to  prov ide  deprec i -
at ion on i ts  f i xed assets .  The ident i -
f ied  components  are deprec iated over  
the ir  usefu l  l ives ;  the  remaining asset  
is  deprec iated over  the l i fe  of  the  
pr inc ipa l  asset .  

 
 
Asset  C lass  Usefu l  l i fe  
Bui ld ings     30 years   
P lant  & Machinery     15 years  
Sof tware      6 years  
Ai r  Condi t ion ing Equipment   8 years  
Furn i ture & Fix tures     10 years  
Of f ice Equ ipment    5 years  
Motor  Veh ic les    8 years  
Computer  Servers    3 years  
Elec tr ica l  Ins ta l la t ions   10 years  
 
The  management be l ieves that  the deprec ia -
t ion rates  fa i r ly  ref lec t  i ts  es t imation of  the  
usefu l  l ives  and res idua l  va lues o f  the f i xed  
assets .  
 
An i tem of  proper ty ,  p lant  and equ ipment  
and any s ign i f i cant  par t  in i t ia l ly  recogn ized  
is  derecogn ized  upon d isposal  o r  when no  
future economic benef i ts  are  expected f rom 
i ts  use or  d isposa l .  Any  gain  or  loss  a r is ing  
on derecogni t ion  of  the  asset  (ca lcu la ted  as  
the d i f fe rence between the net  d isposal  pro -
ceeds and the carry ing amount of  the asset)  
is  inc luded in  the income s ta tement when  
the asset  is  derecogn ized.  
 
The  res idual  va lues,  usefu l  l ives  and meth -
ods of  deprec ia t ion of  property ,  p lant  and  
equ ipment are rev iewed at  each f inancia l  
year  end and  adjusted  prospect ive ly ,  i f  ap-
propr ia te.  

 
2 .4.7 In tangib le  assets  
 
Intangib le  assets  acqui red separa te ly  a re  meas -
ured on in i t ia l  recogn i t ion a t  cos t .  Fo l lowing in i -
t ia l  recogn i t ion,  in tang ible assets  a re  carr ied at  
cost  less  any accumula ted amor t i za t ion and ac-
cumula ted impa irment losses.  In ternal ly  genera t -
ed in tangib les ,  exc lud ing cap i ta l i zed deve lop -
ment cos ts ,  a re  not  capi ta l i zed  and the re la ted 
expendi tu re  is  ref lec ted in  s ta tement of  prof i t  
and loss  in  the per iod in  wh ich  the expend itu re  is  
incurred.  
 
The usefu l  l ives  of  in tang ible assets  are as -
sessed as  e i ther  in f in i te  or  f in i te .  
 
Intangib le assets  wi th  f in i te  l ives  a re amor t ized 
over  the usefu l  economic l i fe  and assessed fo r  
impa irment whenever  there is  an ind icat ion that  
the  in tangib le asset  may be impa ired.  The amor-
t i za t ion per iod and the  amor t i za t ion method for  
an in tang ible asset  with  a  f in i te  usefu l  l i fe  are  
rev iewed  a t  leas t  a t  the end of  each repor t ing 
per iod.  Changes  in  the expected usefu l  l i fe  or  the 
expected pat tern o f  consumption of  fu ture eco-
nomic benef i ts  embodied in  the  asset  are consid -
ered to mod ify  the amort izat ion per iod  or  meth -
od,  as  appropr ia te,  and  are t reated as  changes 
in  account ing  es t imates.  The amor t i zat ion  ex -
pense on in tang ible assets  wi th  f in i te  l ives  is  
recogn ized in  the s ta tement  of  prof i t  and  loss  
unless  such  expend i ture fo rms par t  of  car ry ing 
va lue  of  another  asset .  
 
Intangib le assets  wi th  inf in i te  usefu l  l ives  are 
not  amort i zed,  but  are tested for  impa irment an -
nual ly ,  e i ther  ind iv idual l y  o r  a t  the  cash-
genera t ing un it  level .  The assessment of  inf in i te  
l i fe  is  rev iewed annua l ly  to  determine whether  
the  inf in i te  l i fe  cont inues to be suppor tab le.  I f  
not ,  the change in  usefu l  l i fe  f rom indef in i te to  
f in i te  is  made on a prospect ive bas is .  
 
Gains  or  losses ar is ing f rom derecogn it ion of  an 
intang ib le asset  are measured  as  the  d i f ference  
between the net  d isposa l  proceeds and the carry -
ing amount  of  the asset  and a re  recognized in  
the  s tatement  of  prof i t  and loss  when  the  asset  
is  derecogn ized.  
 
Intangib le assets  a re  amort i zed on s t ra ight  l ine 
method asunder:  
·  Sof tware expend itu re  is  amor t ized over  a  

per iod of  th ree years .  
·  Technical  Knowhow expend i ture is  amor-

t i zed over  a  per iod of  ten years .  
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2.4.8 Bor rowing cos ts  
 
Bor rowing cos ts  d i rec t l y  att r ibutable to  the ac-
quis i t ion,  cons truct ion or  product ion of  an as -
set  that  necessar i ly  takes a  subs tant ia l  per iod  
of  t ime to get  ready for  i ts  in tended  use or  
sa le  are cap ita l ized as  par t  of  the  cos t  of  the  
asset .  A l l  o ther  borrowing cos ts  a re  expensed  
in  the per iod in  wh ich  they occur .  Bor rowing  
costs  cons is t  of  in teres t  and other  cos ts  that  
an ent i t y  incurs  in  connect ion wi th  the borrow-
ing of  funds.  Bor rowing  cost  a lso inc ludes ex-
change d i f fe rences  to the extent  regarded as  
an adjus tment to  the borrowing cos ts .  To the  
extent  that  the Company  bor rows funds spec i f i -
ca l l y  fo r  the purpose o f  obta in ing a  qua l i f y ing 
asset ,  the  Company determines  the amount of  
borrowing cos ts  e l ig ib le fo r  capi ta l i za t ion as  
the actual  borrowing costs  incurred on that  
borrowing dur ing the per iod less  any inves t -
ment income on the temporary  inves tment of  
those borrowings.  
 
To the extent  that  the Company bor rows funds  
genera l ly  and uses them for  the purpose of  
obta in ing a  qual i fy ing asset ,  the Company de-
termines the amount of  borrowing cos ts  e l ig i -
b le fo r  capi ta l i za t ion by  app ly ing a  capi ta l i za -
t ion ra te to  the expenditu res  on that  asset .  
The cap ita l izat ion rate i s  the we ighted average  
of  the borrowing cos ts  app l icable to  the bor -
rowings of  the Company that  are outstanding  
dur ing the per iod,  other  than borrowings made 
spec i f ica l ly  fo r  the purpose of  obta in ing a  
qua l i fy ing  asset  
 
2 .4.9 Inves tments :  
 
Current  inves tments  are  car r ied a t  the  lower of  
cost  or  quoted/ fa i r  va lue,  computed  ca tegory -
wise.  Long  term investments  are s ta ted  at  cos t  
and prov is ion is  made for  any d iminut ion in  
such value,  wh ich is  not  temporary  in  nature.   
 
2 .4.10 Leases 
 
The  Company  has entered in to var ious  ar range-
ments  l ike  lease of  premises wh ich  has been 
d isc losed accord ing ly  under  Ind AS 116 At  in -
cept ion of  a  cont rac t ,  the Company assesses  
whether  contrac t  is ,  or  conta ins ,  lease.  A con -
tract  is ,  or  conta ins ,  a  lease is  the cont rac t  
convey the r ight  of  cont ro l  the use of  an iden-
t i f ied  assets  for  the per iod of  t ime in  exchange 
for  cons idera t ion.  The  assessment of  whether  
a  contrac t  convey the r ight  to  cont ro l  the use  
of  as  ident i f ied  assets  depends on whether  the  
Company obta ins  substant ia l ly  a l l  the econom-
ic  benef i ts  f rom the use of  the assets  and  

whether  the Company  has a  r igh t  to  d i rect  the 
use of  the assets .  
 
2 .4.11 Company as  a  lessee 
 
The Company app l ies  a  s ing le recogn i t ion and 
measurement approach  for  a l l  leases,  except fo r  
shor t - te rm leases and leases of  low va lue assets .  
The Company recognizes  to make lease payments 
and r ight -of -use assets  represent ing the r igh t  to  
use the under l y ing  assets .  
 
2 .4.12.  Right -of -use assets  
 
The  Company  recognizes r igh t -of -assets  at  the  
commencement date of  the lease ( i .e  the date 
the under ly ing assets  i s  avai lab le for  use) .  The 
cost  of  r igh t -of -use assets  inc ludes the amount 
of  lease l iab i l i t ies  recognized,  in i t ia l  d i rect  cos ts  
incurred,  and lease payments  made at  or  before  
the commencement date less  any lease incen -
t ives  rece ived.  Right -of -use assets  are measured 
at  cost ,  less  any accumulated deprec ia t ion and 
impa irment losses,  and adjus ted for  any remeas -
urement of  l iabi l i t ies .  Righ t -of -use assets  a re  
deprec ia ted  on  a s tra ight -  bas is  over  shor ter  o f  
the lease term or  the es t imated usefu l  l i fe  of  the 
under ly ing assets  as  fo l lows .   

I f  ownership of  the leased assets  t ransfers  to  the 
Company a t  the end of  the lease term or  the cos t  
ref lec ts  the exerc ise of  a  purchase opt ion,  depre-
c ia t ion is  ca lcu la ted us ing the es t imated usefu l  
l i fe  of  the assets .  The company presents  r igh t -o f -  
use assets  separate ly  in  the  balance  sheet .  
 
2 .4.13 Lease  L iab i l i t ies  
 
At  the commencements  date of  the lease,  the 
Company recogn izes  lease l iab i l i t ies  measured at  
the  present va lue of  lease payments  to  be  made 
over  the lease  term.  The lease payment  inc ludes 
f ixed payments  ( inc lud ing in -substance  f i xed pay -
ments )  less  any lease incent ives  receivable,  var i -
ab le lease payments  that  depend on an index or  
rate,  and amounts  expected to be paid  under  re-
s idual  va lue guarantees .  The lease payment a lso 
inc ludes  the  exerc ise  pr ice  of  a  purchase opt ion 
reasonably  certa in  to  be  exerc ised by  the Compa-
ny and payments  of  penalt ies  fo r  te rminat ing the  
lease,  i f  the lease term ref lec ts  the Company ex -
erc is ing the opt ion to terminate.  Var iable lease  
payments  that  do not  depend  on an index or  ra re 
are recogn ized as  expenses (unless  the cons t  is  
inc luded in  the carry ing  va lue of  inventor)  in  the  

Assets Class  Useful l i fe  

Bui ld ing  3 years  
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per iod in  which the event or  condi t ion that  
t r iggers  the payments  occurs .  
 
In  ca lcula t ing the present va lue of  lease pay-
ment,  the Company uses i ts  incrementa l  bor -
rowing ra te  a t  the  lease  commencement date  
because the in teres t  rate impl ic i t  in  the  
lease is  not  readi ly  determinable.  Af ter  the  
commencement date,  the amount lease l ia -
bi l i t ies  is  inc reased to  ref lec t  the accret ion  
of  interes t  and reduces for  the  lease pay-
ment  made.  In  addi t ion,  the car ry ing amount  
of  lease l iabi l i t ies  i s  re  measured i f  there is  
a  mod if i cat ion,  a  change in  the lease terms,  
a  change in  the lease payments  (e.g .  chang-
es  to  future  payments  resul t ing f rom a  
change in  an index  or  ra te used to determine  
such lease payments )  o r  a  change in  the as -
sessment of  an opt ion  to  purchase the un -
der l y ing assets .   
 
The  Company’s  lease l iab i l i t ies  are inc luded 
in  current  and non-current  f inancia l ;  l iab i l i -
t ies .  Lease l iabi l i t ies  have been separa te ly  
presented in  the Ba lance Sheet and lease  
payments  have been c lass i f ied as  f inanc ing  
cash f lows.   
 
2 .4.14 Shor t - te rm lease  and  leases  of  low-
va lue assets  
 
The  Company  app l ies  the shor t - term lease  
recogn it ion exempt ion to the contrac ts  which 
have a lease term of  12 months or  less  f rom 
the date of  commencement date and do not  
conta in  a  purchase opt ion.  I t  a lso appl ies  
the lease of  low-value assets  recogn i t ion ex-
emption to  the  lease  cont rac t  that  are con-
s idered to the low va lue .  Lease payments  on  
shor t - te rm leases and  leases of  low-va lue  
assets  are recogn ized  as  expenses on a  
stra igh t  –l ine bas is  over  the  lease  term.   
 
 
2 .4.15 Inventor ies  
 
Inventor ies  a re va lued at  the lower of  cost  
and net  rea l i zab le va lue .  
 
Costs  incurred in  br ing ing each product  to  i ts  
present locat ion and condit ions are account-
ed fo r  as  fo l lows:  
 
·  Raw mater ia ls ,  components ,  s tores  and  

spares a re  va lued at  lower of  cost  and  
net  rea l i zab le va lue.  However ,  mater i -
a ls  and o ther  i tems he ld  for  use in  the  
product ion of  inventor ies  are not  wr i t -
ten down be low cost  i f  the f in ished  
products  in  which they  wi l l  be incorpo-

rated a re expected to be so ld  a t  o r  above  
cost .  Cost  i s  determined on a f i rs t  in  f i rs t  
bas is .   

 
·  Work- in -progress and f in ished goods are  

va lued at  lower of  cos t  and net  real i zable  
va lue .  Cos t  inc ludes d i rec t  mater ia ls  and  
labor  and a propor t ion  of  manufac tur ing  
overheads based on normal  opera t ing ca-
pac i ty  but  exc lud ing  bor rowing cos t .  Cos t  of  
f in ished goods exc lud ing GST.  Cos t  i s  de-
termined on a f i rs t  in  f i rs t  out  bas is .  

 
·  Traded goods are va lued at  lower of  cost  

and net  rea l i zab le va lue .  Cos t  inc ludes cost  
of  purchase and o ther  cos ts  incur red in  
br ing ing the inventor ies  to  thei r  present  
locat ion and cond i t ion.  Cost  is  determined  
on a f i rs t  in  f i rs t  out  bas is .  

 
Net  rea l izab le va lue is  the es t imated se l l ing 
pr ice  in  the ord inary  course  of  bus iness,  less  es -
t imated cos ts  of  complet ion and the est imated 
costs  necessary  to  make the  sale.  
 
2 .4.16 Prov is ions  
 
Prov is ions a re recogn ized when the Company has 
a  present ob l igat ion ( legal  o r  cons truc t ive)  as  a  
resu lt  of  a  pas t  event,  i t  is  probable that  an out -
f low of  resources embodying economic benef i ts  
wi l l  be requi red to set t le  the ob l igat ion and a 
re l iab le es t imate can be made of  the amount of  
the ob l iga t ion.  When the Company expects  some 
or  a l l  of  a  prov is ion to be re imbursed ,  for  exam-
ple,  under  an insurance  cont rac t ,  the re imburse -
ment  is  recognized as  a  separa te asset ,  but  only  
when the re imbursement is  v i r tua l ly  cer ta in .  The 
expense re la t ing toa prov is ion is  presented in  
the sta tement of  prof i t  and loss  net  of  any re im-
bursement.  I f  the ef fect  of  the t ime value of  
money is  mater ia l ,  p rov is ions  are d iscounted us -
ing a  cur rent  pre- tax ra te that  ref lects ,  when ap-
propr ia te,  the r isks  spec i f ic  to  the l iabi l i ty .  When 
d iscount ing  is  used,  the  inc rease in  the prov is ion 
due to the passage of  t ime is  recognized as  a  
f inance cos t .  
 
2 .4.17 Ret i rement and other  employee benef i ts  
 
Def ined Contr ibut ion plan 
 
Ret i rement benef i t  in  the form of  Prov ident Fund 
is  def ined contr ibut ion  scheme.  The Company 
has no ob l igat ion ,  o ther  than the contr ibut ion 
payable to  the abovementioned funds.  The Com-
pany  recognizes contr ibut ion payable to  the prov -
ident fund scheme as  an expense,  when  an  em-
ployee renders  the re la ted serv ice.  I f  the cont r i -
bu t ion payable to  the  scheme for  serv ice re-



62nd ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024. Page 91 

ceived before the balance sheet date exceeds  
the contr ibut ion a l ready  paid ,  the def ic i t  paya-
ble to  the  scheme is  recogn ized as  a  l iabi l i ty  
af ter  deduct ing the contr ibut ion a l ready paid .  
I f  the cont r ibut ion a l ready paid  exceeds the 
contr ibut ion due for  serv ices  rece ived before 
the balance sheet  date,  then excess is  recog-
n ized  as  an asset  to  the extent  that  the  pre -
payment  wi l l  lead to,  fo r  example,  a  reduct ion  
in  fu ture payment  or  a  cash re fund.  
 
Def ined benef i t  p lan 
 
The Company has a  def ined benef i t  gra tu i ty  
p lan,  wh ich requ ires  contr ibut ion to  be  made 
to a  separa te ly  admin istered fund.  The Compa-
ny’s  l iabi l i ty  towards th is  benef i t  is  determined 
on the  bas is  of  actuar ia l  va luat ion us ing Pro-
jec ted Un it  C red i t  Method at  the date of  ba l -
ance sheet.  
 
Remeasurement ,  compr is ing of  actuar ia l  ga ins  
and losses,  the  e f fec t  o f  the asset  ce i l ing,  ex-
c lud ing amounts  inc luded in  net  in terest  on  
the  net  def ined  benef i t  l iab i l i t y  and  the re turn  
on plan assets  (exc luding amounts  inc luded in  
net  in terest  on  the net  def ined benef i t  l iab i l -
i ty ) ,  are recogn ized  immedia te ly  in  the  balance  
sheet wi th  a  corresponding debit  or  credi t  to  
re ta ined  earn ings  th rough OCI  in  the  per iod in  
wh ich they occur .  Remeasurement is  not  re-
c lass i f ied to s ta tement  of  prof i t  and loss  in  
subsequent per iods.  
 
Pas t  serv ice cos ts  are recognized in  s tatement  
of  prof i t  and loss  on the  ear l ier  of :  
 
• The date of  the p lan amendment or  curta i l -
ment and  
 
• The date that  the Company recognizes re lat -
ed rest ruc tur ing cos ts  
 
Net  in terest  is  ca lcu la ted by  apply ing the d is -
count ra te to  the net  def ined benef i t  l iab i l i ty  
or  asset .  The Company  recogn izes the fo l low-
ing changes in  the net  def ined benef i t  obl iga-
t ion as  an expense in  s ta tement o f  prof i t  and  
loss :  
 
• Serv ice cos ts  compris ing current  serv ice 
costs ,  past  serv ice cos ts ,  ga ins  and losses on  
cur ta i lments  and non- rout ine sett lements ;  and  
 
• Net interes t  expense or  income 
 
Compensated absences  
 
Accumula ted leave,  wh ich is  expected to be  

ut i l i zed wi th in  the next  12 months,  is  t rea ted  as  
shor t - te rm employee benef i t  and th is  is  shown 
under  shor t  te rm prov is ion in  the Ba lance Sheet .  
The  Company  measures the expected cos t  of  
such absences as  the addit ional  amount that  i t  
expects  to  pay  as  a  result  of  the unused  ent i t le -
ment that  has accumula ted at  the repor t ing date .  
 
The Company treats  accumula ted leave expected 
to be car r ied forward beyond twe lve months,  as  
long - term employee benef i t  for  measurement  
purposes and th is  i s  shown under  long  term pro-
v is ions in  the Balance  Sheet .  Such long- term 
compensated absences  are prov ided fo r  based 
on the ac tuar ia l  va luat ion us ing the projec ted 
uni t  cred i t  method a t  the year -end.  Ac tuar ia l  
ga ins/ losses  are immed iately  taken to the Sta te-
ment of  O ther  Comprehensive Income and are 
not  deferred.  The Company presents  the leave as  
a  current  l iab i l i ty  in  the ba lance sheet;  to  the 
extent  i t  does  not  have an uncond it ional  r ight  to  
defer  i ts  set t lement for  12-month s i f ter  the re -
port ing  dates .  Where  the Company has the  un-
condi t ional  lega l  and cont rac tua l  r ight  to  defer  
the sett lement fo r  a  per iod beyond 12 months ,  
the same is  presented as  non-cur rent  l iab i l i t y .  
 
Terminat ion benef i ts  
 
The Company recogn izes  terminat ion benef i t  as  a  
l iab i l i t y  and an expense when the Company has a  
present obl iga t ion as  a  resu lt  of  pas t  event,  i t  i s  
probable that  an  outf low of  resources embody ing 
economic benef i ts  w i l l  be requ ired to sett le  the 
ob l igat ion and a re l iable es t imate can be made 
of  the amount of  the obl iga t ion.  I f  the termina-
t ion benef i t  fa l ls  due for  more  than 12-month 
s i f ter  the ba lance sheet  date,  they  are measured 
at  present va lue of  the  future cash f lows us ing 
the  d iscount ra te determined  by  reference to 
market  y ie lds  a t  the ba lance sheet  date on the  
government bonds.  
 
2 .4.18 Cash  and cash equ iva lents  
 
Cash and cash equ iva lent  in  the balance sheet  
comprise cash at  banks  and on hand and shor t -
te rm deposi ts  with in  or ig ina l  matur i ty  of  th ree  
months or  less ,  which a re subjec t  to  an ins igni f i -
cant  r isk  of  changes in  va lue .  
 
For  the purpose of  the sta tement of  cash f lows ,  
cash and cash equiva lents  cons is t  of  cash and 
shor t - te rm depos i ts ,  as  def ined  above,  net  o f  
outs tanding bank overd raf ts  as  they a re cons id -
ered an integra l  par t  of  the Company’s  cash man-
agement.  
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2.4.19 Other  F inanc ia l  Assets :  
 
The  Company  c lass i f ies  i ts  f inanc ia l  assets  
in  the fo l lowing measurement categor ies :  
1.  Those to be measured subsequent ly  a t  

fa i r  va lue (e i ther  through other  compre-
hensive income,  o r  through the State-
ment of  Prof i t  and Loss ) ,  and  

2.  Those measured a t  amor t i zed cos t .  
 
The  c lass i f ica t ion  depends on  the  Company’s  
bus iness model  fo r  managing the f inancia l  
assets  and  the contractual  te rms of  the cash  
f lows.  
 
At  in i t ia l  recogn it ion,  the Company  measures  
a  f inanc ia l  asset  a t  i ts  fa i r  va lue.  Transac -
t ion cos ts  o f  f inancia l  assets  car r ied at  fa i r  
va lue through the Pro f i t  and Loss are ex-
pensed in  the Statement  of  Prof i t  and Loss.  
 
The Company measures  the expected c red it  
loss  associated wi th  i ts  assets  based on h is -
to r ica l  t rend,  indust ry  pract ices  and the bus i -
ness env ironment in  which the ent i t y  oper -
ates  or  any o ther  appropr iate bas is .  The im-
pai rment methodo logy  app l ied depends on  
whether  there has  been a s igni f icant  in -
crease in  c red i t  r isk .  
 
2 .4.20 Foreign cur rencies  
 
The Company’s  f inanc ia l  s tatements  a re pre-
sented in  wh ich is  a lso the Company’s  func-
t iona l  cur rency.  Transact ions in  fo re ign cur -
renc ies  are in i t ia l ly  recorded by  the Company  
at  `  spot  rate’  a t  the date the transact ion  
f i rs t  qua l i f ies  for  recognit ion.  Monetary  as -
sets  and l iab i l i t ies  denominated in  foreign  
currenc ies  a re trans lated at  the funct iona l  
currency  spot  ra tes  of  exchange a t  the  re-
port ing date.   
 
Exchange d i f fe rences a r is ing on sett lement  
or  t rans la t ion of  monetary  i tems are recog-
n ized in  s ta tement of  prof i t  and loss .  
 
Non-monetary  i tems that  are measured in  
te rms of  h is tor ica l  cos t  in  a  foreign currency  
are trans lated us ing  the exchange ra tes  a t  
the ra tes  of  the in i t ia l  t ransact ions.  On -
monetary  i tems measured a t  fa i r  va lue  in  a  
foreign currency are t rans la ted us ing the ex-
change ra tes  a t  the  ra te when the fa i r  va lue  
is  determined.  The gain or  loss  ar is ing on  
trans la t ion of  non-monetary  i tems measured  
at  fa i r  va lue  is  t rea ted  in  l ine  wi th  the recog-
n i t ion of  the gain  or  loss  on the change in  
fa i r  va lue of  the i tem ( i .e  t rans la t ion d i f fe r -
ences on i tems whose fa i r  va lue ga in or  loss  

is  recogn ized in  OCI  o r  s tatement of  prof i t  and 
loss  a re a lso recogn ized in  OCI  o r  s ta tement of  
prof i t  and loss ,  respect ively ) .   
 
2 .4.21.  Earnings per  Share 
 
Bas ic  Earn ings per  share (EPS) amounts  are ca l -
cu la ted  by  d iv id ing the  prof i t  fo r  the  year  at -
t r ibutable to  equi ty  holders  of  the  company  by  
the weighted average number of  equ ity  shares  
outs tanding dur ing the year .  
 
Di luted EPS amounts  a re ca lcula ted by  d iv id ing 
the prof i t  a tt r ibutable to  equ i ty  ho lders  of  the 
company af ter  ad jus t ing impact  o f  d i lu t ion 
shares by  the we ighted average number of  equ ity  
shares outs tand ing dur ing the year  p lus  the  
we ighted average number of  equ ity  shares that  
would  be issued on convers ion of  a l l  the d i lu t ive  
potent ia l  equ ity  shares into  equ ity  shares.  
 
 
2 .4.22.  Cont ingent l iabi l i t ies  and assets  
 
A cont ingent l iab i l i ty  is  a  poss ib le ob l igat ion that  
ar ises  f rom past  events  whose exis tence wi l l  be 
conf i rmed  by  the  occur rence or  non—occurrence 
of  one or  more uncer ta in  future events  not  who l ly  
wi th in  the cont ro l  of  the Company or  a  present  
ob l igat ion that  is  not  recognized because i t  i s  
not  probable  that  an  outf low of  resources wi l l  be  
requi red  to sett le  the  ob l igat ion.  A cont ingent 
l iab i l i t y  a lso a r ises  in  extremely  rare cases where 
there  is  a  l iabi l i ty  that  cannot  be recognized  be-
cause i t  cannot be measured re l iably .  The Com-
pany  does not  recogn ize  a  cont ingent l iabi l i ty  but  
d isc loses i ts  ex is tence  in  the f inancia l  s tate-
ments .  
 
A cont ingent asset  is  not  recogn ized unless  i t  
becomes v i r tua l ly  cer ta in  that  an inf low of  eco -
nomic benef i ts  wi l l  ar ise.  When an inf low of  eco-
nomic benef i ts  is  probable,  cont ingent assets  
are d isc losed in  the f inancia l  s tatements .  Cont in -
gent l iab i l i t ies  and  cont ingent  assets  a re re -
v iewed  at  each balance sheet date .  
 
2 .4.23 S ign i f icant  account ing  judgments ,  est i -
mates  and assumpt ions  
 
The preparat ion  of  the  f inancia l  s ta tements  re-
qui res  management  to  make judgments ,  es t i -
mates  and assumpt ions  that  af fec t  the reported 
amounts  of  revenues,  expenses,  assets  and l ia -
bi l i t ies ,  and the accompany ing d isc losures,  and 
the d isc losure  of  cont ingent l iab i l i t ies .  Uncer -
ta inty  about these assumpt ions and es t imates 
could  resul t  in  outcomes that  requi re  an ad jus t -
ment to  the car ry ing amount  of  assets  or  l iab i l i -
t ies  in  fu ture per iods.  D i f fe rence between ac tua l  
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resu lts  and es t imates are recogn ized in  the  
per iods in  wh ich the results  are known /  mate-
r ia l i zed.  
 
Es t imates and assumpt ions  
 
The key assumptions concern ing the fu ture  
and other  key  sources o f  est imat ion uncerta in -
ty  a t  the  repor t ing date,  tha t  have a s ign i f i cant  
r isk  of  caus ing a  mater ia l  ad jus tment to  the  
carry ing amounts  o f  assets  and l iabi l i t ies  wi th -
in  the  next  f inancia l  year ,  are descr ibed  be low.  
The Company has based i ts  assumpt ions and  
est imates  on  parameters  ava i lab le  when the  
f inanc ia l  s tatements  were prepared.  Exis t ing  
c i rcumstances  and assumpt ions about future 
deve lopments ,  however ,  may change due to 
market  changes or  c i rcumstances ar is ing that  
are beyond the cont ro l  of  the Company .  Such  
changes are ref lec ted in  the assumpt ions when 
they occur .   
 
 
In format ion about the c r i t ica l  judgment  in  ap-
ply ing  account ing po l ic ies ,  as  we l l  as  es t imat-
ed and assumption that  have not  most that  
have the most s ign i f icant  ef fect  to  the carry ing  
amount of  assets  and l iab i l i t ies  wh ich the net  
f inanc ia l  year ,  a re  inc luded in  the fo l lowing  
notes :  
 
a .  Measurement of  def ined benef i ts  obl iga-

t ions – note no.  19 
b.  Measurement and l ikel ihood o f  occur -

rence of  prov is ion note no.  24 
c .  Recogni t ion of  current  tax and  defer red  

tax assets  note no .7  
d .  Key assumpt ion uses in  fa i r  va luat ion  

note no.  37 
e.  Measurement of  lease  l iab i l i t ies  and  

r igh t -of -assets  note  no.  5  
f .  Est imat ion of  uncer ta int ies  re la t ing to  

the g loba l  heal th  pandemic for  COVID-19 
note no.  52 

   
2.4.23 non -current  assets  (o r  d isposa l  g roups )  
c lass i f ied as  he ld  for  sa le :  
To c lass i f y  any asset  or  d isposa l  groups  
(compr is ing assets  and l iab i l i t ies )  as  “Asset  /  
Disposa l  g roups held  for  sa le”  they must be 
avai lab le for  immediate sa le  and  i ts  sa le must  
be h igh ly  probable.  Such assets  or  g roup of  
assets  /  l iab i l i t ies  are presented separate ly  in  
the  Balance Sheet,  in  the l ine “Assets  /  D is -
posa l  g roups held  for  sa le”  and “L iabi l i t ies  in -
c luded  in  d isposal  group held  for  sa le”  respec-
t ively .  Once c lass i f ied as  held  for  sa le,  in tang i -
ble assets  and PPE are no longer  amor t i zed or  
deprec ia ted.  Such assets  or  d isposa l  groups  

held  for  sa le are s tated  at  the lower of  carry ing 
amount and fa i r  va lue less  cos ts  to  sel l .   
 
2 .4.24 Amendment  to  schedu le  I I I  Companies  
Ac t ,  2013 
Min ist ry  of  Corpora te Af fa i rs  (MCA) issued not i f i -
cat ions  dated March 24,2021 to  amend  schedule  
I I I  of  the  Compan ies  Act ,  2013 to  enhance the 
d isc losures requ ired to be made by  the Company 
in  i ts  f inancia l  s ta tements .  These amendments  
are  app l icable  to  the Company fo r  the f inancia l  
year  s tar t ing Apr i l1,2021 and  app l ied to the con-
sol idated f inancia l  s ta tements :  
a .  Lease l iab i l i t ies  separa tely  d isc losed under  

the head f inanc ia l  l iab i l i t ies ,  duly  d is t in -
guished as  current  o r  non-cur rent .  

b.  Cer ta in  addi t iona l  d isc losures in  the con-
sol idated s ta tements  o f  change in  equi ty  
such as  change in  equi ty  share cap ita l  due  
to pr ior  per iod er ror  and restated balances  
at  the beginning o f  the current  report ing  
per iod.  

c .  Addi t iona l  d isc losure for  shareho ld ing or  
promoters  and promoters ’  group.  

d .  Addi t iona l  d isc losure for  ageing schedu le  
of  t rade rece ivable and t rade payable .  

e .  Speci f ic  d isc losure on compl iance wi th  ap-
proved scheme of  a rrangement.  

f .  Addi t iona l  d isc losure re lat ing to  Corporate  
Soc ia l  Responsib i l i t y  (CSR) and undisc losed  
income.  
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